
URBANCLAP TECHNOLOGIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2020 to 31/03/2021

[700300] Disclosure of general information about company

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

      Name of company URBANCLAP TECHNOLOGIES 
INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

      Corporate identity number U74140DL2014PTC274413 

      Permanent account number of entity AABCU7755Q

      Address of registered office of company 
R-5, PNR House ,  Green Park 
Market  ,  New Delhi  ,  DELHI 
, INDIA - 110016

      Type of industry C o m m e r c i a l  a n d  
Industrial

      Date of start of reporting period 01/04/2020 01/04/2019

      Date of end of reporting period 31/03/2021 31/03/2020

      Nature of report standalone consolidated Consolidated

      Content of report Financial Statements

      Description of presentation currency INR

      Level of rounding used in financial statements Lakhs

      Type of cash flow statement Indirect Method

[700400] Disclosures - Auditors report

Details regarding auditors [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Auditors [Axis] 1

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
   Details regarding auditors [Abstract] 
      Details regarding auditors [LineItems] 
         Category of auditor Auditors firm

         Name of audit firm 
Price Waterhouse
Char tered
Accountants LLP

         Name of auditor signing report Abhishek Rara

         Firms registration number of audit firm 012754N/N500016

         Membership number of auditor 077779

         Address of auditors 

Building 8, Tower
B, 8th Floor, DLF
Cyber City,
G u r g a o n ,
Haryana-HR,
122002

         Permanent account number of auditor or auditor's firm AAFFP3698A

         SRN of form ADT-1 G20279311

         Date of signing audit report by auditors 30/09/2021

         Date of signing of balance sheet by auditors 30/09/2021

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

Disclosure in auditor’s report explanatory [TextBlock] Textual information (1) 
[See below]

   Whether companies auditors report order is applicable on company No

   Whether auditors' report has been qualified or has any reservations or 
   contains adverse remarks 

No



 

2

URBANCLAP TECHNOLOGIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2020 to 31/03/2021 

Textual information (1)

Disclosure in auditor’s report explanatory [Text Block]

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Urbanclap Technologies India Private Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Urbanclap Technologies India Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

1.        We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Urbanclap Technologies India Private Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the ‘Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) (refer
Note 2 to the attached consolidated financial statements), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the
consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information prepared based on the relevant records (hereinafter referred to as “the
consolidated financial statements”). 

2.       In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2021,
of consolidated total comprehensive income/(loss) (comprising of loss and other comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3.       We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph 11 and 12 of the Other Matters
paragraph below, other than the unaudited financial statements as certified by the management and referred to in sub-paragraph 13 of the
Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

 

Other Information

4.       The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Board’s report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and the reports of the other auditors furnished
to us (Refer paragraph 11 and 12 below), we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

5.       The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance and consolidated cash flows, and changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by
the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

 

6.       In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

 

7.       The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting
process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

8.         Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

 

9.          As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

·                Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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·                Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

·                Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

·                Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

·                Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

 

·               Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other
auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

 

10.   We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matters

11.    We did not audit the financial statements of two subsidiaries (One of which is a trust) whose financial statements reflect total assets of
Rs. 243.84 lakhs and net assets of Rs. 223.05 lakhs as at March 31, 2021, total revenue of Rs. 9.66 lakhs, total comprehensive income/(loss)
(comprising of loss and other comprehensive income) of Rs. (0.31) lakhs and net cash inflows amounting to Rs. 0.83 lakhs for the year ended
on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditor whose
reports have been furnished to us by the Management, and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act
including report on Other Information insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

 

12.   The financial statements of one subsidiary located outside India, included in the consolidated financial statements, which constitute total
assets of Rs. 1,005.59 lakhs and net assets of Rs. 302.52 lakhs as at March 31, 2021, total revenue of Rs. 1,210.41 lakhs, total comprehensive
income/(loss) (comprising of loss and other comprehensive income) of Rs. (1,180.19) lakhs and net cash inflows amounting to Rs. 58.96
lakhs for the year then ended, has been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in it’s respective countries and
have been audited by other auditor under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective countries. The Company’s
management has converted the financial statements of such subsidiary located outside India from the accounting principles generally
accepted in it’s respective country to the accounting principles generally accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments
made by the Company’s management. Our opinion in so far as it

 

relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiary located outside India, including other information, is based on the report of other auditor
and the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the Company and audited by us.
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13.   The financial statements of two subsidiaries located outside India, included in the consolidated financial statements, which constitute
total assets of Rs. 1,513.87 lakhs and net assets of Rs. 1,477.74 lakhs as at March 31, 2021, total revenue of Rs. 0.13 lakhs, total
comprehensive income/(loss) (comprising of loss and other comprehensive income) of Rs. (63.63) lakhs and net cash outflows amounting to
Rs. 35.08 lakhs for the year then ended, have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their respective
countries and are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the Management. The Company’s management has converted the financial
statements of such subsidiaries located outside India from the accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries to the
accounting principles generally accepted in India. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
Management, these financial statements are not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in
respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements
certified by the Management.

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

14.    As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have
been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors, except that the back up of the books
of accounts and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on servers physically located in India.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account and records maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act.

(e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2021 taken on record by
the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India,
none of the directors of the Group companies, incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f)   With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is made to our comment in Paragraph
14(b) above that the back up of the books of accounts and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on
servers physically located in India

(g) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Group and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure A.

 

 

(h)With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

                        i.         The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact, if any, of pending litigations on the consolidated financial
position of the Group – Refer Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

ii.        The Group did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2021. The Group has long-term contracts as at March 31, 2021 for
which there were no material foreseeable losses.
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iii.      During the year ended March 31, 2021, there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India.

iv.       The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Group for the year ended March 31, 2021.

 

15.  The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public companies. Accordingly, reporting under
Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

 

 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration Number: 012754/N500016

Chartered Accountants

 

 

 

 

Sd/-

Abhishek Rara

 

Partner

Membership Number 077779

 

UDIN: 21077779AAAACS1915

Place : Gurugram

Date  : September 30, 2021

 

Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 14(g) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Urbanclap Technologies India Private
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Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

 

1.  In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended March 31, 2021, we
have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Urbanclap Technologies India Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) as of that date. Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in
respect of the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is not applicable to the subsidiary companies
incorporated in India, pursuant to MCA notification GSR 583(E) dated 13 June 2017.

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

 

2.  The Board of Directors of the Holding company, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI).  These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

 

Auditor’s Responsibility

 

3.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both
issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

 

4.  Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

 

5.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statement.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

 

6.  A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

 

7.  Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

 

Opinion

 

8.  In our opinion, the Holding Company, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31,
2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

 

 

 

 

       For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 

       Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
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Chartered Accountants

 

 

 

Sd/-

 

Abhishek Rara

Partner

Place: Gurugram                                                          Membership Number - 077779

Date : September 30, 2021                                         UDIN: 21077779AAAACS1915
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[110000] Balance sheet

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
31/03/2021 31/03/2020 31/03/2019

Balance sheet [Abstract] 
   Assets [Abstract] 
      Non-current assets [Abstract] 

         Property, plant and equipment (A)   9,116.41 (B)   12,561.42

         Other intangible assets 69.49 53.54

         Non-current financial assets [Abstract] 
            Non-current investments 0 0

            Loans, non-current 767.08 909.08

            Total non-current financial assets 767.08 909.08

         Other non-current assets 297.14 110.06

         Total non-current assets 10,250.12 13,634.1

      Current assets [Abstract] 
         Inventories 1,246.93 1,419.32

         Current financial assets [Abstract] 
            Current investments 37,050.94 47,859.6

            Trade receivables, current 307.57 93.6

            Cash and cash equivalents 4,582.34 9,937.66

            Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 8,190.25 5,356.04

            Loans, current 150.34 100.56

            Other current financial assets 1,595.79 1,517.21

            Total current financial assets 51,877.23 64,864.67

         Other current assets 1,333.74 1,364.72

         Total current assets 54,457.9 67,648.71

      Total assets 64,708.02 81,282.81

   Equity and liabilities [Abstract] 
      Equity [Abstract] 
         Equity attributable to owners of parent [Abstract] 
            Equity share capital 1.514045 1.479945 1.31677

            Other equity 45,358.85 63,104.33

            Total equity attributable to owners of parent 45,360.36 63,105.81

         Non controlling interest 0 0

         Total equity 45,360.36 63,105.81

      Liabilities [Abstract] 
         Non-current liabilities [Abstract] 
            Non-current financial liabilities [Abstract] 
               Borrowings, non-current 0 0

               Other non-current financial liabilities (C)   7,017.65 (D)   10,064.27

               Total non-current financial liabilities 7,017.65 10,064.27

            Provisions, non-current 554.01 341.46

            Total non-current liabilities 7,571.66 10,405.73

         Current liabilities [Abstract] 
            Current financial liabilities [Abstract] 
               Borrowings, current 0 0

               Trade payables, current (E)   4,826 (F)   3,207.81

               Other current financial liabilities (G)   3,856.6 (H)   2,880.73

               Total current financial liabilities 8,682.6 6,088.54

            Other current liabilities (I)   2,774.93 (J)   1,551.89

            Provisions, current 318.47 130.84

            Total current liabilities 11,776 7,771.27

         Total liabilities 19,347.66 18,177

      Total equity and liabilities 64,708.02 81,282.81
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Footnotes
 (A) Property, plant and equipment : 924.1 Right-of-use assets : 8192.31

 (B) Property, plant and equipment : 783.22 Right-of-use assets : 11778.2

 (C) Lease liabilities : 7017.65

 (D) Lease liabilities : 10064.27

 (E) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises : 41.23 total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises : 4784.77

 (F) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises : 13.62 total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises : 3194.19

 (G) Lease liabilities : 1653.45 Other financial liabilities : 2203.15

 (H) Lease liabilities : 1822.24 Other financial liabilities : 1058.49

 (I) Contract liabilities : 1242.29 Other current liabilities : 1532.64

 (J) Contract liabilities : 536.5 Other current liabilities : 1015.39

[210000] Statement of profit and loss

Earnings per share [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of equity share capital [Axis] Equity shares [Member] Equity shares 1 [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
Statement of profit and loss [Abstract] 
      Earnings per share [Abstract] 
         Earnings per share [Line items] 
            Basic earnings per share [Abstract] 
               Basic earnings (loss) per share from 
               continuing operations 

[INR/shares] -0.17 [INR/shares] -0.11 [INR/shares] -0.17 [INR/shares] -0.11

               Basic earnings (loss) per share from 
               discontinued operations 

[INR/shares] 0 [INR/shares] 0 [INR/shares] 0 [INR/shares] 0

               Total basic earnings (loss) per share [INR/shares] -0.17 [INR/shares] -0.11 [INR/shares] -0.17 [INR/shares] -0.11

            Diluted earnings per share [Abstract] 
               Diluted earnings (loss) per share from 
               continuing operations 

[INR/shares] -0.17 [INR/shares] -0.11 [INR/shares] -0.17 [INR/shares] -0.11

               Diluted earnings (loss) per share from 
               discontinued operations 

[INR/shares] 0 [INR/shares] 0 [INR/shares] 0 [INR/shares] 0

               Total diluted earnings (loss) per share [INR/shares] -0.17 [INR/shares] -0.11 [INR/shares] -0.17 [INR/shares] -0.11
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Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
Statement of profit and loss [Abstract] 
   Income [Abstract] 
      Revenue from operations 24,765.4 21,863.63

      Other income 4,212.79 4,443.87

      Total income 28,978.19 26,307.5

   Expenses [Abstract] 
      Cost of materials consumed 0 0

      Purchases of stock-in-trade 4,284.87 6,440.06

      Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and 
      stock-in-trade 

172.39 -752.14

      Employee benefit expense 22,698.27 13,949.12

      Finance costs 961.19 797.61

      Depreciation, depletion and amortisation expense 2,568.14 1,893.25

      Other expenses 23,220.85 19,497.37

      Total expenses 53,905.71 41,825.27

   Profit before exceptional items and tax -24,927.52 -15,517.77

   Total profit before tax -24,927.52 -15,517.77

   Tax expense [Abstract] 
      Total tax expense 0 0

   Total profit (loss) for period from continuing operations -24,927.52 -15,517.77

   Total profit (loss) for period -24,927.52 -15,517.77

   Comprehensive income OCI components presented net of tax [Abstract] 
      Whether company has other comprehensive income OCI components 
      presented net of tax 

No No

      Other comprehensive income net of tax [Abstract] 
         Total other comprehensive income 17.62 -81.62

      Total comprehensive income -24,909.9 -15,599.39

   Comprehensive income OCI components presented before tax [Abstract] 
      Whether company has comprehensive income OCI components presented 
      before tax 

Yes Yes

      Other comprehensive income before tax [Abstract] 
         Components of other comprehensive income that will not be 
         reclassified to profit or loss, before tax [Abstract] 
            Other comprehensive income, before tax, gains (losses) on 
            remeasurements of defined benefit plans 

-38.3 -61.63

         Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to 
         profit or loss, before tax 

-38.3 -61.63

         Components of other comprehensive income that will be 
         reclassified to profit or loss, before tax [Abstract] 
            Exchange differences on translation before tax [Abstract] 
               Gains (losses) on exchange differences on translation, before 
               tax 

55.92 -19.99

               Total other comprehensive income, before tax, exchange 
               differences on translation 

55.92 -19.99

         Total other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to 
         profit or loss, before tax 

55.92 -19.99

         Total other comprehensive income, before tax 17.62 -81.62

         Total other comprehensive income 17.62 -81.62

      Total comprehensive income -24,909.9 -15,599.39

   Earnings per share explanatory [TextBlock] 
      Earnings per share [Abstract] 
            Basic earnings per share [Abstract] 
               Basic earnings (loss) per share from continuing operations [INR/shares] -0.17 [INR/shares] -0.11

               Basic earnings (loss) per share from discontinued operations [INR/shares] 0 [INR/shares] 0

               Total basic earnings (loss) per share [INR/shares] -0.17 [INR/shares] -0.11

            Diluted earnings per share [Abstract] 
               Diluted earnings (loss) per share from continuing operations [INR/shares] -0.17 [INR/shares] -0.11

               Diluted earnings (loss) per share from discontinued operations [INR/shares] 0 [INR/shares] 0

               Total diluted earnings (loss) per share [INR/shares] -0.17 [INR/shares] -0.11
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[400200] Statement of changes in equity

Statement of changes in equity [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR

Components of equity [Axis] Equity [Member]

Equity attributable
to the equity
holders of the

parent [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
   Other equity [Abstract] 
      Statement of changes in equity [Line items] 
         Equity [Abstract] 
         Changes in equity [Abstract] 
            Comprehensive income [Abstract] 
               Profit (loss) for period -24,927.52 -15,517.77 -24,927.52

               Changes in comprehensive income components 17.62 -81.62 17.62

               Total comprehensive income -24,909.9 -15,599.39 -24,909.9

            Other changes in equity [Abstract] 
               Other additions to reserves 8,003.88 27,121.1 8,003.88

               Deductions to reserves [Abstract] 
                  Other deductions to reserves 839.46 19.26 839.46

                  Total deductions to reserves 839.46 19.26 839.46

               Other changes in equity, others 0 0 0

               Total other changes in equity 7,164.42 27,101.84 7,164.42

            Total increase (decrease) in equity -17,745.48 11,502.45 -17,745.48

         Other equity at end of period 45,358.85 63,104.33 51,601.88 45,358.85

Statement of changes in equity [Table] ..(2)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR

Components of equity [Axis] Equity attributable to the equity
holders of the parent [Member]

Equity component of financial
instrument [Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
   Other equity [Abstract] 
      Statement of changes in equity [Line items] 
         Equity [Abstract] 
         Changes in equity [Abstract] 
            Comprehensive income [Abstract] 
               Profit (loss) for period -15,517.77 0 0

               Changes in comprehensive income components -81.62 0 0

               Total comprehensive income -15,599.39 0 0

            Other changes in equity [Abstract] 
               Other additions to reserves 27,121.1 0 (A)   2.06

               Deductions to reserves [Abstract] 
                  Other deductions to reserves 19.26 0 0

                  Total deductions to reserves 19.26 0 0

               Other changes in equity, others 0 0 0

               Total other changes in equity 27,101.84 0 2.06

            Total increase (decrease) in equity 11,502.45 0 2.06

         Other equity at end of period 63,104.33 51,601.88 34.58 34.58

 (A) Instruments entirely equity in nature issued during the year
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Statement of changes in equity [Table] ..(3)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR

Components of equity [Axis]

Equity component
of financial
instrument
[Member]

Reserves [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

   Other equity [Abstract] 
      Statement of changes in equity [Line items] 
         Equity [Abstract] 
         Changes in equity [Abstract] 
            Comprehensive income [Abstract] 
               Profit (loss) for period -24,927.52 -15,517.77

               Changes in comprehensive income components 17.62 -81.62

               Total comprehensive income -24,909.9 -15,599.39

            Other changes in equity [Abstract] 
               Other additions to reserves 8,003.88 27,119.04

               Deductions to reserves [Abstract] 
                  Other deductions to reserves 839.46 19.26

                  Total deductions to reserves 839.46 19.26

               Other changes in equity, others 0 0

               Total other changes in equity 7,164.42 27,099.78

            Total increase (decrease) in equity -17,745.48 11,500.39

         Other equity at end of period 32.52 45,324.27 63,069.75 51,569.36

Statement of changes in equity [Table] ..(4)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR

Components of equity [Axis] Securities premium reserve [Member]

Employee stock
options

outstanding
[Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
   Other equity [Abstract] 
      Statement of changes in equity [Line items] 
         Equity [Abstract] 
         Changes in equity [Abstract] 
            Comprehensive income [Abstract] 
               Profit (loss) for period 0 0 0

               Changes in comprehensive income components 0 0 0

               Total comprehensive income 0 0 0

            Other changes in equity [Abstract] 
               Other additions to reserves (A)   839.46 (B)   24,475.64 (C)   7,164.42

               Deductions to reserves [Abstract] 
                  Other deductions to reserves 0 0 (D)   839.46

                  Total deductions to reserves 0 0 839.46

               Other changes in equity, others 0 0 0

               Total other changes in equity 839.46 24,475.64 6,324.96

            Total increase (decrease) in equity 839.46 24,475.64 6,324.96

         Other equity at end of period 98,495.56 97,656.1 73,180.46 12,323.7

 (A) Securities premium on options exercised during the year

 (B) Securities premium on equity shares issued during the year: 368.18 Securities premium on Instruments entirely equity in nature
issued during the year: 24088.20 Securities premium on options exercised during the year: 19.26

 (C) Employee stock option expense

 (D) Securities premium on options exercised during the year
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Statement of changes in equity [Table] ..(5)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR

Components of equity [Axis] Employee stock options outstanding
[Member]

Foreign currency translation reserve
[Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
   Other equity [Abstract] 
      Statement of changes in equity [Line items] 
         Equity [Abstract] 
         Changes in equity [Abstract] 
            Comprehensive income [Abstract] 
               Profit (loss) for period 0 0 0

               Changes in comprehensive income components 0 55.92 -19.99

               Total comprehensive income 0 55.92 -19.99

            Other changes in equity [Abstract] 
               Other additions to reserves (A)   2,643.4 0 0

               Deductions to reserves [Abstract] 
                  Other deductions to reserves (B)   19.26 0 0

                  Total deductions to reserves 19.26 0 0

               Other changes in equity, others 0 0 0

               Total other changes in equity 2,624.14 0 0

            Total increase (decrease) in equity 2,624.14 55.92 -19.99

         Other equity at end of period 5,998.74 3,374.6 8.44 -47.48

 (A) Employee stock option expense: 2643.40

 (B) Securities premium on options exercised during the year

Statement of changes in equity [Table] ..(6)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR

Components of equity [Axis]
Foreign currency

translation reserve
[Member]

Retained earnings [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

   Other equity [Abstract] 
      Statement of changes in equity [Line items] 
         Equity [Abstract] 
         Changes in equity [Abstract] 
            Comprehensive income [Abstract] 
               Profit (loss) for period -24,927.52 -15,517.77

               Changes in comprehensive income components -38.3 -61.63

               Total comprehensive income -24,965.82 -15,579.4

            Other changes in equity [Abstract] 
               Other additions to reserves 0 0

               Deductions to reserves [Abstract] 
                  Other deductions to reserves 0 0

                  Total deductions to reserves 0 0

               Other changes in equity, others 0 0

               Total other changes in equity 0 0

            Total increase (decrease) in equity -24,965.82 -15,579.4

         Other equity at end of period -27.49 -65,503.43 -40,537.61 -24,958.21
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Statement of changes in equity [Table] ..(7)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR

Components of equity [Axis] Remeasurements of defined benefit plans [Member] Other retained
earning [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
   Other equity [Abstract] 
      Statement of changes in equity [Line items] 
         Equity [Abstract] 
         Changes in equity [Abstract] 
            Comprehensive income [Abstract] 
               Profit (loss) for period 0 0 -24,927.52

               Changes in comprehensive income components -38.3 -61.63 0

               Total comprehensive income -38.3 -61.63 -24,927.52

            Other changes in equity [Abstract] 
               Other additions to reserves 0 0 0

               Deductions to reserves [Abstract] 
                  Other deductions to reserves 0 0 0

                  Total deductions to reserves 0 0 0

               Other changes in equity, others 0 0 0

               Total other changes in equity 0 0 0

            Total increase (decrease) in equity -38.3 -61.63 -24,927.52

         Other equity at end of period -91.22 -52.92 8.71 -65,412.21

Statement of changes in equity [Table] ..(8)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Components of equity [Axis] Other retained earning [Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

   Other equity [Abstract] 
      Statement of changes in equity [Line items] 
         Equity [Abstract] 
         Changes in equity [Abstract] 
            Comprehensive income [Abstract] 
               Profit (loss) for period -15,517.77

               Changes in comprehensive income components 0

               Total comprehensive income -15,517.77

            Other changes in equity [Abstract] 
               Other additions to reserves 0

               Deductions to reserves [Abstract] 
                  Other deductions to reserves 0

                  Total deductions to reserves 0

               Other changes in equity, others 0

               Total other changes in equity 0

            Total increase (decrease) in equity -15,517.77

         Other equity at end of period -40,484.69 -24,966.92

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

Disclosure of notes on changes in equity [TextBlock] Textual information (2) 
[See below]
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Textual information (2)

Disclosure of notes on changes in equity [Text Block]

(a) Equity Share Capital        

         

  As at March 31, 2021    As at March 31, 2020  

Paid up share capital  No. of shares  Rs. in Lakh  No. of shares  Rs. in Lakh

Equity shares of Rs. 1 each issued        

As at the beginning of the year 1,63,614 1.48 1,31,677 1.32

Equity Share Capital issued during the year* 3,410 0.03 31,937 0.16

As at the end of the year 1,67,024 1.51 1,63,614 1.48

 

 

* During the previous year, out of total 31,937 issued share, 31,239 equity share are at paid up value of Rs. 0.5 each and 698 equity share at
paid up value of Re. 1 each

 

 

(b) Other equity              

               Rs. in
Lakh

 
 Instruments
entirely equity
in nature

 Reserve
and
surplus

 
Other
comprehensive
income

 
 Total
other
equity

   
Securities
premium

 Employee Stock
Options
Outstanding

 Retained
earnings

Foreign
currency
translation
reserve

 Remeasurement

gains/ (losses) 
on defined 
benefit plans

 

Balance as at 1 April, 2019 32.52 73,180.46 3,374.60 -24,966.92 -27.49 8.71 51,601.88
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Loss for the year  -    -    -   -15,517.77 -19.99  -   -15,537.76

Other comprehensive income  -    -    -    -    -   -61.63 -61.63

Employee stock option expense  -    -   2,643.40  -    -    -   2,643.40

Instruments entirely equity in
nature issued during the year

2.06  -    -    -    -    -   2.06

Securities premium on equity
shares issued during the year

 -   368.18  -    -    -    -   368.18

Securities premium on
Instruments entirely equity in
nature issued during the year

 -   24,088.20  -    -    -    -   24,088.20

Securities premium on options
exercised during the year

 -   19.26 -19.26  -    -    -    -  

  2.06 24,475.64 2,624.14 -15,517.77 -19.99 -61.63 11,502.45

               

Balance as at 31 March, 2020 34.58 97,656.10 5,998.74 -40,484.69 -47.48 -52.92 63,104.33

               

Loss for the year  -    -    -   -24,927.52 55.92  -   -24,871.60

Other comprehensive income  -    -    -    -    -   -38.3 -38.3

Employee stock option expense  -    -   7,164.42  -    -    -   7,164.42

Securities premium on options
exercised during the year

 -   839.46 -839.46  -    -    -    -  

   -   839.46 6,324.96 -24,927.52 55.92 -38.3 -17,745.48

               

Balance as at 31 March, 2021 34.58 98,495.56 12,323.70 -65,412.21 8.44 -91.22 45,358.85

 

      Rs in
Lakh

     As at  As at
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 31
March,
2021

 31
March,
2020

14 Other equity    

       

(A) Instruments entirely equity in nature    

  As at the beginning of the year 34.58 32.52

  Add: Shares issued during the year  -   2.06

  As at the end of the year 34.58 34.58

       

(B) Reserve and surplus    

  Securities premium    

  As at the beginning of the year 97,656.10 73,180.46

  Add: Premium on shares issued during the year  -   24,456.38

  Add: Premium on options exercised during the year 839.46 19.26

  As at the end of the year 98,495.56 97,656.10

       

  Employee stock options outstanding    

  As at the beginning of the year 5,998.74 3,374.60

  Add: Employee stock option expense 7,164.42 2,643.40

  Less: Options exercised during the year -839.46 -19.26

  As at the end of the year 12,323.70 5,998.74

       

  Retained earnings    

  As at the beginning of the year -40,484.69 -24,966.92
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  Add: loss for the year -24,927.52 -15,517.77

  As at the end of the year -65,412.21 -40,484.69

       

(C) Other Comprehensive Income    

 

Remeasurement

gains/ (losses)

on defined

benefit plans

   

  As at the beginning of the year -52.92 8.71

  Add: loss for the year -38.3 -61.63

  As at the end of the year -91.22 -52.92

       

  Foreign currency translation reserve    

  Opening balance -47.48 -27.49

  Movement during the year 55.92 -19.99

  Closing balance 8.44 -47.48

       

    45,358.85 63,104.33

       

       

  Nature and purpose of items of other equity:    

1
Securities premium: The Securities premium account is used to record the premium on issue of shares and is
utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

   

       

Employee stock options outstanding: The Share options outstanding account is used to recognise the grant date
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2 fair value of options issued to employees under Holding Company's employee share option plan. Refer Note 33
for further details.

   

       

3

Instruments entirely equity in nature: The Holding Company has issued certain Compulsory Convertible
Preference Shares (CCPS) carrying a pre-determined cumulative dividend rate of 1% p.a. Each CCPS shall be
compulsorily convertible into 1 equity share of the Holding Company at the end of 19 years or converted into
Equity Shares pursuant to a Public Offer whichever is earlier. The holder has the option to convert such CCPS in
whole or in part into equity shares at any time from the date of issuance of the same. Refer Note 34 for further
details.

   

       

4 Retained earnings: Retained earnings represent the amount of accumulated earnings/(deficit) of the Group.    

       

5

Other Comprehensive income: other comprehensive income represents re-measurement gains/(losses) on
defined benefit plans and Foreign Currency Translation reserve resulting into exchange differences arising from
(a) translating the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations into Indian Rupees using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period and (b) translating income and expense items of the foreign
operations at the average exchange rates for the period.
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[320000] Cash flow statement, indirect

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

Statement of cash flows [Abstract] 
   Whether cash flow statement is applicable on company Yes Yes

   Cash flows from used in operating activities [Abstract] 
      Profit before tax -24,927.52 -15,517.77

      Adjustments for reconcile profit (loss) [Abstract] 
         Adjustments for decrease (increase) in inventories 163.33 -781.85

         Adjustments for decrease (increase) in trade receivables, current -351.24 -14.66

         Adjustments for decrease (increase) in other current assets 190.31 -451.65

         Adjustments for other financial assets, current -393 -431.02

         Adjustments for increase (decrease) in trade payables, current 1,612.88 1,380.53

         Adjustments for increase (decrease) in other current liabilities (A)   1,223.04 (B)   519.28

         Adjustments for depreciation and amortisation expense 2,568.14 1,893.25

         Adjustments for provisions, current 361.88 188.11

         Adjustments for other financial liabilities, current 1,086.51 56.62

         Adjustments for unrealised foreign exchange losses gains 5.31 13.28

         Adjustments for share-based payments 7,164.42 2,643.4

         Adjustments for fair value losses (gains) (C)   -216.45 (D)   -1,883.38

         Other adjustments for non-cash items 3.75 -1.3

         Total adjustments for reconcile profit (loss) 13,418.88 3,130.61

      Net cash flows from (used in) operations -11,508.64 -12,387.16

      Interest paid (E)   -961.19 (F)   -797.61

      Interest received (G)   -2,924.98 (H)   -2,452.31

      Income taxes paid (refund) 187.08 96.86

      Other inflows (outflows) of cash (I)   -435.5 (J)   242.27

      Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities -14,095.01 -13,896.45

   Cash flows from used in investing activities [Abstract] 
      Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 51 4.51

      Purchase of property, plant and equipment 490.47 614.31

      Interest received (K)   3,468.55 (L)   1,649.95

      Other inflows (outflows) of cash (M)   8,037.68 (N)   249.11

      Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities 11,066.76 1,289.26

   Cash flows from used in financing activities [Abstract] 
      Proceeds from issuing shares 0.03 368.35

      Proceeds from issuing other equity instruments (O)   0 
(P)   24,090.25

      Repayments of borrowings 0 740.74

      Payments of lease liabilities 1,365.91 944.22

      Interest paid 961.19 797.61

      Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities -2,327.07 21,976.03

   Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents before effect of 
   exchange rate changes 

-5,355.32 9,368.84

   Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents -5,355.32 9,368.84

   Cash and cash equivalents cash flow statement at end of period 4,582.34 9,937.66 568.82
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Footnotes
 (A) Other current liabilities : 517.25 Contract liabilities : 705.79

 (B) Other current liabilities : 172.24 Contract liabilities : 347.04

 (C) Net gain on Fair value changes of Mutual Fund : -12.89 Net gain or loss on sale of Mutual Fund : -203.56

 (D) Net gain on Fair value changes of Mutual Fund : -41.16 Net gain or loss on sale of Mutual Fund : -1842.22

 (E) Interest expenses on borrowings : 0 Interest paid on lease liabilities : 961.19

 (F) Interest expenses on borrowings : 50.26 Interest paid on lease liabilities : 747.35

 (G) Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised cost : -73.96 Interest income on Fixed Deposits : -2851.02

 (H) Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised cost : -1396.15 Interest income on Fixed Deposits : -1056.16

 (I) Inventory Written off : 9.06 Write-down of assets : 6.82 Advances written off : 90.25 Liability no longer required written back : 0
Allowance for doubtful recoveries of Advance/ (written back) : -75.95 Rent Abatement : -349.75 Lease Modification Impact :
-227.93 Allowances for bad and doubtful debts : 137.31 Unwinding of discount on Security Deposit : -81.23 Foreign Currency
Translation Reserve : 55.92

 (J) Inventory Written off : 29.71 Write-down of assets : 84.64 Advances written off : 53.65 Liability no longer required written back
: -41.57 Allowance for doubtful recoveries of Advance/ (written back) : 200 Rent Abatement : 0 Lease Modification Impact : 0
Allowances for bad and doubtful debts : 0 Unwinding of discount on Security Deposit : -64.17 Foreign Currency Translation
Reserve : -19.99

 (K) Interest received on fixed deposit : 3241.39 Interest received on other investments : 227.16

 (L) Interest received on fixed deposit : 184.81 Interest received on other investments : 1465.14

 (M) Investment in fixed deposit : -57624.89 Proceeds from maturity of fixed deposit : 58790.66 Purchase of investments : -46949.17
Proceeds from sale of investments : 53821.08

 (N) Investment in fixed deposit : -45240.98 Proceeds from maturity of fixed deposit : 4054.46 Purchase of investments : -60729.3
Proceeds from sale of investments : 102164.93

 (O) Proceeds from issue of compound financial instruments (including securities premium) : 0

 (P) Proceeds from issue of compound financial instruments (including securities premium) : 24090.25

[610100] Notes - List of accounting policies

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

Disclosure of significant accounting policies [TextBlock] Textual information (3) 
[See below]

Textual information (4) 
[See below]

   Description of accounting policy for government grants [TextBlock] Textual information (5) 
[See below]
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Textual information (3)

Disclosure of significant accounting policies [Text Block]

URBANCLAP TECHNOLOGIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

 

1.    Corporate information

Urbanclap Technologies India Private Limited ('the Holding  Company') is a private limited company domiciled in India. The Holding
Company and its subsidiaries (collective referred to as "the Group") provides an online portal (www.urbancompany.com) and mobile
application as an intermediary for local services that connects customers to service professionals.

The Group is in the business of providing an online/mobile app marketplace which enables the customers registered on its platform to search
and hire service professionals for their household & business needs.

The registered office of the Holding Company is situated at R-5, PNR House Green Park Market, New Delhi 110016, Delhi, India and its
corporate office is located at Plot No 416, Udyog Vihar Phase III, Sector 20, Gurugram 122016, Haryana, India. The CIN of the Holding
Company is U74140DL2014PTC274413.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by Board of Directors on 30 September 2021.

 

2.    Significant accounting policies

 

(i)   Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)
and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act as applicable.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention, except the following assets and liabilities,
which have been measured at fair value as required by the relevant Ind AS:

-      Certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments);

-      Defined employee benefit plans; and

-      Share-based payment.

 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.) which is the functional currency of the Holding Company. All amounts are
rounded to two decimal places to the nearest Lakh, unless otherwise stated.
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New and amended standards adopted by the Holding Company

 

The Holding Company has applied the following amendment to Ind AS for the first time for their annual reporting period commencing 1
April 2020:

COVID-19 related concessions amendments to Ind AS 116

 

The amendment listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect
the current or future periods.

 

The list of subsidiaries which are included in the consolidation and the Groups holdings therein is as under:

 

S.
No

Name of Company Relationship Ownership Country
Incorporated

Date of Acquisition/
Incorporation

1 Handyhome Solutions Pvt. Ltd. Subsidiary 100% India 29-Aug-2016

2 UrbanClap Technologies DMCC Subsidiary 100% United Arab
Emirates

26-Mar-2018

3 UrbanClap Technologies Global B.V. Subsidiary 100% Netherlands 13-Feb-2018

4 Urban Home Experts PTY LTD Subsidiary 100% Australia 01-Oct-2019

5 Urban Home Experts PTE LTD Subsidiary 100% Singapore 19-Sep-2019

6 Urbancare Financial Services Pvt Ltd Subsidiary 100% India 01-Oct-2019

7 Urban Company Arabia for Information
Technology

Subsidiary 100% Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia

25-Feb-2021

8 Urban Company Employee Welfare Trust Entity controlled by
Directors

100% India 23-Aug-2020

 

(ii)  Basis of consolidation

 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries. For this
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purpose, an entity which is, directly or indirectly, controlled by the Holding Company is treated as subsidiary. The Holding Company
together with its subsidiaries constitute the Group. Control exists when the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, has power over the
investee, is exposed to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, loses control of the subsidiary. Income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss from the date the Holding Company, directly or indirectly,
gains control until the date when the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, ceases to control the subsidiary.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group combines financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries line-by-line
by adding together the like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. All intra-group assets, liabilities, income, expenses and
unrealised profits/losses on intra-group transactions are eliminated on consolidation. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
harmonised to ensure the consistency with the policies adopted by the Holding Company.

The consolidated financial statements have been presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as Holding Companys standalone
financial statements. Profit or loss and other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Holding Company and to the
non-controlling interests and have been shown separately in the financial statements.

Non-controlling interests represent that part of the total comprehensive income and net assets of subsidiaries attributable to interest which is
not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Holding Company.

 

(iii) Use of estimate and judgements

 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the managements best knowledge of current events and actions and historical
experience, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. Therefore, actual results could differ from these estimates.

 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

 

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to
be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about
each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected
line item in the financial statements.

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

27

URBANCLAP TECHNOLOGIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2020 to 31/03/2021 

 

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

 

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model and other option
pricing models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

 

Defined benefit plans

 

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

 

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit
obligation.

 

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at
interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Also refer Note 32.

 

 

Useful life of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible assets

 

Periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an assets expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of
its life. The useful lives and residual values of Group's assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed at
each financial year end.

 

Revenue recognition 
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In revenue arrangements where more than one service is provided to the customer, customer consideration is allocated between the services
using fair value principles. The fair values determined for deliverables may impact the timing of the recognition of revenue. The Group
generally determines the fair value of individual elements based on a cost plus a reasonable margin. Revision to the estimates of these fair
values may significantly affect the allocation of total arrangement consideration among the individual elements.

 

 

Share based payment

 

The Group initially measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using option pricing models to determine the fair value
on grant date. The management also requires to determine the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of
the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them.

 

Management has determined that non-market performance condition (occurrence of qualifying event) that would trigger vesting of equity
settled share based payment arrangement is not probable as at the balance sheet date. Accordingly, no expense in respect of that share based
payment expense has been recognised during the year. Also refer Note 24. If the management had determined that the occurrence of the
qualifying event was probable as at March 31, 2021, the impact on the share based benefit expense and the profit before tax for the year
would not have been significant.

 

Lease term

 

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the
use of such option is reasonably certain. In evaluating the lease term, the Group considers factors such as any significant leasehold
improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to
Groups operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The discount rate is
generally based on the incremental borrowing rate, to determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group uses recent third-party financing
options received by the Holding Company, adjusted to lease term etc., specific to the lease being evaluated.

 

Taxes

 

Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. 

 

 

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that may have a financial impact on the Group and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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(iv) Summary of significant accounting policies

 

a) Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset is classified as current when it
is:

-     Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

-     Held primarily for the purpose of trading

-     Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

-     Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

 

A liability is classified as current when:

-     It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

-     It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

-     It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

-     There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

 

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.



 

30

URBANCLAP TECHNOLOGIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2020 to 31/03/2021 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group
has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

 

(v)  Fair value measurements and hierarchy

 

The Group measures financial instruments, such as investments and derivatives at fair value at each Balance Sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either:

 

(a) In the principal market for the asset or liability; or

(b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.

 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participants ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use, or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Group
uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances, and for which sufficient data are available to measure the fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy based on its nature, characteristics and risks

 

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
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measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

 

 

(vi) Employee benefits

1)   Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense on accrual basis.

2)   Defined contribution plan

The Group makes defined contribution to the Government Employee Provident Fund and superannuation fund, which are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, on accrual basis. The Group recognises contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when
an employee renders the related service. The Group has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

3)   Defined benefit plan

The Holding Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India. The Holding Companys liabilities under The Payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972 are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial year using the projected unit credit method.

An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit
obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at
interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

This cost is included in the Employee benefits expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Re-measurement gains or losses and return on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net Interest on the net defined benefit liability) arising from changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in OCI. These are presented as re-measurement gains or losses on defined benefit plans
under other comprehensive income in other equity. Remeasurements gains or losses are not reclassified subsequently to the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

4)   Compensated absences

The employees of the Group are entitled to compensated absences. The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilised accumulating
compensated absences and utilise it in future periods or receive cash at retirement or termination of employment. The Group records an
obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increases this entitlement. The Group
measures the expected cost of compensated absences as the additional amount that the Group expects to pay as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the end of the reporting period. The Group recognises accumulated compensated absences based on
actuarial valuation in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Group presents the entire leave as a current liability in the Balance Sheet, since it
does not have any unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date.

 

(vii)  Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services/goods are transferred to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those services and excluding taxes or duties collected on
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behalf of the government.

Commission income

The Group acts as an agent between service professional and an end customer and earns commission as its revenue. Commission Income is
recognised net of discounts, rebates and any other incentive provided to the end customer.

Revenue from sale of services is recognized upon successful completion of services as per agreement, such revenue is recognized at point in
time.

Revenue from subscription (from end Customer and from service professional) is recognised over the subscription period.

A contract liability is recognised on account of unsettled advances received from /due to customers for subscription.

Sale of goods

The Group sells products to the service professionals which are used by the service professional for rendering services on the platform.
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at a point in time i.e. when control of goods are transferred to the service professional. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Group has
used a practical expedient as permitted under para 63 of Ind AS 115.

Discounts, wallet balance, credits and other incentives

The Group periodically provides incentive offers to the end customers. These promotions are generally in the nature of discount coupons,
cash credits, wallet balance etc. which are to be applied against the transaction price. These incentive offers are recorded as reduction in
commission revenue on a transaction by transaction basis. Discounts in excess of revenue earned from the end customer at an individual
transaction level are recorded as Marketing Expenses.

Credit expiry revenue

Wallet balance maintained by service professionals as per the agreed terms, on expiry is recorded as revenue in the books of the Group.

Interest income

Interest income on all debt instruments is measured either at amortised cost. Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the EIR, the Group estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument. Interest income is included in other income in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

(viii)    Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be
complied with.

When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.

 

(ix)    Share-based payments

Employees of the Group receive remuneration in the form of equity-settled instruments and stock appreciation rights for rendering services
over a defined vesting period. Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date using an appropriate valuation model.
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The Holding Company has Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) for eligible employees of the Group which entitles the employee to receive
equity instruments of the Holding Company, provided the specified vesting conditions are met and is classified as 'Equity-settled share-based
payments'.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed over the vesting period on a straight line
basis, based on the Holding Company's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At
the end of each reporting period, the Holding Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled employee benefits reserve.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/ or service conditions have not been
met.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

 

(x)     Leases

The Groups lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices. 

 

Right-of-use assets 

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

         the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

         any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received

         any initial direct costs, and

         restoration costs.

The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and
adjusted for any re measurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is
any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Lease liabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise of fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments. The
lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification arising due to change in the lease term, change in
the lease payments or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. when the lease liability is re-measured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property, and lease liabilities, separately in the Balance
Sheet.

Short-term leases and leases of low value assets The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e.,
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies
the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

 

(xi)    Taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current Tax payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the Statement of Profit
and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss are recognised outside the Statement of
Profit and Loss (either in OCI or in equity). Current tax and deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity

 

(xii)  Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting
preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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(xiii) Foreign currency transactions, balances and translations

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded applying the exchange rate at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency, remaining unsettled at the end of the year, are translated at the closing exchange rates prevailing on the
Balance Sheet date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on the change in fair value of the item (i.e. translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI) or the Statement of Profit and Loss are also reclassified in OCI or the Statement of Profit and Loss,
respectively).

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet

income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions), and

All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

 

(xiv) Property, plant & equipment

Property, plant & equipment are stated in the Balance Sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost includes acquisition cost, taxes, duties, freight, insurance and other incidental expenses incurred for bringing the assets to the working
condition required for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives net of residual values. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

 

 

 

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

 

Assets category Estimated useful life

Computers End User Products 3 years
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Plant and Machinery * 2 years

Office Equipment 5 Years

Furniture and Fittings 10 years

Computer Server & Network 6 years

Electrical equipment and installation 10 years

 

*Based on technical evaluation, the management believes that the useful lives as given above best represents the period over which the
management expects to use these assets. Hence, the useful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives as described under Part C of
Schedule II of The Companies Act, 2013.

 

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of their useful life or the lease term, unless the entity expects to use the assets
beyond the lease term.

Based on managements assessment, items of property, plant and equipment individually costing less than five thousand rupees, are
depreciated within one year from the date the asset is ready to use or useful life of class of asset to which these assets belong.

 

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

 

(xv)  Intangible assets

 

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life on straight line method.

 

Assets category Estimated useful life

Software 3 years
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Website domain 3 years

 

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, and are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

 

(xvi) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/ external factors. . An impairment loss, if any, is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in
which an asset is identified as impaired.  Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on
inventories, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the Statement of profit or loss.

 

 

 

(xvii)   Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories in the ordinary course of business less less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Obsolete and defective inventory are duly provided for, basis the management estimates.

 

(xviii) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
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appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for
at trade date.

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

Classification and measurement of financial instruments

Amortised Cost

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for debt instruments that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

 

-      the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

-      the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other income in the profit or loss.

The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to investment in redeemable
preference shares, loans to employees, trade and other receivables.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI (except for debt instruments that are designated
as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

 

-      the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets; and

-      the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that
meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise
from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Group has not designated any debt
instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset
and is included in the Other income line item.
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The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the management has elected to present fair value gains and
losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or
loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when
the Groups right to receive payments is established.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, debt
instruments, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset not designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Group estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Group measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk
on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash
shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over
the next 12 months.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group uses the
change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected
credit losses. To make that assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope
of Ind AS 115, the Group always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Group has used a practical expedient
as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account
historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

 

De-recognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the assets carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On de-recognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred
asset), the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing
involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the
part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
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Debt and equity instruments issued by an entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments (compulsorily convertible preference shares) issued by the Group are classified separately as financial
liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

A conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Groups
own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible
instruments. This amount is recognised as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon
conversion or at the instruments maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair value of the
compound financial instrument as a whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently
re-measured. In addition, the conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised, in which
case, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to other component of equity. When the conversion option remains unexercised at
the maturity date of the convertible note, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to retained earnings. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds.  Transaction costs relating to the equity component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs
relating to the liability component are included in the carrying amount of the liability component and are amortised over the lives of the
convertible notes using the effective interest method. Also refer Note 34.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

-      it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

-      on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

-      it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument."

 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the Other income' line item.
The net gain or loss arising on embedded derivative (i.e. equity linked interest payments) measured at FVTPL is recognised as 'Finance
costs'.

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on
the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.
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Effective interest (EIR) method

EIR is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The EIR
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Groups obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An
exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial
liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

 

(xix)  Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

 

(xx)  Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value
of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognised because
it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation.  A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare
cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. 

The Group does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

 

(xxi) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.
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(xxii) Trade receivables

 

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. Trade receivables
are recognized initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing component, when they
are recognized at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance.

 

(xxiii)  Trade and other payables

 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade
and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

 

(xxiv)    Segment reporting

 

Operating segments are those components of the business whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
making body (CODM) in the Group to make decisions for performance assessment and resource allocation.

The reporting of segment information is the same as provided to the management for the purpose of the performance assessment and resource
allocation to the segments.

The board of directors of the Group has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker.

Segment accounting policies are in line with the accounting policies of the Group. In addition, the following specific accounting policies
have been followed for segment reporting:

 

(a)  Revenue and Expenses have been identified to a segment on the basis of relationship to operating activities of the segment. Revenue and
Expenses which relate to enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as Unallocable.

 

(b)  Segment Assets and Segment Liabilities represent Assets and Liabilities in respective segments. Investments, tax related assets and other
assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as Unallocable.

 

(c)  Segment non-cash expenses forming part of segment expenses includes the fair value of the employee stock options which is accounted
as employee compensation cost  and is allocated to the segment.
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Also refer Note 40 regarding details about segments.
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Textual information (4)

Disclosure of significant accounting policies [Text Block]

 

URBANCLAP TECHNOLOGIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

(AMOUNT IN RS. LAKHS, UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

 

1.     Corporate Information

 

Urbanclap Technologies India Private Limited ('the Holding  Company') and its subsidiaries (collective referred to as "the Group") provides
an online portal (www.urbanclap.com) and mobile application as an intermediary for local services that connects customers to service
professionals. The Group is also involved in selling products to the service professionals which are used by them for rendering services.

 

Group is in the business of providing an online/mobile app marketplace which enables the customers registered on its platform to search and
hire service professionals for their household & business needs.

 

The registered office of the Holding Company is situated at R-5, PNR House Green Park Market, New Delhi 110016, Delhi, India and its
corporate office is located at Plot No 416, Udyog Vihar Phase III, Sector 20, Gurugram 122016, Haryana, India. The CIN of the Holding
Company is U74140DL2014PTC274413.

 

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by Board of Directors on 08
September 2020.

 

2.     Significant accounting policies

 

2.1         Statement of compliance

 

The Group has adopted Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) with effect from 1 April 2019 pursuant to notification issued by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs dated 16 February 2015, notifying the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS (Also refer Note 33).
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These consolidated financial statements are the first consolidated financial statements of the Group under Ind AS. For all periods up to and
including the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group prepared its consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting standards
notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended specified under section 133 and other relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013. Refer to Note 40 for detailed information on how the Group transitioned to Ind AS.

 

2.2         Basis of preparation and presentation

 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for certain financial assets
and liabilities measured at fair value where the Ind AS requires a different accounting treatment (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments), defined benefit plans and share based payments.

 

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

 

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

 

New and amended standards adopted by the Group:

- Ind AS 116, Leases

- Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments — Appendix C to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes

- Amendment to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes

 

The details regarding adoption of Ind AS 116 are disclosed in Note 30. The other amendments listed above did not have any impact on the
amounts recognized in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

 

The list of subsidiaries which are included in the consolidation and the Group’s holdings therein is as under:
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S. No Name of Company Relationship Ownership Country Incorporated Date of Acquisition/ Incorporation

1 Handyhome Solutions Pvt. Ltd. Subsidiary 100% India 29-Aug-2016

2 UrbanClap Technologies DMCC Subsidiary 100% United Arab Emirates 26-Mar-2018

3 UrbanClap Technologies Global B.V. Subsidiary 100% Netherlands 13-Feb-2018

4 Urban Home Experts PTY LTD Subsidiary 100% Australia 01-Oct-2019

5 Urban Home Experts PTE LTD Subsidiary 100% Singapore 19-Sep-2019

6 Urbancare Financial Services Pvt Ltd Subsidiary 100% India 01-Oct-2019

 

 

All amounts disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Lakhs as per the requirement of
Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

 

2.3         Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries. For this
purpose, an entity which is, directly or indirectly, controlled by the Holding Company is treated as subsidiary. The Holding Company
together with its subsidiaries constitute the Group. Control exists when the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, has power over the
investee, is exposed to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, loses control of the subsidiary. Income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss from the date the Holding Company, directly or indirectly,
gains control until the date when the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, ceases to control the subsidiary.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group combines financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries line-by-line
by adding together the like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. All intra-group assets, liabilities, income, expenses and
unrealised profits/losses on intra-group transactions are eliminated on consolidation. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
harmonised to ensure the consistency with the policies adopted by the Holding Company.

The consolidated financial statements have been presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as Holding Company’s standalone
financial statements. Profit or loss and other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Holding Company and to the
non-controlling interests and have been shown separately in the financial statements.

Non-controlling interests represent that part of the total comprehensive income and net assets of subsidiaries attributable to interest which is
not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Holding Company.

 

 

2.4         Use of estimate and judgements
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The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions and
historical experience, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. Therefore, actual results could differ from these estimates.

 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

 

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to
be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about
each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected
line item in the financial statements.

 

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model and other option
pricing models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

 

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

 

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit
obligation.

 

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at
interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Also refer Note 31.
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Useful life of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible assets

Periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of
its life. The useful lives and residual values of Group's assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed at
each financial year end.

 

Revenue recognition 

In revenue arrangements where more than one service is provided to the customer, customer consideration is allocated between the services
using fair value principles. The fair values determined for deliverables may impact the timing of the recognition of revenue. The Group
generally determines the fair value of individual elements based on a cost plus a reasonable margin. Revision to the estimates of these fair
values may significantly affect the allocation of total arrangement consideration among the individual elements.

 

Share based payment

The Group initially measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using option pricing model (Black-Scholes Model) to
determine the fair value on grant date. The management also requires to determine the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model
including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them.

 

Lease term

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the
use of such option is reasonably certain. In evaluating the lease term, the Group considers factors such as any significant leasehold
improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to
Group’s operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The discount rate is
generally based on the incremental borrowing rate, to determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group uses recent third-party financing
options received by the Group, adjusted to lease term etc., specific to the lease being evaluated.

 

Taxes

Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. 

 

 

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that may have a financial impact on the Group and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

 

2.5         Current versus non-current classification

 

The Group presents assets and liabilities in balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset is classified as current when it
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is:

(i)    Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

(ii)   Held primarily for the purpose of trading

(iii)  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(iv)  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

 

All other assets are classified as non-current.

 

A liability is classified as current when:

(i)    It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

(ii)   It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

(iii)  It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(iv)  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

 

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

 

The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

 

2.6         Revenue recognition

 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services/goods are transferred to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those services and excluding taxes or duties collected on
behalf of government.
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Commission income

The Group acts as an agent between service professional and an end customer and earns commission as its revenue. Commission Income is
recognised net of discounts, rebates and any other incentive provided to the end customer.

Revenue from sale of services is recognized upon successful completion of services as per agreement, such revenue is recognized at point in
time.

 

Revenue from subscription (from end Customer and from service professional) is recognised over the subscription period.

A contract liability is recognised on account of unsettled advances received from /due to customers for subscription.

 

Sale of goods

The Group sells products to the Service professionals which are used by the service professional for rendering services on the platform.
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at a point in time i.e. when control of goods are transferred to the service professional.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed, as revenue are exclusive of goods and
services tax (GST).

 

 

Discounts, wallet balance, credits and other incentives

Urbanclap periodically provides incentive offers to the end customers. These promotions are generally in the nature of discount coupons,
cash credits, wallet balance etc. to be applied against the transaction price. These incentive offers are recorded as reduction in commission
revenue on a transaction by transaction basis. Discounts in excess of revenue earned from the end customer at an individual transaction level
are recorded as Marketing Expenses.

 

Credit expiry revenue

Service professional maintain balance in their wallet. If the wallet balance remains unutilized for 364 days, the balance will get expired. As
per the terms, On expiry the available balance in wallet is recorded as revenue in the books of the Group.

 

 

Other Income

Profit on sale of investments and fair value impact on mark to market contracts are recognised on transaction completion or on reporting date
as applicable.
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Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate (EIR) method or time-proportion method, based on rate implicit in the
transaction.

 

 

2.7         Employee benefit expenses

 

Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance, Gratuity Fund and Leave encashment.

 

(i)          Post-employment benefit costs and termination benefits

Defined contribution plan

Payments to defined contribution benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

 

Contribution towards provident fund and Employee State Insurance for certain employees is made to the regulatory authorities, where the
Group has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Group does not carry any further
obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis.

 

Defined benefit plan

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being
carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the
asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge
or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive
income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in
the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined
benefit liability or asset.

 

The Group provides for gratuity covering eligible employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan
provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on
the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. The Group's liability is not funded by any plan asset."

 

(ii)        Short-term employee benefits and Long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the
related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.
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Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
in exchange for the related service.

 

 

 

 

Leave Encashment

The Obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet as the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement
for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement in expected to occur.

 

(iii)       Employee share based payments

 

The Holding Company has Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) for eligible employees of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which
entitles the employee to receive equity instruments of the holding company, provided the specified vesting conditions are met and is
classified as 'Equity-settled share-based payments'.

 

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date using "Black Scholes European Call Option Pricing Model".

 

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
equity-settled employee benefits reserve.

 

2.8         Leases

 

The Group has adopted Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting period beginning 1 April 2019. Under the new standard, all lease contracts,
with limited exceptions, are recognized in the consolidated financial statements by way of right-of-use assets and corresponding lease
liabilities. The Group has applied the standard to its leases, using the modified prospective approach at the date of initial application with the
option to measure the right to use asset at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to that lease recognized in the balance sheet immediately before the date of initial application.

The Group has applied the new standard to Property rent agreement to evaluate whether these contracts contains a lease or not. Based on
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, the Group has evaluated such arrangements to be leases. Under the new standard,
all lease contracts, with limited exceptions, are recognized in the consolidated financial statements by way of right-of-use assets and
corresponding lease liabilities.
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However, as on transition date, the Group can apply practical expedients on initial application i.e. not to recognize right of use assets and
lease liabilities for leases with remaining lease term of upto 12 months from the date of initial application (i.e. 1 April 2019) by class of
asset."

Also refer to Note 30 regarding the adoption of Ind AS 116.

 

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

 

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

 

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses incremental borrowing rate, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security
and conditions. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Group may adopt the incremental borrowing rate for the entire portfolio
of leases.

 

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

·         the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

·         any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received

·         any initial direct costs, and

·         restoration costs.

The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and
adjusted for any re measurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is
any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

 

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

 

 

2.9         Taxation

 

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
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Current Tax

Current Tax payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the statement of profit
and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.

 

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

 

2.10      GST input credit

 

GST input credit is accounted for in the books in the period in which the underlying service received is accounted and when there is
reasonable certainty in availing / utilising the credits.

 

2.11      Earnings Per Share

 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting
preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

 

 

2.12      Foreign currency transactions and translations
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The functional and presentation currency of the Group is Indian Rupees which represents the currency of the primary economic environment
in which it operates.

 

Transactions in currencies other than the Group’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated using
mean exchange rate prevailing on the last day of the reporting period.

 

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

 

2.13      Property, plant & equipment

 

Property, plant & equipment are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

 

Cost includes acquisition cost, taxes, duties, freight, insurance and other incidental expenses incurred for bringing the assets to the working
condition required for their intended use.

 

Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

 

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

 

Assets category Estimated useful life

Computers End User Products 3 years

Plant and Machinery * 2 years

Office Equipment 5 Years

Furniture and Fittings 10 years

Computer Server & Network 6 years

Electrical equipment and installation 10 years
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*Based on technical evaluation, the management believes that the useful lives as given above best represents the period over which the
management expects to use these assets. Hence, the useful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives as described under Part C of
Schedule II of The Companies Act, 2013.

 

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the initial period of lease or the useful life of asset whichever is lower.

 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

 

2.14      Intangible Assets

 

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

 

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life on straight line method.

 

Assets category Estimated useful life

Software 3 years

Website domain 3 years

 

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, and are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

 

2.15      Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

 

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
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estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
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individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

 

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

 

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

 

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

 

2.16      Inventories

 

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

 

 

2.17      Investment in subsidiaries

 

The Group records the investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries at cost less impairment loss, if any. On disposal of investment in
subsidiary, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss. The Group
avails the option to measure its investment at deemed cost at previous GAAP carrying amount at that date.

 

2.18      Financial instruments
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A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

 

Financial assets

 

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

 

Classification of financial instruments

 

Amortised Cost

 

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for debt instruments that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

 

-      the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

-      the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other income in the profit or loss.

 

The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to investment in redeemable
preference shares, loans to employees, trade and other receivables.
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Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

 

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI (except for debt instruments that are designated
as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

 

-      the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets; and

-      the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that
meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

 

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise
from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Group has not designated any debt
instrument as at FVTPL.

 

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset
and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

 

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the management has elected to present fair value gains and
losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or
loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

 

Impairment of financial assets

 

The Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, debt
instruments, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset not designated as at FVTPL.
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Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Group estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

 

The Group measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk
on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash
shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over
the next 12 months.

 

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group uses the
change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected
credit losses. To make that assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

 

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope
of Ind AS 115, the Group always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

 

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Group has used a practical expedient
as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account
historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

 

De-recognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

 

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

 

On de-recognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred
asset), the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing
involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the
part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments

 

Debt and equity instruments issued by an entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

 

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

 

Compound financial instruments

 

Compound financial instruments (compulsorily convertible preference shares) issued by the Group are classified separately as financial
liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

 

A conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Group’s own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

 

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible
instruments. This amount is recognised as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon
conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date.

 

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair value of the
compound financial instrument as a whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently
re-measured. In addition, the conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised, in which
case, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to other component of equity. When the conversion option remains unexercised at
the maturity date of the convertible note, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to retained earnings. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

 

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds.  Transaction costs relating to the equity component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs
relating to the liability component are included in the carrying amount of the liability component and are amortised over the lives of the
convertible notes using the effective interest method. Also refer Note 33 in relation to Compound Financial Instrument (CCPS).
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Financial liabilities

 

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

 

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

 

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

-      it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

-      on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

-      it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument."

 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other income' line item.
The net gain or loss arising on embedded derivative (i.e. equity linked interest payments) measured at FVTPL is recognised as 'Finance
costs'.

 

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on
the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

 

Effective interest (EIR) method

 

EIR is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The EIR
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

 

De-recognition of financial liabilities

 

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An
exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial
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liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

 

2.19      Offsetting of financial instruments

 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

 

2.20      Provisions and contingent liabilities

 

Provisions

 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value
of money is material).

 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

 

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognised because
it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation.  A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare
cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. 

 

The Group does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

 

2.21      Segment reporting
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Operating segments are those components of the business whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
making body (CODM) in the Group to make decisions for performance assessment and resource allocation.

The reporting of segment information is the same as provided to the management for the purpose of the performance assessment and resource
allocation to the segments.

The board of directors of the Group has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker.

Segment accounting policies are in line with the accounting policies of the Group. In addition, the following specific accounting policies
have been followed for segment reporting:

(a)  Revenue and Expenses have been identified to a segment on the basis of relationship to operating activities of the segment. Revenue and
Expenses which relate to enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as “Unallocable”.

(b)  Segment Assets and Segment Liabilities represent Assets and Liabilities in respective segments. Investments, tax related assets and other
assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as “Unallocable”.

 

(c)  Segment non-cash expenses forming part of segment expenses includes the fair value of the employee stock options which is accounted
as employee compensation cost  and is allocated to the segment.

Also refer Note 40 regarding details about segments.

 

2.21 Cash and cash equivalents

 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

 

2.22 Trade receivables

 

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. Trade receivables
are recognized initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing component, when they
are recognized at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance.

 

2.23    Trade and other payables

 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade
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and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

 

2.24 Borrowings

 

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

 

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/(losses).

 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the
reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as
current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the consolidated financial statements for issue, not to
demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

 

 

Textual information (5)

Description of accounting policy for government grants [Text Block]

 

Government grants are recognised where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be
complied with.

When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed
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[610200] Notes - Corporate information and statement of IndAs compliance

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
Disclosure of corporate information notes and other explanatory information 
[TextBlock] 

   Statement of Ind AS compliance [TextBlock] Textual information (6) 
[See below]

Textual information (7) 
[See below]

      Whether there is any departure from Ind AS No No

      Whether there are reclassifications to comparative amounts No No

      Description of reason why reclassification of comparative amounts is 
      impracticable 

  NA
    NA  

      Description of nature of necessary adjustments to provide comparative 
      information     NA       NA  

      Disclosure of significant accounting policies [TextBlock] Textual information (8) 
[See below]

Textual information (9) 
[See below]
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Textual information (6)

Statement of Ind AS compliance [Text Block]

 

(i)   Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)
and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act as applicable.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention, except the following assets and liabilities,
which have been measured at fair value as required by the relevant Ind AS:

-            Certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments);

-           Defined employee benefit plans; and

-            Share-based payment.

 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.) which is the functional currency of the Holding Company. All amounts are
rounded to two decimal places to the nearest Lakh, unless otherwise stated.

 

New and amended standards adopted by the Holding Company

 

The Holding Company has applied the following amendment to Ind AS for the first time for their annual reporting period commencing 1
April 2020:

COVID-19 related concessions amendments to Ind AS 116

 

The amendment listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect
the current or future periods.

 

The list of subsidiaries which are included in the consolidation and the Groups holdings therein is as under:

 

S.
No

Name of Company Relationship Ownership Country
Incorporated

Date of Acquisition/
Incorporation
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1 Handyhome Solutions Pvt. Ltd. Subsidiary 100% India 29-Aug-2016

2 UrbanClap Technologies DMCC Subsidiary 100% United Arab
Emirates

26-Mar-2018

3 UrbanClap Technologies Global B.V. Subsidiary 100% Netherlands 13-Feb-2018

4 Urban Home Experts PTY LTD Subsidiary 100% Australia 01-Oct-2019

5 Urban Home Experts PTE LTD Subsidiary 100% Singapore 19-Sep-2019

6 Urbancare Financial Services Pvt Ltd Subsidiary 100% India 01-Oct-2019

7
Urban Company Arabia for Information
Technology

Subsidiary 100%
Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia

25-Feb-2021

8 Urban Company Employee Welfare Trust Entity controlled by
Directors

100% India 23-Aug-2020

 

 

Textual information (7)

Statement of Ind AS compliance [Text Block]

 

2.1 Statement of compliance

 

The Group has adopted Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) with effect from 1 April 2019 pursuant to notification issued by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs dated 16 February 2015, notifying the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS (Also refer Note 33).

 

These consolidated financial statements are the first consolidated financial statements of the Group under Ind AS. For all periods up to and
including the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group prepared its consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting standards
notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended specified under section 133 and other relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013. Refer to Note 40 for detailed information on how the Group transitioned to Ind AS.
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Textual information (8)

Disclosure of significant accounting policies [Text Block]

URBANCLAP TECHNOLOGIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

 

1.    Corporate information

Urbanclap Technologies India Private Limited ('the Holding  Company') is a private limited company domiciled in India. The Holding
Company and its subsidiaries (collective referred to as "the Group") provides an online portal (www.urbancompany.com) and mobile
application as an intermediary for local services that connects customers to service professionals.

The Group is in the business of providing an online/mobile app marketplace which enables the customers registered on its platform to search
and hire service professionals for their household & business needs.

The registered office of the Holding Company is situated at R-5, PNR House Green Park Market, New Delhi 110016, Delhi, India and its
corporate office is located at Plot No 416, Udyog Vihar Phase III, Sector 20, Gurugram 122016, Haryana, India. The CIN of the Holding
Company is U74140DL2014PTC274413.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by Board of Directors on 30 September 2021.

 

2.    Significant accounting policies

 

(i)   Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)
and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act as applicable.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention, except the following assets and liabilities,
which have been measured at fair value as required by the relevant Ind AS:

-      Certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments);

-      Defined employee benefit plans; and

-      Share-based payment.

 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.) which is the functional currency of the Holding Company. All amounts are
rounded to two decimal places to the nearest Lakh, unless otherwise stated.
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New and amended standards adopted by the Holding Company

 

The Holding Company has applied the following amendment to Ind AS for the first time for their annual reporting period commencing 1
April 2020:

COVID-19 related concessions amendments to Ind AS 116

 

The amendment listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect
the current or future periods.

 

The list of subsidiaries which are included in the consolidation and the Groups holdings therein is as under:

 

S.
No

Name of Company Relationship Ownership Country
Incorporated

Date of Acquisition/
Incorporation

1 Handyhome Solutions Pvt. Ltd. Subsidiary 100% India 29-Aug-2016

2 UrbanClap Technologies DMCC Subsidiary 100% United Arab
Emirates

26-Mar-2018

3 UrbanClap Technologies Global B.V. Subsidiary 100% Netherlands 13-Feb-2018

4 Urban Home Experts PTY LTD Subsidiary 100% Australia 01-Oct-2019

5 Urban Home Experts PTE LTD Subsidiary 100% Singapore 19-Sep-2019

6 Urbancare Financial Services Pvt Ltd Subsidiary 100% India 01-Oct-2019

7 Urban Company Arabia for Information
Technology

Subsidiary 100% Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia

25-Feb-2021

8 Urban Company Employee Welfare Trust Entity controlled by
Directors

100% India 23-Aug-2020

 

(ii)  Basis of consolidation

 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries. For this
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purpose, an entity which is, directly or indirectly, controlled by the Holding Company is treated as subsidiary. The Holding Company
together with its subsidiaries constitute the Group. Control exists when the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, has power over the
investee, is exposed to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, loses control of the subsidiary. Income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss from the date the Holding Company, directly or indirectly,
gains control until the date when the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, ceases to control the subsidiary.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group combines financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries line-by-line
by adding together the like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. All intra-group assets, liabilities, income, expenses and
unrealised profits/losses on intra-group transactions are eliminated on consolidation. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
harmonised to ensure the consistency with the policies adopted by the Holding Company.

The consolidated financial statements have been presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as Holding Companys standalone
financial statements. Profit or loss and other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Holding Company and to the
non-controlling interests and have been shown separately in the financial statements.

Non-controlling interests represent that part of the total comprehensive income and net assets of subsidiaries attributable to interest which is
not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Holding Company.

 

(iii) Use of estimate and judgements

 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the managements best knowledge of current events and actions and historical
experience, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. Therefore, actual results could differ from these estimates.

 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

 

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to
be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about
each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected
line item in the financial statements.
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Fair value measurement of financial instruments

 

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model and other option
pricing models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

 

Defined benefit plans

 

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

 

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit
obligation.

 

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at
interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Also refer Note 32.

 

 

Useful life of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible assets

 

Periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an assets expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of
its life. The useful lives and residual values of Group's assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed at
each financial year end.

 

Revenue recognition 
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In revenue arrangements where more than one service is provided to the customer, customer consideration is allocated between the services
using fair value principles. The fair values determined for deliverables may impact the timing of the recognition of revenue. The Group
generally determines the fair value of individual elements based on a cost plus a reasonable margin. Revision to the estimates of these fair
values may significantly affect the allocation of total arrangement consideration among the individual elements.

 

 

Share based payment

 

The Group initially measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using option pricing models to determine the fair value
on grant date. The management also requires to determine the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of
the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them.

 

Management has determined that non-market performance condition (occurrence of qualifying event) that would trigger vesting of equity
settled share based payment arrangement is not probable as at the balance sheet date. Accordingly, no expense in respect of that share based
payment expense has been recognised during the year. Also refer Note 24. If the management had determined that the occurrence of the
qualifying event was probable as at March 31, 2021, the impact on the share based benefit expense and the profit before tax for the year
would not have been significant.

 

Lease term

 

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the
use of such option is reasonably certain. In evaluating the lease term, the Group considers factors such as any significant leasehold
improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to
Groups operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The discount rate is
generally based on the incremental borrowing rate, to determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group uses recent third-party financing
options received by the Holding Company, adjusted to lease term etc., specific to the lease being evaluated.

 

Taxes

 

Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. 

 

 

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that may have a financial impact on the Group and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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(iv) Summary of significant accounting policies

 

a) Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset is classified as current when it
is:

-     Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

-     Held primarily for the purpose of trading

-     Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

-     Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

 

A liability is classified as current when:

-     It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

-     It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

-     It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

-     There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

 

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
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The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group
has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

 

(v)  Fair value measurements and hierarchy

 

The Group measures financial instruments, such as investments and derivatives at fair value at each Balance Sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either:

 

(a) In the principal market for the asset or liability; or

(b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.

 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participants ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use, or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Group
uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances, and for which sufficient data are available to measure the fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy based on its nature, characteristics and risks

 

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
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measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

 

 

(vi) Employee benefits

1)   Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense on accrual basis.

2)   Defined contribution plan

The Group makes defined contribution to the Government Employee Provident Fund and superannuation fund, which are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, on accrual basis. The Group recognises contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when
an employee renders the related service. The Group has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

3)   Defined benefit plan

The Holding Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India. The Holding Companys liabilities under The Payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972 are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial year using the projected unit credit method.

An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit
obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at
interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

This cost is included in the Employee benefits expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Re-measurement gains or losses and return on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net Interest on the net defined benefit liability) arising from changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in OCI. These are presented as re-measurement gains or losses on defined benefit plans
under other comprehensive income in other equity. Remeasurements gains or losses are not reclassified subsequently to the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

4)   Compensated absences

The employees of the Group are entitled to compensated absences. The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilised accumulating
compensated absences and utilise it in future periods or receive cash at retirement or termination of employment. The Group records an
obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increases this entitlement. The Group
measures the expected cost of compensated absences as the additional amount that the Group expects to pay as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the end of the reporting period. The Group recognises accumulated compensated absences based on
actuarial valuation in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Group presents the entire leave as a current liability in the Balance Sheet, since it
does not have any unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date.

 

(vii)  Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services/goods are transferred to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those services and excluding taxes or duties collected on
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behalf of the government.

Commission income

The Group acts as an agent between service professional and an end customer and earns commission as its revenue. Commission Income is
recognised net of discounts, rebates and any other incentive provided to the end customer.

Revenue from sale of services is recognized upon successful completion of services as per agreement, such revenue is recognized at point in
time.

Revenue from subscription (from end Customer and from service professional) is recognised over the subscription period.

A contract liability is recognised on account of unsettled advances received from /due to customers for subscription.

Sale of goods

The Group sells products to the service professionals which are used by the service professional for rendering services on the platform.
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at a point in time i.e. when control of goods are transferred to the service professional. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Group has
used a practical expedient as permitted under para 63 of Ind AS 115.

Discounts, wallet balance, credits and other incentives

The Group periodically provides incentive offers to the end customers. These promotions are generally in the nature of discount coupons,
cash credits, wallet balance etc. which are to be applied against the transaction price. These incentive offers are recorded as reduction in
commission revenue on a transaction by transaction basis. Discounts in excess of revenue earned from the end customer at an individual
transaction level are recorded as Marketing Expenses.

Credit expiry revenue

Wallet balance maintained by service professionals as per the agreed terms, on expiry is recorded as revenue in the books of the Group.

Interest income

Interest income on all debt instruments is measured either at amortised cost. Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the EIR, the Group estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument. Interest income is included in other income in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

(viii)    Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be
complied with.

When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.

 

(ix)    Share-based payments

Employees of the Group receive remuneration in the form of equity-settled instruments and stock appreciation rights for rendering services
over a defined vesting period. Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date using an appropriate valuation model.
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The Holding Company has Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) for eligible employees of the Group which entitles the employee to receive
equity instruments of the Holding Company, provided the specified vesting conditions are met and is classified as 'Equity-settled share-based
payments'.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed over the vesting period on a straight line
basis, based on the Holding Company's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At
the end of each reporting period, the Holding Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled employee benefits reserve.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/ or service conditions have not been
met.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

 

(x)     Leases

The Groups lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices. 

 

Right-of-use assets 

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

         the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

         any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received

         any initial direct costs, and

         restoration costs.

The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and
adjusted for any re measurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is
any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Lease liabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise of fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments. The
lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification arising due to change in the lease term, change in
the lease payments or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. when the lease liability is re-measured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property, and lease liabilities, separately in the Balance
Sheet.

Short-term leases and leases of low value assets The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e.,
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies
the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

 

(xi)    Taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current Tax payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the Statement of Profit
and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss are recognised outside the Statement of
Profit and Loss (either in OCI or in equity). Current tax and deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity

 

(xii)  Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting
preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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(xiii) Foreign currency transactions, balances and translations

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded applying the exchange rate at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency, remaining unsettled at the end of the year, are translated at the closing exchange rates prevailing on the
Balance Sheet date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on the change in fair value of the item (i.e. translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI) or the Statement of Profit and Loss are also reclassified in OCI or the Statement of Profit and Loss,
respectively).

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet

income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions), and

All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

 

(xiv) Property, plant & equipment

Property, plant & equipment are stated in the Balance Sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost includes acquisition cost, taxes, duties, freight, insurance and other incidental expenses incurred for bringing the assets to the working
condition required for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives net of residual values. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

 

 

 

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

 

Assets category Estimated useful life

Computers End User Products 3 years
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Plant and Machinery * 2 years

Office Equipment 5 Years

Furniture and Fittings 10 years

Computer Server & Network 6 years

Electrical equipment and installation 10 years

 

*Based on technical evaluation, the management believes that the useful lives as given above best represents the period over which the
management expects to use these assets. Hence, the useful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives as described under Part C of
Schedule II of The Companies Act, 2013.

 

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of their useful life or the lease term, unless the entity expects to use the assets
beyond the lease term.

Based on managements assessment, items of property, plant and equipment individually costing less than five thousand rupees, are
depreciated within one year from the date the asset is ready to use or useful life of class of asset to which these assets belong.

 

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

 

(xv)  Intangible assets

 

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life on straight line method.

 

Assets category Estimated useful life

Software 3 years
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Website domain 3 years

 

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, and are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

 

(xvi) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/ external factors. . An impairment loss, if any, is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in
which an asset is identified as impaired.  Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on
inventories, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the Statement of profit or loss.

 

 

 

(xvii)   Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories in the ordinary course of business less less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Obsolete and defective inventory are duly provided for, basis the management estimates.

 

(xviii) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
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appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for
at trade date.

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

Classification and measurement of financial instruments

Amortised Cost

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for debt instruments that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

 

-      the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

-      the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other income in the profit or loss.

The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to investment in redeemable
preference shares, loans to employees, trade and other receivables.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI (except for debt instruments that are designated
as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

 

-      the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets; and

-      the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that
meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise
from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Group has not designated any debt
instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset
and is included in the Other income line item.
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The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the management has elected to present fair value gains and
losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or
loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when
the Groups right to receive payments is established.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, debt
instruments, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset not designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Group estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Group measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk
on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash
shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over
the next 12 months.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group uses the
change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected
credit losses. To make that assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope
of Ind AS 115, the Group always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Group has used a practical expedient
as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account
historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

 

De-recognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the assets carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On de-recognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred
asset), the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing
involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the
part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
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Debt and equity instruments issued by an entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments (compulsorily convertible preference shares) issued by the Group are classified separately as financial
liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

A conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Groups
own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible
instruments. This amount is recognised as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon
conversion or at the instruments maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair value of the
compound financial instrument as a whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently
re-measured. In addition, the conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised, in which
case, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to other component of equity. When the conversion option remains unexercised at
the maturity date of the convertible note, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to retained earnings. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds.  Transaction costs relating to the equity component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs
relating to the liability component are included in the carrying amount of the liability component and are amortised over the lives of the
convertible notes using the effective interest method. Also refer Note 34.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

-      it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

-      on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

-      it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument."

 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the Other income' line item.
The net gain or loss arising on embedded derivative (i.e. equity linked interest payments) measured at FVTPL is recognised as 'Finance
costs'.

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on
the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.



 

87

URBANCLAP TECHNOLOGIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2020 to 31/03/2021 

Effective interest (EIR) method

EIR is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The EIR
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Groups obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An
exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial
liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

 

(xix)  Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

 

(xx)  Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value
of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognised because
it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation.  A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare
cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. 

The Group does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

 

(xxi) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.
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(xxii) Trade receivables

 

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. Trade receivables
are recognized initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing component, when they
are recognized at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance.

 

(xxiii)  Trade and other payables

 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade
and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

 

(xxiv)    Segment reporting

 

Operating segments are those components of the business whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
making body (CODM) in the Group to make decisions for performance assessment and resource allocation.

The reporting of segment information is the same as provided to the management for the purpose of the performance assessment and resource
allocation to the segments.

The board of directors of the Group has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker.

Segment accounting policies are in line with the accounting policies of the Group. In addition, the following specific accounting policies
have been followed for segment reporting:

 

(a)  Revenue and Expenses have been identified to a segment on the basis of relationship to operating activities of the segment. Revenue and
Expenses which relate to enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as Unallocable.

 

(b)  Segment Assets and Segment Liabilities represent Assets and Liabilities in respective segments. Investments, tax related assets and other
assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as Unallocable.

 

(c)  Segment non-cash expenses forming part of segment expenses includes the fair value of the employee stock options which is accounted
as employee compensation cost  and is allocated to the segment.
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Also refer Note 40 regarding details about segments.
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Textual information (9)

Disclosure of significant accounting policies [Text Block]

 

URBANCLAP TECHNOLOGIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

(AMOUNT IN RS. LAKHS, UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

 

1.     Corporate Information

 

Urbanclap Technologies India Private Limited ('the Holding  Company') and its subsidiaries (collective referred to as "the Group") provides
an online portal (www.urbanclap.com) and mobile application as an intermediary for local services that connects customers to service
professionals. The Group is also involved in selling products to the service professionals which are used by them for rendering services.

 

Group is in the business of providing an online/mobile app marketplace which enables the customers registered on its platform to search and
hire service professionals for their household & business needs.

 

The registered office of the Holding Company is situated at R-5, PNR House Green Park Market, New Delhi 110016, Delhi, India and its
corporate office is located at Plot No 416, Udyog Vihar Phase III, Sector 20, Gurugram 122016, Haryana, India. The CIN of the Holding
Company is U74140DL2014PTC274413.

 

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by Board of Directors on 08
September 2020.

 

2.     Significant accounting policies

 

2.1         Statement of compliance

 

The Group has adopted Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) with effect from 1 April 2019 pursuant to notification issued by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs dated 16 February 2015, notifying the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS (Also refer Note 33).
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These consolidated financial statements are the first consolidated financial statements of the Group under Ind AS. For all periods up to and
including the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group prepared its consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting standards
notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended specified under section 133 and other relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013. Refer to Note 40 for detailed information on how the Group transitioned to Ind AS.

 

2.2         Basis of preparation and presentation

 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for certain financial assets
and liabilities measured at fair value where the Ind AS requires a different accounting treatment (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments), defined benefit plans and share based payments.

 

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

 

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

 

New and amended standards adopted by the Group:

- Ind AS 116, Leases

- Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments — Appendix C to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes

- Amendment to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes

 

The details regarding adoption of Ind AS 116 are disclosed in Note 30. The other amendments listed above did not have any impact on the
amounts recognized in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

 

The list of subsidiaries which are included in the consolidation and the Group’s holdings therein is as under:
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S. No Name of Company Relationship Ownership Country Incorporated Date of Acquisition/ Incorporation

1 Handyhome Solutions Pvt. Ltd. Subsidiary 100% India 29-Aug-2016

2 UrbanClap Technologies DMCC Subsidiary 100% United Arab Emirates 26-Mar-2018

3 UrbanClap Technologies Global B.V. Subsidiary 100% Netherlands 13-Feb-2018

4 Urban Home Experts PTY LTD Subsidiary 100% Australia 01-Oct-2019

5 Urban Home Experts PTE LTD Subsidiary 100% Singapore 19-Sep-2019

6 Urbancare Financial Services Pvt Ltd Subsidiary 100% India 01-Oct-2019

 

 

All amounts disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Lakhs as per the requirement of
Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

 

2.3         Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries. For this
purpose, an entity which is, directly or indirectly, controlled by the Holding Company is treated as subsidiary. The Holding Company
together with its subsidiaries constitute the Group. Control exists when the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, has power over the
investee, is exposed to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, loses control of the subsidiary. Income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss from the date the Holding Company, directly or indirectly,
gains control until the date when the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, ceases to control the subsidiary.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group combines financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries line-by-line
by adding together the like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. All intra-group assets, liabilities, income, expenses and
unrealised profits/losses on intra-group transactions are eliminated on consolidation. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
harmonised to ensure the consistency with the policies adopted by the Holding Company.

The consolidated financial statements have been presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as Holding Company’s standalone
financial statements. Profit or loss and other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Holding Company and to the
non-controlling interests and have been shown separately in the financial statements.

Non-controlling interests represent that part of the total comprehensive income and net assets of subsidiaries attributable to interest which is
not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Holding Company.

 

 

2.4         Use of estimate and judgements
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The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions and
historical experience, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. Therefore, actual results could differ from these estimates.

 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

 

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to
be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about
each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected
line item in the financial statements.

 

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model and other option
pricing models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

 

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

 

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit
obligation.

 

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at
interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Also refer Note 31.
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Useful life of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible assets

Periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of
its life. The useful lives and residual values of Group's assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed at
each financial year end.

 

Revenue recognition 

In revenue arrangements where more than one service is provided to the customer, customer consideration is allocated between the services
using fair value principles. The fair values determined for deliverables may impact the timing of the recognition of revenue. The Group
generally determines the fair value of individual elements based on a cost plus a reasonable margin. Revision to the estimates of these fair
values may significantly affect the allocation of total arrangement consideration among the individual elements.

 

Share based payment

The Group initially measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using option pricing model (Black-Scholes Model) to
determine the fair value on grant date. The management also requires to determine the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model
including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them.

 

Lease term

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the
use of such option is reasonably certain. In evaluating the lease term, the Group considers factors such as any significant leasehold
improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to
Group’s operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The discount rate is
generally based on the incremental borrowing rate, to determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group uses recent third-party financing
options received by the Group, adjusted to lease term etc., specific to the lease being evaluated.

 

Taxes

Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. 

 

 

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that may have a financial impact on the Group and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

 

2.5         Current versus non-current classification

 

The Group presents assets and liabilities in balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset is classified as current when it
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is:

(i)    Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

(ii)   Held primarily for the purpose of trading

(iii)  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(iv)  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

 

All other assets are classified as non-current.

 

A liability is classified as current when:

(i)    It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

(ii)   It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

(iii)  It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(iv)  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

 

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

 

The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

 

2.6         Revenue recognition

 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services/goods are transferred to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those services and excluding taxes or duties collected on
behalf of government.
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Commission income

The Group acts as an agent between service professional and an end customer and earns commission as its revenue. Commission Income is
recognised net of discounts, rebates and any other incentive provided to the end customer.

Revenue from sale of services is recognized upon successful completion of services as per agreement, such revenue is recognized at point in
time.

 

Revenue from subscription (from end Customer and from service professional) is recognised over the subscription period.

A contract liability is recognised on account of unsettled advances received from /due to customers for subscription.

 

Sale of goods

The Group sells products to the Service professionals which are used by the service professional for rendering services on the platform.
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at a point in time i.e. when control of goods are transferred to the service professional.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed, as revenue are exclusive of goods and
services tax (GST).

 

 

Discounts, wallet balance, credits and other incentives

Urbanclap periodically provides incentive offers to the end customers. These promotions are generally in the nature of discount coupons,
cash credits, wallet balance etc. to be applied against the transaction price. These incentive offers are recorded as reduction in commission
revenue on a transaction by transaction basis. Discounts in excess of revenue earned from the end customer at an individual transaction level
are recorded as Marketing Expenses.

 

Credit expiry revenue

Service professional maintain balance in their wallet. If the wallet balance remains unutilized for 364 days, the balance will get expired. As
per the terms, On expiry the available balance in wallet is recorded as revenue in the books of the Group.

 

 

Other Income

Profit on sale of investments and fair value impact on mark to market contracts are recognised on transaction completion or on reporting date
as applicable.
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Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate (EIR) method or time-proportion method, based on rate implicit in the
transaction.

 

 

2.7         Employee benefit expenses

 

Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance, Gratuity Fund and Leave encashment.

 

(i)          Post-employment benefit costs and termination benefits

Defined contribution plan

Payments to defined contribution benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

 

Contribution towards provident fund and Employee State Insurance for certain employees is made to the regulatory authorities, where the
Group has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Group does not carry any further
obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis.

 

Defined benefit plan

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being
carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the
asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge
or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive
income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in
the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined
benefit liability or asset.

 

The Group provides for gratuity covering eligible employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan
provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on
the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. The Group's liability is not funded by any plan asset."

 

(ii)        Short-term employee benefits and Long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the
related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.
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Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
in exchange for the related service.

 

 

 

 

Leave Encashment

The Obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet as the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement
for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement in expected to occur.

 

(iii)       Employee share based payments

 

The Holding Company has Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) for eligible employees of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which
entitles the employee to receive equity instruments of the holding company, provided the specified vesting conditions are met and is
classified as 'Equity-settled share-based payments'.

 

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date using "Black Scholes European Call Option Pricing Model".

 

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
equity-settled employee benefits reserve.

 

2.8         Leases

 

The Group has adopted Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting period beginning 1 April 2019. Under the new standard, all lease contracts,
with limited exceptions, are recognized in the consolidated financial statements by way of right-of-use assets and corresponding lease
liabilities. The Group has applied the standard to its leases, using the modified prospective approach at the date of initial application with the
option to measure the right to use asset at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to that lease recognized in the balance sheet immediately before the date of initial application.

The Group has applied the new standard to Property rent agreement to evaluate whether these contracts contains a lease or not. Based on
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, the Group has evaluated such arrangements to be leases. Under the new standard,
all lease contracts, with limited exceptions, are recognized in the consolidated financial statements by way of right-of-use assets and
corresponding lease liabilities.
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However, as on transition date, the Group can apply practical expedients on initial application i.e. not to recognize right of use assets and
lease liabilities for leases with remaining lease term of upto 12 months from the date of initial application (i.e. 1 April 2019) by class of
asset."

Also refer to Note 30 regarding the adoption of Ind AS 116.

 

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

 

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

 

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses incremental borrowing rate, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security
and conditions. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Group may adopt the incremental borrowing rate for the entire portfolio
of leases.

 

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

·         the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

·         any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received

·         any initial direct costs, and

·         restoration costs.

The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and
adjusted for any re measurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is
any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

 

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

 

 

2.9         Taxation

 

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
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Current Tax

Current Tax payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the statement of profit
and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.

 

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

 

2.10      GST input credit

 

GST input credit is accounted for in the books in the period in which the underlying service received is accounted and when there is
reasonable certainty in availing / utilising the credits.

 

2.11      Earnings Per Share

 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting
preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

 

 

2.12      Foreign currency transactions and translations
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The functional and presentation currency of the Group is Indian Rupees which represents the currency of the primary economic environment
in which it operates.

 

Transactions in currencies other than the Group’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated using
mean exchange rate prevailing on the last day of the reporting period.

 

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

 

2.13      Property, plant & equipment

 

Property, plant & equipment are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

 

Cost includes acquisition cost, taxes, duties, freight, insurance and other incidental expenses incurred for bringing the assets to the working
condition required for their intended use.

 

Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

 

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

 

Assets category Estimated useful life

Computers End User Products 3 years

Plant and Machinery * 2 years

Office Equipment 5 Years

Furniture and Fittings 10 years

Computer Server & Network 6 years

Electrical equipment and installation 10 years
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*Based on technical evaluation, the management believes that the useful lives as given above best represents the period over which the
management expects to use these assets. Hence, the useful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives as described under Part C of
Schedule II of The Companies Act, 2013.

 

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the initial period of lease or the useful life of asset whichever is lower.

 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

 

2.14      Intangible Assets

 

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

 

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life on straight line method.

 

Assets category Estimated useful life

Software 3 years

Website domain 3 years

 

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, and are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

 

2.15      Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

 

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
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estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
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individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

 

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

 

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

 

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

 

2.16      Inventories

 

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

 

 

2.17      Investment in subsidiaries

 

The Group records the investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries at cost less impairment loss, if any. On disposal of investment in
subsidiary, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss. The Group
avails the option to measure its investment at deemed cost at previous GAAP carrying amount at that date.

 

2.18      Financial instruments
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A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

 

Financial assets

 

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

 

Classification of financial instruments

 

Amortised Cost

 

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for debt instruments that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

 

-      the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

-      the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other income in the profit or loss.

 

The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to investment in redeemable
preference shares, loans to employees, trade and other receivables.
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Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

 

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI (except for debt instruments that are designated
as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

 

-      the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets; and

-      the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that
meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

 

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise
from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Group has not designated any debt
instrument as at FVTPL.

 

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset
and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

 

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the management has elected to present fair value gains and
losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or
loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

 

Impairment of financial assets

 

The Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, debt
instruments, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset not designated as at FVTPL.
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Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Group estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

 

The Group measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk
on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash
shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over
the next 12 months.

 

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group uses the
change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected
credit losses. To make that assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

 

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope
of Ind AS 115, the Group always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

 

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Group has used a practical expedient
as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account
historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

 

De-recognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

 

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

 

On de-recognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred
asset), the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing
involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the
part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments

 

Debt and equity instruments issued by an entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

 

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

 

Compound financial instruments

 

Compound financial instruments (compulsorily convertible preference shares) issued by the Group are classified separately as financial
liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

 

A conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Group’s own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

 

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible
instruments. This amount is recognised as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon
conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date.

 

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair value of the
compound financial instrument as a whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently
re-measured. In addition, the conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised, in which
case, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to other component of equity. When the conversion option remains unexercised at
the maturity date of the convertible note, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to retained earnings. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

 

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds.  Transaction costs relating to the equity component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs
relating to the liability component are included in the carrying amount of the liability component and are amortised over the lives of the
convertible notes using the effective interest method. Also refer Note 33 in relation to Compound Financial Instrument (CCPS).
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Financial liabilities

 

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

 

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

 

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

-      it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

-      on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

-      it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument."

 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other income' line item.
The net gain or loss arising on embedded derivative (i.e. equity linked interest payments) measured at FVTPL is recognised as 'Finance
costs'.

 

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on
the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

 

Effective interest (EIR) method

 

EIR is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The EIR
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

 

De-recognition of financial liabilities

 

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An
exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial
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liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

 

2.19      Offsetting of financial instruments

 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

 

2.20      Provisions and contingent liabilities

 

Provisions

 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value
of money is material).

 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

 

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognised because
it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation.  A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare
cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. 

 

The Group does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

 

2.21      Segment reporting
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Operating segments are those components of the business whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
making body (CODM) in the Group to make decisions for performance assessment and resource allocation.

The reporting of segment information is the same as provided to the management for the purpose of the performance assessment and resource
allocation to the segments.

The board of directors of the Group has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker.

Segment accounting policies are in line with the accounting policies of the Group. In addition, the following specific accounting policies
have been followed for segment reporting:

(a)  Revenue and Expenses have been identified to a segment on the basis of relationship to operating activities of the segment. Revenue and
Expenses which relate to enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as “Unallocable”.

(b)  Segment Assets and Segment Liabilities represent Assets and Liabilities in respective segments. Investments, tax related assets and other
assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as “Unallocable”.

 

(c)  Segment non-cash expenses forming part of segment expenses includes the fair value of the employee stock options which is accounted
as employee compensation cost  and is allocated to the segment.

Also refer Note 40 regarding details about segments.

 

2.21 Cash and cash equivalents

 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

 

2.22 Trade receivables

 

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. Trade receivables
are recognized initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing component, when they
are recognized at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance.

 

2.23    Trade and other payables

 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade
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and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

 

2.24 Borrowings

 

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

 

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/(losses).

 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the
reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as
current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the consolidated financial statements for issue, not to
demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

 

 

[610300] Notes - Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
Disclosure of changes in accounting policies, accounting estimates and errors 
[TextBlock] 
   Disclosure of initial application of standards or interpretations 
   [TextBlock] 
      Whether initial application of an Ind AS has an effect on the 
      current period or any prior period 

No No

   Disclosure of voluntary change in accounting policy [TextBlock] 
      Whether there is any voluntary change in accounting policy No No

   Disclosure of changes in accounting estimates [TextBlock] 
      Whether there are changes in acounting estimates during the year No No
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[400600] Notes - Property, plant and equipment

Disclosure of additional information about property plant and equipment [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Buildings [Member] Other building [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member] Owned and leased assets [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of additional information about 
      property plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of additional information about 
         property plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Depreciation method, property, plant and 
            equipment 

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

            Useful lives or depreciation rates, property, 
            plant and equipment 

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

            Whether property, plant and equipment are 
            stated at revalued amount 

No No No No

Disclosure of additional information about property plant and equipment [Table] ..(2)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Other building [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Assets held under lease [Member] Owned assets [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of additional information about 
      property plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of additional information about 
         property plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Depreciation method, property, plant and 
            equipment 

straight-line basis straight-line basis NA NA

            Useful lives or depreciation rates, property, 
            plant and equipment 

over the shorter of
the lease term and
useful life of the
underlying asset

over the shorter of
the lease term and
useful life of the
underlying asset

NA NA

            Whether property, plant and equipment are 
            stated at revalued amount 

No No No No

Disclosure of additional information about property plant and equipment [Table] ..(3)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Plant and equipment [Member] Other plant and equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member] Owned and leased assets [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of additional information about 
      property plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of additional information about 
         property plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Depreciation method, property, plant and 
            equipment 

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

            Useful lives or depreciation rates, property, 
            plant and equipment 

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

            Whether property, plant and equipment are 
            stated at revalued amount 

No No No No
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Disclosure of additional information about property plant and equipment [Table] ..(4)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Other plant and equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Assets held under lease [Member] Owned assets [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of additional information about 
      property plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of additional information about 
         property plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Depreciation method, property, plant and 
            equipment 

NA NA straight-line basis straight-line basis

            Useful lives or depreciation rates, property, 
            plant and equipment 

NA NA 2 years 2 years

            Whether property, plant and equipment are 
            stated at revalued amount 

No No No No

Disclosure of additional information about property plant and equipment [Table] ..(5)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Furniture and fixtures [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member] Assets held under lease [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of additional information about 
      property plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of additional information about 
         property plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Depreciation method, property, plant and 
            equipment 

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

NA NA

            Useful lives or depreciation rates, property, 
            plant and equipment 

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

NA NA

            Whether property, plant and equipment are 
            stated at revalued amount 

No No No No

Disclosure of additional information about property plant and equipment [Table] ..(6)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Furniture and fixtures [Member] Office equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned assets [Member] Owned and leased assets [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of additional information about 
      property plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of additional information about 
         property plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Depreciation method, property, plant and 
            equipment 

straight-line basis straight-line basis
Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

            Useful lives or depreciation rates, property, 
            plant and equipment 

10 years 10 years
Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

            Whether property, plant and equipment are 
            stated at revalued amount 

No No No No

Disclosure of additional information about property plant and equipment [Table] ..(7)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Office equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Assets held under lease [Member] Owned assets [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of additional information about 
      property plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of additional information about 
         property plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Depreciation method, property, plant and 
            equipment 

NA NA straight-line basis straight-line basis

            Useful lives or depreciation rates, property, 
            plant and equipment 

NA NA 5 years 5 years

            Whether property, plant and equipment are 
            stated at revalued amount 

No No No No
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Disclosure of additional information about property plant and equipment [Table] ..(8)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Computer equipments [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member] Assets held under lease [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of additional information about 
      property plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of additional information about 
         property plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Depreciation method, property, plant and 
            equipment 

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

NA NA

            Useful lives or depreciation rates, property, 
            plant and equipment 

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

NA NA

            Whether property, plant and equipment are 
            stated at revalued amount 

No No No No

Disclosure of additional information about property plant and equipment [Table] ..(9)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Computer equipments [Member] Leasehold improvements [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned assets [Member] Owned and leased assets [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of additional information about 
      property plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of additional information about 
         property plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Depreciation method, property, plant and 
            equipment 

straight-line basis straight-line basis
Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

            Useful lives or depreciation rates, property, 
            plant and equipment 

Computers End
User Products: 3
years & Computer
Server & Network:
6 years

Computers End User
Products: 3 years &
Computer Server &
Network: 6 years

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

            Whether property, plant and equipment are 
            stated at revalued amount 

No No No No

Disclosure of additional information about property plant and equipment [Table] ..(10)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Leasehold improvements [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Assets held under lease [Member] Owned assets [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of additional information about 
      property plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of additional information about 
         property plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Depreciation method, property, plant and 
            equipment 

NA NA straight-line basis straight-line basis

            Useful lives or depreciation rates, property, 
            plant and equipment 

NA NA

shorter of their
useful life or the
lease term, unless
the entity expects to
use the assets
beyond the lease
term

shorter of their useful
life or the lease term,
unless the entity
expects to use the
assets beyond the
lease term

            Whether property, plant and equipment are 
            stated at revalued amount 

No No No No
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Disclosure of additional information about property plant and equipment [Table] ..(11)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR

Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Other property, plant and equipment
[Member]

Other property, plant and equipment,
others [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member] Owned and leased assets [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of additional information about 
      property plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of additional information about 
         property plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Depreciation method, property, plant and 
            equipment 

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

            Useful lives or depreciation rates, property, 
            plant and equipment 

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

            Whether property, plant and equipment are 
            stated at revalued amount 

No No No No

Disclosure of additional information about property plant and equipment [Table] ..(12)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Other property, plant and equipment, others [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Assets held under lease [Member] Owned assets [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of additional information about 
      property plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of additional information about 
         property plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Depreciation method, property, plant and 
            equipment 

NA NA straight-line basis straight-line basis

            Useful lives or depreciation rates, property, 
            plant and equipment 

NA NA 10 years 10 years

            Whether property, plant and equipment are 
            stated at revalued amount 

No No No No

Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Property, plant and equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Carrying amount [Member] Gross carrying amount [Member]

31/03/2021 31/03/2020
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

1,173.61 9,179.6

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

3,040.37 190.55

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

3,040.37 190.55

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

-1,866.76 8,989.05

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

(A)   9,116.41 (B)   12,561.42 12,923.67 14,790.43

Footnotes
 (A) Property, plant and equipment : 924.1 Right-of-use assets : 8192.31

 (B) Property, plant and equipment : 783.22 Right-of-use assets : 11778.2
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(2)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Property, plant and equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Gross carrying

amount [Member]
Accumulated depreciation and impairment [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

2,541.23 1,867.31

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

2,541.23 1,867.31

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

962.98 102.72

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

962.98 102.72

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

1,578.25 1,764.59

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

5,801.38 3,807.26 2,229.01 464.42

Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(3)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Buildings [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Carrying amount [Member] Gross carrying

amount [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

667.85 8,720.94 667.85

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

-2,237.92 -1,527.29

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

-2,237.92 -1,527.29

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

2,015.82 0 2,901.43

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

2,015.82 0 2,901.43

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

-3,585.89 7,193.65 -2,233.58

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

8,192.31 11,778.2 4,584.55 11,396.18
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(4)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Buildings [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Gross carrying amount [Member] Accumulated depreciation and

impairment [Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

8,720.94

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

2,237.92 1,527.29

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

2,237.92 1,527.29

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 885.61 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 885.61 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

8,720.94 1,352.31 1,527.29

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

13,629.76 4,908.82 3,203.87 1,851.56

Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(5)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Buildings [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased
assets [Member]

Assets held under lease [Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Accumulated
depreciation and

impairment
[Member]

Gross carrying amount [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

667.85 8,720.94

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

2,901.43 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

2,901.43 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

-2,233.58 8,720.94

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

324.27 11,396.18 13,629.76 4,908.82
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(6)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Buildings [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Assets held under lease [Member] Owned assets
[Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Accumulated depreciation and impairment [Member] Gross carrying
amount [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

2,237.92 1,527.29

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

2,237.92 1,527.29

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

885.61 0 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

885.61 0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

1,352.31 1,527.29 0

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

3,203.87 1,851.56 324.27 0
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(7)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Buildings [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Gross carrying amount [Member] Accumulated depreciation and

impairment [Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

0 0

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

0 0 0

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

0 0 0 0
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(8)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR

Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Buildings
[Member]

Other building [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned assets
[Member]

Owned and leased assets [Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Accumulated
depreciation and

impairment
[Member]

Carrying amount [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

667.85 8,720.94

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

-2,237.92 -1,527.29

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

-2,237.92 -1,527.29

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

2,015.82 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

2,015.82 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

-3,585.89 7,193.65

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

0 8,192.31 11,778.2 4,584.55
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(9)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Other building [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Gross carrying amount [Member]

Accumulated
depreciation and

impairment
[Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

667.85 8,720.94

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

2,237.92

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

2,237.92

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

2,901.43 0 885.61

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

2,901.43 0 885.61

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

-2,233.58 8,720.94 1,352.31

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

11,396.18 13,629.76 4,908.82 3,203.87
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(10)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Other building [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member] Assets held under lease [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Accumulated depreciation and

impairment [Member]
Carrying amount [Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

667.85 8,720.94

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

1,527.29 -2,237.92 -1,527.29

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

1,527.29 -2,237.92 -1,527.29

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 2,015.82 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 2,015.82 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

1,527.29 -3,585.89 7,193.65

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

1,851.56 324.27 8,192.31 11,778.2

Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(11)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Other building [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Assets held under lease [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Carrying amount

[Member]
Gross carrying amount [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

667.85 8,720.94

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

2,901.43 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

2,901.43 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

-2,233.58 8,720.94

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

4,584.55 11,396.18 13,629.76 4,908.82
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(12)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Other building [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Assets held under lease [Member] Owned assets
[Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Accumulated depreciation and impairment [Member] Carrying amount
[Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

2,237.92 1,527.29 0

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

2,237.92 1,527.29 0

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

885.61 0 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

885.61 0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

1,352.31 1,527.29 0

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

3,203.87 1,851.56 324.27 0
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(13)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Other building [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Carrying amount [Member] Gross carrying amount [Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0 0 0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

0

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

0

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

0 0 0

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

0 0 0 0

Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(14)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Other building [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Gross carrying

amount [Member]
Accumulated depreciation and impairment [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

0 0

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

0 0

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

0 0 0 0
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(15)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Plant and equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Carrying amount [Member] Gross carrying

amount [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0 0 0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

0 -83.89

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

0 -83.89

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 84.63 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 84.63 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

0 -168.52 0

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

0 0 168.52 0

Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(16)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Plant and equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Gross carrying amount [Member] Accumulated depreciation and

impairment [Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

0 83.89

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

0 83.89

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

177.15 0 92.52

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

177.15 0 92.52

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

-177.15 0 -8.63

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

0 177.15 0 0
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(17)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Plant and equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased
assets [Member]

Assets held under lease [Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Accumulated
depreciation and

impairment
[Member]

Gross carrying amount [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0 0

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

0 0

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

8.63 0 0 0

Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(18)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Plant and equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Assets held under lease [Member] Owned assets
[Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Accumulated depreciation and impairment [Member] Gross carrying
amount [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

0 0

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

0 0 0

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

0 0 0 0
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(19)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Plant and equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Gross carrying amount [Member] Accumulated depreciation and

impairment [Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

0 83.89

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

0 83.89

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

177.15 0 92.52

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

177.15 0 92.52

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

-177.15 0 -8.63

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

0 177.15 0 0
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(20)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR

Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis]
Plant and
equipment
[Member]

Other plant and equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned assets
[Member]

Owned and leased assets [Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Accumulated
depreciation and

impairment
[Member]

Carrying amount [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0 0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

0 -83.89

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

0 -83.89

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 84.63

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 84.63

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

0 -168.52

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

8.63 0 0 168.52
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(21)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Other plant and equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Gross carrying amount [Member]

Accumulated
depreciation and

impairment
[Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0 0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

0

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

0

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 177.15 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 177.15 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

0 -177.15 0

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

0 0 177.15 0
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(22)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Other plant and equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member] Assets held under lease [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Accumulated depreciation and

impairment [Member]
Carrying amount [Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0 0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

83.89 0 0

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

83.89 0 0

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

92.52 0 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

92.52 0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

-8.63 0 0

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

0 8.63 0 0

Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(23)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Other plant and equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Assets held under lease [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Carrying amount

[Member]
Gross carrying amount [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0 0

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

0 0

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

0 0 0 0
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(24)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Other plant and equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Assets held under lease [Member] Owned assets
[Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Accumulated depreciation and impairment [Member] Carrying amount
[Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

0 0 0

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0 0

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

0 0 0

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

0 0 0 0
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(25)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Other plant and equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Carrying amount [Member] Gross carrying amount [Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0 0 0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

-83.89

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

-83.89

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

84.63 0 177.15

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

84.63 0 177.15

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

-168.52 0 -177.15

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

0 168.52 0 0

Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(26)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Other plant and equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Gross carrying

amount [Member]
Accumulated depreciation and impairment [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

0 83.89

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

0 83.89

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 92.52

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 92.52

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

0 -8.63

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

177.15 0 0 8.63
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(27)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Furniture and fixtures [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Carrying amount [Member] Gross carrying

amount [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

7.62 24.97 7.62

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

-5.26 -2.99

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

-5.26 -2.99

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0.54 0 0.54

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0.54 0 0.54

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

1.82 21.98 7.08

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

43.68 41.86 19.88 53.49

Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(28)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Furniture and fixtures [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Gross carrying amount [Member] Accumulated depreciation and

impairment [Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

24.97

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

5.26 2.99

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

5.26 2.99

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

24.97 5.26 2.99

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

46.41 21.44 9.81 4.55
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(29)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Furniture and fixtures [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased
assets [Member]

Assets held under lease [Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Accumulated
depreciation and

impairment
[Member]

Carrying amount [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0 0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

0 0

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

0 0

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

1.56 0 0 0
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(30)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Furniture and fixtures [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Assets held under lease [Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Gross carrying amount [Member]

Accumulated
depreciation and

impairment
[Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0 0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

0

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

0

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

0 0 0

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

0 0 0 0
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(31)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Furniture and fixtures [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Assets held under lease [Member] Owned assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Accumulated depreciation and

impairment [Member]
Carrying amount [Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

7.62 24.97

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

0 -5.26 -2.99

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

0 -5.26 -2.99

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0.54 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 0.54 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

0 1.82 21.98

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

0 0 43.68 41.86

Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(32)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Furniture and fixtures [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Carrying amount

[Member]
Gross carrying amount [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

7.62 24.97

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0.54 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0.54 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

7.08 24.97

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

19.88 53.49 46.41 21.44
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(33)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR

Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Furniture and fixtures [Member] Office equipment
[Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned assets [Member] Owned and leased
assets [Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Accumulated depreciation and impairment [Member] Carrying amount
[Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

27.43

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

5.26 2.99 -29.17

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

5.26 2.99 -29.17

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0 4.59

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 0 4.59

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

5.26 2.99 -6.33

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

9.81 4.55 1.56 96.52
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(34)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Office equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Carrying amount [Member] Gross carrying amount [Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

46.8 27.43 46.8

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

-27.79

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

-27.79

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 4.67 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 4.67 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

19.01 22.76 46.8

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

102.85 83.84 170.64 147.88

Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(35)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Office equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Gross carrying

amount [Member]
Accumulated depreciation and impairment [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

29.17 27.79

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

29.17 27.79

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0.08 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0.08 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

29.09 27.79

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

101.08 74.12 45.03 17.24



 

140

URBANCLAP TECHNOLOGIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2020 to 31/03/2021 

Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(36)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Office equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Assets held under lease [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Carrying amount [Member] Gross carrying

amount [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0 0 0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

0 0

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

0 0 0

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

0 0 0 0

Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(37)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Office equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Assets held under lease [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Gross carrying amount [Member] Accumulated depreciation and

impairment [Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

0 0

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

0 0 0

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

0 0 0 0
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(38)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Office equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Assets held under
lease [Member]

Owned assets [Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Accumulated
depreciation and

impairment
[Member]

Carrying amount [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

27.43 46.8

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

-29.17 -27.79

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

-29.17 -27.79

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

4.59 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

4.59 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

-6.33 19.01

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

0 96.52 102.85 83.84
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(39)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Office equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned assets [Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Gross carrying amount [Member]

Accumulated
depreciation and

impairment
[Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

27.43 46.8

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

29.17

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

29.17

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

4.67 0 0.08

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

4.67 0 0.08

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

22.76 46.8 29.09

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

170.64 147.88 101.08 74.12
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(40)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Office equipment [Member] Computer equipments [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned assets [Member] Owned and leased assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Accumulated depreciation and

impairment [Member]
Carrying amount [Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

470.71 386.79

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

27.79 -241.41 -179.83

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

27.79 -241.41 -179.83

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 56.73 3.2

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 56.73 3.2

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

27.79 172.57 203.76

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

45.03 17.24 736.64 564.07

Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(41)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Computer equipments [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Carrying amount

[Member]
Gross carrying amount [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

470.71 386.79

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

134.1 13.4

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

134.1 13.4

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

336.61 373.39

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

360.31 1,161.96 825.35 451.96
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(42)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Computer equipments [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member] Assets held under
lease [Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Accumulated depreciation and impairment [Member] Carrying amount
[Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

241.41 179.83 0

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

241.41 179.83 0

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

77.37 10.2 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

77.37 10.2 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

164.04 169.63 0

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

425.32 261.28 91.65 0
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(43)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Computer equipments [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Assets held under lease [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Carrying amount [Member] Gross carrying amount [Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0 0 0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

0

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

0

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

0 0 0

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

0 0 0 0

Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(44)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Computer equipments [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Assets held under lease [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Gross carrying

amount [Member]
Accumulated depreciation and impairment [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

0 0

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

0 0

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

0 0 0 0
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(45)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Computer equipments [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Carrying amount [Member] Gross carrying

amount [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

470.71 386.79 470.71

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

-241.41 -179.83

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

-241.41 -179.83

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

56.73 3.2 134.1

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

56.73 3.2 134.1

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

172.57 203.76 336.61

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

736.64 564.07 360.31 1,161.96

Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(46)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Computer equipments [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Gross carrying amount [Member] Accumulated depreciation and

impairment [Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

386.79

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

241.41 179.83

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

241.41 179.83

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

13.4 77.37 10.2

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

13.4 77.37 10.2

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

373.39 164.04 169.63

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

825.35 451.96 425.32 261.28
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(47)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR

Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis]
Computer

equipments
[Member]

Leasehold improvements [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned assets
[Member]

Owned and leased assets [Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Accumulated
depreciation and

impairment
[Member]

Carrying amount [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0 0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

-22.21 -40.34

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

-22.21 -40.34

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0.08 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0.08 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

-22.29 -40.34

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

91.65 4.38 26.67 67.01



 

148

URBANCLAP TECHNOLOGIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2020 to 31/03/2021 

Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(48)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Leasehold improvements [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Gross carrying amount [Member]

Accumulated
depreciation and

impairment
[Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0 0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

22.21

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

22.21

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0.08 0 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0.08 0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

-0.08 0 22.21

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

86.68 86.76 86.76 82.3
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(49)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Leasehold improvements [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member] Assets held under lease [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Accumulated depreciation and

impairment [Member]
Carrying amount [Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0 0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

40.34 0 0

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

40.34 0 0

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

40.34 0 0

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

60.09 19.75 0 0

Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(50)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Leasehold improvements [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Assets held under lease [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Carrying amount

[Member]
Gross carrying amount [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0 0

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

0 0

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

0 0 0 0
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(51)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Leasehold improvements [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Assets held under lease [Member] Owned assets
[Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Accumulated depreciation and impairment [Member] Carrying amount
[Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

0 0 -22.21

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0 -22.21

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0 0.08

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 0 0.08

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

0 0 -22.29

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

0 0 0 4.38
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(52)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Leasehold improvements [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Carrying amount [Member] Gross carrying amount [Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0 0 0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

-40.34

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

-40.34

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0.08 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 0.08 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

-40.34 -0.08 0

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

26.67 67.01 86.68 86.76

Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(53)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Leasehold improvements [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Gross carrying

amount [Member]
Accumulated depreciation and impairment [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

22.21 40.34

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

22.21 40.34

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

22.21 40.34

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

86.76 82.3 60.09 19.75
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(54)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Other property, plant and equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Carrying amount [Member] Gross carrying

amount [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0 0.1 0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

-5.26 -5.18

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

-5.26 -5.18

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

-0.37 0 -0.45

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

-0.37 0 -0.45

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

-4.89 -5.08 0.45

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

42.88 47.77 52.85 54.72

Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(55)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Other property, plant and equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Gross carrying amount [Member] Accumulated depreciation and

impairment [Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0.1

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

5.26 5.18

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

5.26 5.18

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 -0.08 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 -0.08 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

0.1 5.34 5.18

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

54.27 54.17 11.84 6.5
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(56)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Other property, plant and equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased
assets [Member]

Assets held under lease [Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Accumulated
depreciation and

impairment
[Member]

Gross carrying amount [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0 0

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

0 0

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

1.32 0 0 0

Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(57)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Other property, plant and equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Assets held under lease [Member] Owned assets
[Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Accumulated depreciation and impairment [Member] Gross carrying
amount [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

0

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

0

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 -0.45

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 -0.45

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

0 0 0.45

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

0 0 0 54.72
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(58)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Other property, plant and equipment [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Gross carrying amount [Member] Accumulated depreciation and

impairment [Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0.1

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

5.26 5.18

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

5.26 5.18

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 -0.08 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 -0.08 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

0.1 5.34 5.18

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

54.27 54.17 11.84 6.5
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(59)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR

Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis]

Other property,
plant and
equipment
[Member]

Other property, plant and equipment, others [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned assets
[Member]

Owned and leased assets [Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Accumulated
depreciation and

impairment
[Member]

Carrying amount [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Nature of other property plant and equipment 
            others 

Refer to child member Refer to child member

            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0 0.1

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

-5.26 -5.18

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

-5.26 -5.18

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

-0.37 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

-0.37 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

-4.89 -5.08

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

1.32 42.88 47.77 52.85



 

156

URBANCLAP TECHNOLOGIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2020 to 31/03/2021 

Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(60)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Other property, plant and equipment, others [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Gross carrying amount [Member]

Accumulated
depreciation and

impairment
[Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Nature of other property plant and equipment 
            others 

Refer to child member Refer to child member
Refer to child
member

            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0 0.1

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

5.26

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

5.26

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

-0.45 0 -0.08

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

-0.45 0 -0.08

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

0.45 0.1 5.34

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

54.72 54.27 54.17 11.84
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(61)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Other property, plant and equipment, others [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned and leased assets [Member] Assets held under lease [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Accumulated depreciation and

impairment [Member]
Carrying amount [Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Nature of other property plant and equipment 
            others 

Refer to child member NA NA

            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0 0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

5.18 0

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

5.18 0

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

5.18 0 0

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

6.5 1.32 0 0

Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(62)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Other property, plant and equipment, others [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Assets held under lease [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Carrying amount

[Member]
Gross carrying amount [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Nature of other property plant and equipment 
            others 

NA NA

            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0 0

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

0 0

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

0 0 0 0
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(63)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Other property, plant and equipment, others [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Assets held under lease [Member] Owned assets
[Member]

Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying
amount [Axis]

Accumulated depreciation and impairment [Member] Carrying amount
[Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Nature of other property plant and equipment 
            others 

NA NA
Electr ical
installation

            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

0 -5.26

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

0 -5.26

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 -0.37

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 -0.37

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

0 0 -4.89

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

0 0 0 42.88
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(64)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Other property, plant and equipment, others [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Carrying amount [Member] Gross carrying amount [Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Nature of other property plant and equipment 
            others 

Electrical installation
Electr ical
installation

Electrical installation

            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations, property, plant and 
                  equipment 

0.1 0 0.1

                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

-5.18

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

-5.18

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

0 -0.45 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

0 -0.45 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

-5.08 0.45 0.1

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

47.77 52.85 54.72 54.27
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Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment [Table] ..(65)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Other property, plant and equipment, others [Member]

Sub classes of property, plant and equipment [Axis] Owned assets [Member]
Carrying amount accumulated depreciation and gross carrying

amount [Axis]
Gross carrying

amount [Member]
Accumulated depreciation and impairment [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of detailed information about property, 
      plant and equipment [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about 
         property, plant and equipment [Line items] 
            Nature of other property plant and equipment 
            others 

Electrical installation Electrical installation

            Reconciliation of changes in property, plant 
            and equipment [Abstract] 
               Changes in property, plant and equipment 
               [Abstract] 
                  Depreciation, property, plant and 
                  equipment [Abstract] 
                     Depreciation recognised in profit or 
                     loss 

5.26 5.18

                     Total Depreciation property plant and 
                     equipment 

5.26 5.18

                  Disposals and retirements, property, 
                  plant and equipment [Abstract] 
                     Disposals, property, plant and 
                     equipment 

-0.08 0

                     Total disposals and retirements, 
                     property, plant and equipment 

-0.08 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in property, 
                  plant and equipment 

5.34 5.18

               Property, plant and equipment at end of 
               period 

54.17 11.84 6.5 1.32

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

Disclosure of property, plant and equipment [TextBlock] Textual information (10) 
[See below]

   Disclosure of detailed information about property, plant and equipment 
   [TextBlock] 
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Textual information (10)

Disclosure of property, plant and equipment [Text Block]

 

3(a)  Property, plant and
equipment

               Rs. in
Lakh

   

 Computers

(End User
Devices)

 Computers (Servers
& Networks)

 Electrical
installation

 Plant and
machinery

 Furniture
and fittings

 Office
equipment

 Leasehold
improvement

 Total

  Gross carrying
amount

               

  As at 1 April, 2019 390.44 61.52 54.17 177.15 21.44 101.08 86.76 892.56

                   

  Additions 307 79.79 0.1  -   24.97 46.8  -   458.66

  Disposals/Adjustment -13.4  -    -   -177.15  -    -    -   -190.55

  As at 31 March, 2020 684.04 141.31 54.27  -   46.41 147.88 86.76 1,160.67

                   

  Additions 466.31 4.4  -    -   7.62 27.43  -   505.76

  Disposals/Adjustment -135.24 1.14 0.45  -   -0.54 -4.67 -0.08 -138.94

  As at 31 March, 2021 1,015.11 146.85 54.72  -   53.49 170.64 86.68 1,527.49

                   

  Accumulated
depreciation

               

  As at 1 April, 2019 81.98 9.67 1.32 8.63 1.56 17.24 19.75 140.15

                   

  Charge for the year 163.96 15.87 5.18 83.89 2.99 27.79 40.34 340.02

  Disposals/Adjustment -10.2  -    -   -92.52  -    -    -   -102.72
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  As at 31 March, 2020 235.74 25.54 6.5  -   4.55 45.03 60.09 377.45

                   

  Charge for the year 216.14 25.27 5.26  -   5.26 29.17 22.21 303.31

  Disposals/Adjustment -78.84 1.47 0.08  -    -   -0.08  -   -77.37

  As at 31 March, 2021 373.04 52.28 11.84  -   9.81 74.12 82.3 603.39

  Net book value                

  As at 31 March, 2020 448.3 115.77 47.77  -   41.86 102.85 26.67 783.22

  As at 31 March, 2021 642.07 94.57 42.88  -   43.68 96.52 4.38 924.1

 

3(b)  Right-of-use assets    Rs. in Lakh

     Building  Total

  Gross carrying amount    

  As at 1 April, 2019 4,908.82 4,908.82

       

  Additions 8,720.94 8,720.94

  Disposals  -    -  

  As at 31 March, 2020 13,629.76 13,629.76

       

  Additions 667.85 667.85

  Disposals -2,901.43 -2,901.43

  As at 31 March, 2021 11,396.18 11,396.18

       

  Accumulated depreciation    
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  As at 1 April, 2019 324.27 324.27

       

  Charge for the year 1,527.29 1,527.29

  Disposal  -    -  

  As at 31 March, 2020 1,851.56 1,851.56

       

  Charge for the year 2,237.92 2,237.92

  Disposal -885.61 -885.61

  As at 31 March, 2021 3,203.87 3,203.87

  Net book value    

  As at 31 March, 2020 11,778.20 11,778.20

  As at 31 March, 2021 8,192.31 8,192.31

 

[612100] Notes - Impairment of assets

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
Disclosure of impairment of assets [TextBlock] 
   Disclosure of impairment loss and reversal of impairment loss [TextBlock] 
      Whether there is any impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss 
      during the year 

No No

   Disclosure of information for impairment loss recognised or reversed 
   for individual Assets or cash-generating unit [TextBlock] 
      Whether impairment loss recognised or reversed for individual Assets 
      or cash-generating unit 

No No

[400700] Notes - Investment property

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
Disclosure of investment property [TextBlock] 

   Depreciation method, investment property, cost model NA   
  NA     

   Useful lives or depreciation rates, investment property, cost model   NA        NA     



 

164

URBANCLAP TECHNOLOGIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2020 to 31/03/2021 

[400900] Notes - Other intangible assets

Disclosure of detailed information about other intangible assets [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of other intangible assets [Axis] Company other intangible assets [Member]

Sub classes of other intangible assets [Axis] Internally generated and other than internally generated intangible assets
[Member]

Carrying amount accumulated amortization and impairment and
gross carrying amount [Axis]

Carrying amount [Member] Gross carrying amount [Member]

31/03/2021 31/03/2020
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of detailed information about other 
      intangible assets [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about other 
         intangible assets [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in other intangible 
            assets [Abstract] 
               Changes in Other intangible assets [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations 

42.86 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in Other 
                  intangible assets 

42.86 0

               Other intangible assets at end of period 69.49 53.54 124.76 81.9

Disclosure of detailed information about other intangible assets [Table] ..(2)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of other intangible assets [Axis] Company other intangible assets [Member]

Sub classes of other intangible assets [Axis] Internally generated and other than internally generated intangible assets
[Member]

Carrying amount accumulated amortization and impairment and
gross carrying amount [Axis]

Gross carrying
amount [Member]

Accumulated amortization and impairment [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of detailed information about other 
      intangible assets [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about other 
         intangible assets [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in other intangible 
            assets [Abstract] 
               Changes in Other intangible assets [Abstract] 
                  Amortisation other intangible assets 26.91 25.94

                  Total increase (decrease) in Other 
                  intangible assets 

26.91 25.94

               Other intangible assets at end of period 81.9 55.27 28.36 2.42



 

165

URBANCLAP TECHNOLOGIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2020 to 31/03/2021 

Disclosure of detailed information about other intangible assets [Table] ..(3)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of other intangible assets [Axis] Computer software [Member]

Sub classes of other intangible assets [Axis] Internally generated and other than internally generated intangible assets
[Member]

Carrying amount accumulated amortization and impairment and
gross carrying amount [Axis]

Carrying amount [Member] Gross carrying
amount [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of detailed information about other 
      intangible assets [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about other 
         intangible assets [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in other intangible 
            assets [Abstract] 
               Changes in Other intangible assets [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations 

42.86 0 42.86

                  Amortisation other intangible assets -26.91 -25.94

                  Total increase (decrease) in Other 
                  intangible assets 

15.95 -25.94 42.86

               Other intangible assets at end of period 69.49 53.54 79.48 124.76

Disclosure of detailed information about other intangible assets [Table] ..(4)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of other intangible assets [Axis] Computer software [Member]

Sub classes of other intangible assets [Axis] Internally generated and other than internally generated intangible assets
[Member]

Carrying amount accumulated amortization and impairment and
gross carrying amount [Axis]

Gross carrying amount [Member] Accumulated amortization and
impairment [Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of detailed information about other 
      intangible assets [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about other 
         intangible assets [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in other intangible 
            assets [Abstract] 
               Changes in Other intangible assets [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations 

0

                  Amortisation other intangible assets 26.91 25.94

                  Total increase (decrease) in Other 
                  intangible assets 

0 26.91 25.94

               Other intangible assets at end of period 81.9 81.9 55.27 28.36



 

166

URBANCLAP TECHNOLOGIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2020 to 31/03/2021 

Disclosure of detailed information about other intangible assets [Table] ..(5)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of other intangible assets [Axis] Computer software [Member]

Sub classes of other intangible assets [Axis]

Internally
generated and

other than
internally
generated

intangible assets
[Member]

Intangible assets other than internally generated [Member]

Carrying amount accumulated amortization and impairment and
gross carrying amount [Axis]

Accumulated
amortization and

impairment
[Member]

Carrying amount [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of detailed information about other 
      intangible assets [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about other 
         intangible assets [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in other intangible 
            assets [Abstract] 
               Changes in Other intangible assets [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations 

42.86 0

                  Amortisation other intangible assets -26.91 -25.94

                  Total increase (decrease) in Other 
                  intangible assets 

15.95 -25.94

               Other intangible assets at end of period 2.42 69.49 53.54 79.48

Disclosure of detailed information about other intangible assets [Table] ..(6)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of other intangible assets [Axis] Computer software [Member]

Sub classes of other intangible assets [Axis] Intangible assets other than internally generated [Member]

Carrying amount accumulated amortization and impairment and
gross carrying amount [Axis]

Gross carrying amount [Member]

Accumulated
amortization and

impairment
[Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of detailed information about other 
      intangible assets [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about other 
         intangible assets [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in other intangible 
            assets [Abstract] 
               Changes in Other intangible assets [Abstract] 
                  Additions other than through business 
                  combinations 

42.86 0

                  Amortisation other intangible assets 26.91

                  Total increase (decrease) in Other 
                  intangible assets 

42.86 0 26.91

               Other intangible assets at end of period 124.76 81.9 81.9 55.27

Disclosure of detailed information about other intangible assets [Table] ..(7)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of other intangible assets [Axis] Computer software [Member]

Sub classes of other intangible assets [Axis] Intangible assets other than internally
generated [Member]

Carrying amount accumulated amortization and impairment and gross carrying amount [Axis] Accumulated amortization and
impairment [Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of detailed information about other intangible assets [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of detailed information about other intangible assets [Line items] 
            Reconciliation of changes in other intangible assets [Abstract] 
               Changes in Other intangible assets [Abstract] 
                  Amortisation other intangible assets 25.94

                  Total increase (decrease) in Other intangible assets 25.94

               Other intangible assets at end of period 28.36 2.42
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Disclosure of additional information about other intangible assets [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of other intangible assets [Axis] Computer software [Member]

Sub classes of other intangible assets [Axis]
Internally generated and other than

internally generated intangible assets
[Member]

Intangible assets other than internally
generated [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of additional information about other 
      intangible assets [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of additional information about 
         other intangible assets [Line items] 

            Amortisation method, other intangible assets Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

straight-line basis straight-line basis

            Useful lives or amortisation rates, other 
            intangible assets 

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

3 years 3 years

            Whether other intangible assets are stated at 
            revalued amount 

No No No No

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

Disclosure of other intangible assets [TextBlock] Textual information (11) 
[See below]

   Disclosure of detailed information about other intangible assets 
   [TextBlock] 
   Disclosure of intangible assets with indefinite useful life [TextBlock] 
      Whether there are intangible assets with indefinite useful life No No
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Textual information (11)

Disclosure of other intangible assets [Text Block]

 

4  Intangible assets    Rs. in Lakh

     Software  Total

  Gross carrying amount    

  As at 1 April, 2019 81.9 81.9

  Additions  -    -  

  Disposals  -    -  

  As at 31 March, 2020 81.9 81.9

  Additions 42.86 42.86

  Disposals  -    -  

  As at 31 March, 2021 124.76 124.76

       

  Accumulated amortisation    

  As at 1 April, 2019 2.42 2.42

  Amortisation expenses during the year 25.94 25.94

  Disposals  -    -  

  As at 31 March, 2020 28.36 28.36

  Amortisation expenses during the year 26.91 26.91

  Disposals  -    -  

  As at 31 March, 2021 55.27 55.27
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  Net book value    

  As at 31 March, 2020 53.54 53.54

  As at 31 March, 2021 69.49 69.49

 

[401000] Notes - Biological assets other than bearer plants

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
Disclosure of biological assets, agriculture produce at point of 
harvest and government grants related to biological assets 
[TextBlock] 

   Depreciation method, biological assets other than bearer plants, at cost NA      
  NA     

   Useful lives or depreciation rates, biological assets other than bearer 
   plants, at cost   NA        NA     

[611100] Notes - Financial instruments

Disclosure of financial liabilities [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of financial liabilities [Axis] Financial liabilities at fair value, class [Member]

Categories of financial liabilities [Axis] Financial liabilities, category [Member] Financial liabilities at amortised cost,
category [Member]

31/03/2021 31/03/2020 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
      Disclosure of financial liabilities [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of financial liabilities [Line items] 
            Financial liabilities 7,029.15 4,266.3 (A)   7,029.15 (B)   4,266.3

            Financial liabilities, at fair value 7,029.15 4,266.3 (C)   7,029.15 (D)   4,266.3

Footnotes
 (A) Trade payables: 4826 Other financial liabilities: 2203.15

 (B) Trade payables: 3207.81 Other financial liabilities: 1058.49

 (C) Trade payables: 4826 Other financial liabilities: 2203.15

 (D) Trade payables: 3207.81 Other financial liabilities: 1058.49

Disclosure of financial assets [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR

Classes of financial assets [Axis] Financial assets at fair value, class
[Member]

Equity investments [Member]

Categories of financial assets [Axis] Financial assets, category [Member] Financial assets, category [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of financial assets [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of financial assets [Line items] 
            Financial assets 52,493.97 65,673.19 37,050.94 47,859.6

            Financial assets, at fair value 52,493.97 65,673.19 37,050.94 47,859.6

            Description of other financial assets at fair 
            value class 

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member



 

170

URBANCLAP TECHNOLOGIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2020 to 31/03/2021 

Disclosure of financial assets [Table] ..(2)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of financial assets [Axis] Equity investments [Member]

Categories of financial assets [Axis]
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss, category [Member]

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, mandatorily measured at

fair value, category [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of financial assets [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of financial assets [Line items] 
            Financial assets 4,074.08 9,022.76 4,074.08 9,022.76

            Financial assets, at fair value 4,074.08 9,022.76 4,074.08 9,022.76

            Description of other financial assets at fair 
            value class 

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

Investments Investments

Disclosure of financial assets [Table] ..(3)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR

Classes of financial assets [Axis] Equity investments [Member] Other financial assets at fair value class
[Member]

Categories of financial assets [Axis] Financial assets at amortised cost,
category [Member]

Financial assets, category [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of financial assets [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of financial assets [Line items] 
            Financial assets 32,976.86 38,836.84 15,443.03 17,813.59

            Financial assets, at fair value 32,976.86 38,836.84 15,443.03 17,813.59

            Description of other financial assets at fair 
            value class 

Investments Investments
Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

Disclosure of financial assets [Table] ..(4)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of financial assets [Axis] Other financial assets at fair value class 1 [Member]

Categories of financial assets [Axis] Financial assets, category [Member] Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, category [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of financial assets [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of financial assets [Line items] 
            Financial assets 15,443.03 17,813.59 0 0

            Financial assets, at fair value 15,443.03 17,813.59 0 0

            Description of other financial assets at fair 
            value class 

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

Disclosure of financial assets [Table] ..(5)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of financial assets [Axis] Other financial assets at fair value class 1 [Member]

Categories of financial assets [Axis]
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss, mandatorily measured at
fair value, category [Member]

Financial assets at amortised cost,
category [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of financial assets [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of financial assets [Line items] 
            Financial assets 0 0 15,443.03 17,813.59

            Financial assets, at fair value 0 0 15,443.03 17,813.59

            Description of other financial assets at fair 
            value class 

NA NA

Trade receivables:
307.57 , Cash and
cash equivalents:
4582.34 , Bank
balances other than
above: 8190.25,
Others financial
assets: 2362.87

Trade receivables:
93.60 , Cash and cash
equivalents: 9937.66
, Bank balances other
than above: 5356.04 ,
Others financial
assets: 2426.29
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[400500] Notes - Current investments

Details of current investments [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification of current investments [Axis] 1 2

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
   Current investments [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of details of current investments 
      [Abstract] 
         Details of current investments [Line items] 

            Type of current investments 
Investments in
debentures or
bonds

Investments in
debentures or bonds

Investments in
debentures or bonds

Investments in
debentures or bonds

            Class of current investments C u r r e n t
investments

Current investments Current investments Current investments

            Nature of current investments NA Quoted NA Quoted

            Current investments 0 1,594.95 0 1,241.95

            Basis of valuation of current investments NA
measured at amortised
cost

NA
measured at
amortised cost

            Name of body corporate in whom investment has 
            been made 

NA
7.80% Hdb Financial
Services Limited

NA
Hdb Financial
Services Limited

            Number of shares of current investment made 
            in body corporate 

[shares] 0 (A)   [shares] 150 [shares] 0 (B)   [shares] 100

Footnotes
 (A) In Units

 (B) In Units

Details of current investments [Table] ..(2)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification of current investments [Axis] 3 4

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
   Current investments [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of details of current investments 
      [Abstract] 
         Details of current investments [Line items] 

            Type of current investments Other current
investments

Other current
investments

Investments in
mutual funds

Investments in mutual
funds

            Class of current investments Current investments Current investments
Current
investments

Current investments

            Nature of current investments Quoted NA NA Unquoted

            Current investments 976.91 0 0 3,553.01

            Basis of valuation of current investments measured at
amortised cost

NA NA
measured at fair value
through profit or loss

            Name of body corporate in whom investment has 
            been made 

Kotal Mahindra
Investment Ltd.

NA NA
SBI Overnight Fund -
Direct - Growth

            Number of shares of current investment made 
            in body corporate 

(A)   [shares]
10,00,000

[shares] 0 [shares] 0 (B)   [shares] 1,09,198

Footnotes
 (A) In Units

 (B) In Units
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Details of current investments [Table] ..(3)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification of current investments [Axis] 5 6

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
   Current investments [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of details of current investments 
      [Abstract] 
         Details of current investments [Line items] 

            Type of current investments Investments in mutual
funds

Investments in
mutual funds

Investments in
mutual funds

Investments in
mutual funds

            Class of current investments Current investments
C u r r e n t
investments

Current investments Current investments

            Nature of current investments Unquoted NA Unquoted Unquoted

            Current investments 1,179.39 0 2,390.99 1,431.78

            Basis of valuation of current investments measured at fair value
through profit or loss

NA
measured at fair
value through profit
or loss

measured at fair
value through profit
or loss

            Name of body corporate in whom investment has 
            been made 

SBI Liquid Fund -
Direct - Growth

NA
HDFC Liquid Fund
- Direct - Growth

HDFC Liquid Fund -
Direct - Growth

            Number of shares of current investment made 
            in body corporate 

(A)   [shares] 36,609 [shares] 0
(B)   [shares]

59,102
(C)   [shares] 36,650

Footnotes
 (A) In Units

 (B) In Units

 (C) In Units

Details of current investments [Table] ..(4)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification of current investments [Axis] 7 8

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
   Current investments [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of details of current investments 
      [Abstract] 
         Details of current investments [Line items] 

            Type of current investments Investments in
mutual funds

Investments in mutual
funds

Investments in
mutual funds

Investments in mutual
funds

            Class of current investments Current
investments

Current investments
Current
investments

Current investments

            Nature of current investments NA Unquoted NA Unquoted

            Current investments 0 4,003.27 0 34.7

            Basis of valuation of current investments NA
measured at fair value
through profit or loss

NA
measured at fair value
through profit or loss

            Name of body corporate in whom investment has 
            been made 

NA
HDFC Overnight Fund -
Direct - Growth

NA
Kotak Liquid Scheme -
Direct - Growth

            Number of shares of current investment made 
            in body corporate 

[shares] 0 (A)   [shares] 1,34,830 [shares] 0 (B)   [shares] 864

Footnotes
 (A) In Units

 (B) In Units
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Details of current investments [Table] ..(5)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification of current investments [Axis] 9 10

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
   Current investments [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of details of current investments 
      [Abstract] 
         Details of current investments [Line items] 

            Type of current investments Investments in mutual
funds

Investments in
mutual funds

Other current
investments

Other current
investments

            Class of current investments Current investments
C u r r e n t
investments

Current investments Current investments

            Nature of current investments Unquoted NA Unquoted NA

            Current investments 503.7 0 2,000 0

            Basis of valuation of current investments measured at fair value
through profit or loss

NA
measured at
amortised cost

measured at
amortised cost

            Name of body corporate in whom investment has 
            been made 

ICICI Prudential Liquid
Fund -Direct- Growth

NA
4.10% HDFC Ltd 3
Month Cumulative
Option

4.10% HDFC Ltd 3
Month Cumulative
Option

            Number of shares of current investment made 
            in body corporate 

(A)   [shares] 1,65,291 [shares] 0 [shares] 0 [shares] 0

Footnotes
 (A) In Units

Details of current investments [Table] ..(6)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification of current investments [Axis] 11 12

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
   Current investments [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of details of current investments 
      [Abstract] 
         Details of current investments [Line items] 

            Type of current investments Other current
investments

Other current
investments

Other current
investments

Other current
investments

            Class of current investments Current investments Current investments Current investments Current investments

            Nature of current investments Unquoted NA Unquoted NA

            Current investments 2,000 0 2,000 0

            Basis of valuation of current investments measured at
amortised cost

measured at
amortised cost

measured at
amortised cost

measured at
amortised cost

            Name of body corporate in whom investment has 
            been made 

4.30% HDFC Ltd 3
Month Cumulative
Option

4.30% HDFC Ltd 3
Month Cumulative
Option

4.55% HDFC Ltd 6
Month Cumulative
Option

4.55% HDFC Ltd 6
Month Cumulative
Option

            Number of shares of current investment made 
            in body corporate 

[shares] 0 [shares] 0 [shares] 0 [shares] 0

Details of current investments [Table] ..(7)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification of current investments [Axis] 13 14

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
   Current investments [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of details of current investments 
      [Abstract] 
         Details of current investments [Line items] 

            Type of current investments Other current
investments

Other current
investments

Other current
investments

Other current
investments

            Class of current investments Current investments Current investments Current investments Current investments

            Nature of current investments Unquoted NA Unquoted NA

            Current investments 5,000 0 4,000 0

            Basis of valuation of current investments measured at
amortised cost

measured at
amortised cost

measured at
amortised cost

measured at
amortised cost

            Name of body corporate in whom investment has 
            been made 

4.80% HDFC Ltd 6
Month Cumulative
Option

4.80% HDFC Ltd 6
Month Cumulative
Option

4.90% HDFC Ltd 6
Month Cumulative
Option

4.90% HDFC Ltd 6
Month Cumulative
Option

            Number of shares of current investment made 
            in body corporate 

[shares] 0 [shares] 0 [shares] 0 [shares] 0
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Details of current investments [Table] ..(8)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification of current investments [Axis] 15 16

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
   Current investments [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of details of current investments 
      [Abstract] 
         Details of current investments [Line items] 

            Type of current investments Other current
investments

Other current
investments

Other current
investments

Other current
investments

            Class of current investments Current investments Current investments Current investments Current investments

            Nature of current investments Unquoted NA Unquoted NA

            Current investments 3,000 0 2,000 0

            Basis of valuation of current investments measured at
amortised cost

measured at
amortised cost

measured at
amortised cost

measured at
amortised cost

            Name of body corporate in whom investment has 
            been made 

5.00% Bajaj
Finance Ltd 12
Month Cumulative
Option

5.00% Bajaj Finance
Ltd 12 Month
Cumulative Option

5.20% Bajaj
Finance Ltd 12
Month Cumulative
Option

5.20% Bajaj Finance
Ltd 12 Month
Cumulative Option

            Number of shares of current investment made 
            in body corporate 

[shares] 0 [shares] 0 [shares] 0 [shares] 0

Details of current investments [Table] ..(9)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification of current investments [Axis] 17 18

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
   Current investments [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of details of current investments 
      [Abstract] 
         Details of current investments [Line items] 

            Type of current investments Other current
investments

Other current
investments

Other current
investments

Other current investments

            Class of current investments Current investments Current investments
Current
investments

Current investments

            Nature of current investments Unquoted NA NA NA

            Current investments 7,999.97 0 0 2,000

            Basis of valuation of current investments measured at
amortised cost

measured at
amortised cost

NA measured at amortised cost

            Name of body corporate in whom investment has 
            been made 

5.65% LIC Housing
Finance Ltd 12
Month Cumulative
Option

5.65% LIC Housing
Finance Ltd 12
Month Cumulative
Option

NA
6.75% HDFC Ltd 181 Days
Cumulative Option

            Number of shares of current investment made 
            in body corporate 

[shares] 0 [shares] 0 [shares] 0 [shares] 0

Details of current investments [Table] ..(10)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification of current investments [Axis] 19 20

01/04/2020

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019

to 
31/03/2020

   Current investments [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of details of current investments 
      [Abstract] 
         Details of current investments [Line items] 

            Type of current investments 
O t h e r
current
investments

Other current investments Other current investments
O t h e r
current
investments

            Class of current investments Current
investments

Current investments Current investments
Current
investments

            Nature of current investments NA NA Unquoted NA

            Current investments 0 6,000 3,999.98 0

            Basis of valuation of current investments NA measured at amortised cost measured at amortised cost NA

            Name of body corporate in whom investment has 
            been made 

NA
7.00% Bajaj Finance Ltd 12
Month Cumulative Option

7.00% LIC Housing Finance
Ltd 12 Month Cumulative
Option

            Number of shares of current investment made 
            in body corporate 

[shares] 0 [shares] 0 [shares] 0 [shares] 0
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Details of current investments [Table] ..(11)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification of current investments [Axis] 21 22

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
   Current investments [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of details of current investments 
      [Abstract] 
         Details of current investments [Line items] 

            Type of current investments Other current
investments

Other current investments
Other current
investments

Other current investments

            Class of current investments Current
investments

Current investments
Current
investments

Current investments

            Nature of current investments NA NA NA NA

            Current investments 0 4,000 0 2,000

            Basis of valuation of current investments NA measured at amortised cost NA measured at amortised cost

            Name of body corporate in whom investment has 
            been made 

NA
7.00% HDFC Ltd 12 Month
Cumulative Option

NA
7.10% HDFC Ltd 12 Month
Cumulative Option

            Number of shares of current investment made 
            in body corporate 

[shares] 0 [shares] 0 [shares] 0 [shares] 0

Details of current investments [Table] ..(12)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification of current investments [Axis] 23 24

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

   Current investments [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of details of current investments 
      [Abstract] 
         Details of current investments [Line items] 

            Type of current investments Other current
investments

Other current investments
O t h e r
current
investments

Other current investments

            Class of current investments Current
investments

Current investments
Current
investments

Current investments

            Nature of current investments NA NA NA NA

            Current investments 0 4,000 0 2,000

            Basis of valuation of current investments NA measured at amortised cost NA measured at amortised cost

            Name of body corporate in whom investment has 
            been made 

NA
7.20% HDFC Ltd 12 Month
Cumulative Option

NA
7.30% Bajaj Finance Ltd 12
Month Cumulative Option

            Number of shares of current investment made 
            in body corporate 

[shares] 0 [shares] 0 [shares] 0 [shares] 0

Details of current investments [Table] ..(13)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification of current investments [Axis] 25 26

01/04/2020

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

   Current investments [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of details of current investments 
      [Abstract] 
         Details of current investments [Line items] 

            Type of current investments 
O t h e r
current
investments

Other current investments
O t h e r
current
investments

Other current investments

            Class of current investments Current
investments

Current investments
Current
investments

Current investments

            Nature of current investments NA NA NA NA

            Current investments 0 7,999.96 0 1,000

            Basis of valuation of current investments NA measured at amortised cost NA measured at amortised cost

            Name of body corporate in whom investment has 
            been made 

NA
7.50% LIC Housing Finance
Limited 12 Month Cumulative
Option

NA
7.70% Bajaj Finance Ltd 12
Month Cumulative Option

            Number of shares of current investment made 
            in body corporate 

[shares] 0 [shares] 0 [shares] 0 [shares] 0
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Details of current investments [Table] ..(14)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification of current investments [Axis] 27 28

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

   Current investments [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of details of current investments 
      [Abstract] 
         Details of current investments [Line items] 

            Type of current investments Other current
investments

Other current investments
O t h e r
current
investments

Other current investments

            Class of current investments Current
investments

Current investments
Current
investments

Current investments

            Nature of current investments NA NA NA NA

            Current investments 0 2,000 0 1,000

            Basis of valuation of current investments NA measured at amortised cost NA measured at amortised cost

            Name of body corporate in whom investment has 
            been made 

NA
8.05% HDFC Ltd 12 Month
Cumulative Option

NA
8.15% Bajaj Finance Ltd 12
Month Cumulative Option

            Number of shares of current investment made 
            in body corporate 

[shares] 0 [shares] 0 [shares] 0 [shares] 0

Details of current investments [Table] ..(15)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification of current investments [Axis] 29

01/04/2020

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

   Current investments [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of details of current investments [Abstract] 
         Details of current investments [Line items] 

            Type of current investments 
O t h e r
current
investments

Other current investments

            Class of current investments Current
investments

Current investments

            Nature of current investments NA NA

            Current investments 0 3,999.98

            Basis of valuation of current investments NA measured at amortised cost

            Name of body corporate in whom investment has been made NA
8.15% LIC Housing Finance
Ltd 12 Month Cumulative
Option

            Number of shares of current investment made in body corporate [shares] 0 [shares] 0

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

31/03/2020

Disclosure of notes on current investments explanatory [TextBlock] Textual information (12) 
[See below]

      Aggregate amount of quoted current investments 976.91 2,836.9

      Market value of quoted current investments 0 0

      Aggregate amount of unquoted current investments 36,074.03 45,022.7

      Aggregate provision for diminution in value of current investments 0 0
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Textual information (12)

Disclosure of notes on current investments explanatory [Text Block]

 

      Rsin Lakh

     As at  As at

     31 March, 2021  31 March, 2020

  Financial assets    

5 Investments    

  Current assets    

  (A) Investment in non-convertible debentures (NCDs) (measured at amortised cost)    

   Quoted    

 
 7.80% Hdb Financial Services Limited

(NIL; 31 March, 2020 - 150 units)
 -   1,594.95

 
 Hdb Financial Services Limited

(NIL; 31 March, 2020 - 100 units)
 -   1,241.95

     -   2,836.90

       

  (B) Investment in Commercial Papers (CPs) (measured at amortised cost)    

   Quoted    

    976.91  -  

       

    976.91  -  

       

  (C) Investment in mutual Funds (measured at fair value through profit or loss)    
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   Unquoted    

   SBI Overnight Fund - Direct - Growth  -   3,553.01

  (NIL, 2020 - 109,198 units)    

   SBI Liquid Fund - Direct - Growth 1,179.39  -  

  (36,609 units; 31 March, 2020 - NIL)    

   HDFC Liquid Fund - Direct - Growth  2,390.99 1,431.78

  (59,102 units; 31 March, 2020 - 36,650 units)    

   HDFC Overnight Fund - Direct - Growth   -   4,003.27

  (NIL; 31 March, 2020 - 134,830 units)    

   Kotak Liquid Scheme - Direct - Growth  -   34.7

  (NIL; 31 March, 2020 - 864 units)    

  ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund -Direct- Growth 503.7  -  

  (165,291 units; 31 March, 2020 - NIL)    

    4,074.08 9,022.76

  (D) Investment in fixed deposits (measured at amortised cost)    

   Unquoted    

   4.10% HDFC Ltd 3 Month Cumulative Option 2,000.00  -  

   4.30% HDFC Ltd 3 Month Cumulative Option 2,000.00  -  

   4.55% HDFC Ltd 6 Month Cumulative Option  2,000.00  -  

   4.80% HDFC Ltd 6 Month Cumulative Option  5,000.00  -  

   4.90% HDFC Ltd 6 Month Cumulative Option 4,000.00  -  

   5.00% Bajaj Finance Ltd 12 Month Cumulative Option 3,000.00  -  

   5.20% Bajaj Finance Ltd 12 Month Cumulative Option 2,000.00  -  
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   5.65% LIC Housing Finance Ltd 12 Month Cumulative Option 7,999.97  -  

   6.75% HDFC Ltd 181 Days Cumulative Option  -   2,000.00

   7.00% Bajaj Finance Ltd 12 Month Cumulative Option  -   6,000.00

   7.00% LIC Housing Finance Ltd 12 Month Cumulative Option 3,999.98  -  

   7.00% HDFC Ltd 12 Month Cumulative Option  -   4,000.00

   7.10% HDFC Ltd 12 Month Cumulative Option  -   2,000.00

   7.20% HDFC Ltd 12 Month Cumulative Option  -   4,000.00

   7.30% Bajaj Finance Ltd 12 Month Cumulative Option  -   2,000.00

   7.50% LIC Housing Finance Limited 12 Month Cumulative Option  -   7,999.96

   7.70% Bajaj Finance Ltd 12 Month Cumulative Option  -   1,000.00

   8.05% HDFC Ltd 12 Month Cumulative Option  -   2,000.00

   8.15% Bajaj Finance Ltd 12 Month Cumulative Option  -   1,000.00

   8.15% LIC Housing Finance Ltd 12 Month Cumulative Option  -   3,999.98

    31,999.95 35,999.94

   Total current investments 37,050.94 47,859.60

       

 (i) Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof 976.91 2,836.90

 (ii) Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 36,074.03 45,022.70
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[611600] Notes - Non-current asset held for sale and discontinued operations

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
Disclosure of non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations 
[TextBlock] 
         Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities, continuing 
         operations 

-14,095.01 -13,896.45

         Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities, discontinued 
         operations 

0 0

         Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities -14,095.01 -13,896.45

         Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities, continuing 
         operations 

11,066.76 1,289.26

         Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities, discontinued 
         operations 

0 0

         Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities 11,066.76 1,289.26

         Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities, continuing 
         operations 

-2,327.07 21,976.03

         Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities, discontinued 
         operations 

0 0

         Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities -2,327.07 21,976.03



 

181

URBANCLAP TECHNOLOGIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2020 to 31/03/2021 

[400100] Notes - Equity share capital

Disclosure of classes of equity share capital [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR

Classes of equity share capital [Axis] Equity shares [Member] Equity shares 1
[Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
   Disclosure of classes of equity share capital [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of classes of equity share capital [Line 
      items] 

         Type of share Refer to child
member

         Number of shares authorised [shares] 2,18,330 [shares] 2,18,330 [shares] 2,18,330

         Value of shares authorised 2.1833 2.1833 2.1833

         Number of shares issued [shares] 1,68,313 [shares] 1,64,903 [shares] 1,68,313

         Value of shares issued 1.68313 1.64903 1.68313

         Number of shares subscribed and fully paid [shares] 1,35,785 [shares] 1,32,375 [shares] 1,35,785

         Value of shares subscribed and fully paid 1.35785 1.32375 1.35785

         Number of shares subscribed but not fully paid [shares] 31,239 [shares] 31,239 [shares] 31,239

         Value of shares subscribed but not fully paid 0.31239 0.31239 0.31239

         Total number of shares subscribed [shares] 1,67,024 [shares] 1,63,614 [shares] 1,67,024

         Total value of shares subscribed 1.67024 1.63614 1.67024

         Value of shares paid-up [Abstract] 
            Number of shares paid-up [shares] 1,67,024 [shares] 1,63,614 [shares] 1,67,024

            Value of shares called 1.514045 1.479945 1.514045

            Value of shares paid-up 1.514045 1.479945 1.514045

         Par value per share [INR/shares] 1

         Amount per share called in case shares not fully 
         called 

[INR/shares] 0.5

         Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding 
         [Abstract] 
            Changes in number of shares outstanding 
            [Abstract] 
               Increase in number of shares outstanding 
               [Abstract] 
                  Number of shares issued as rights [shares] 0 [shares] 31,549 [shares] 0

                  Number of shares issued as other 
                  preferential allotment 

[shares] 0 [shares] 268 [shares] 0

                  Number of shares issued under employee 
                  stock option plan 

[shares] 3,410 [shares] 120 [shares] 3,410

                  Total aggregate number of shares issued 
                  during period 

[shares] 3,410 [shares] 31,937 [shares] 3,410

               Decrease in number of shares during period 
               [Abstract] 
                  Other decrease in number of shares [shares] 0 [shares] 0 [shares] 0

                  Total decrease in number of shares during 
                  period 

[shares] 0 [shares] 0 [shares] 0

               Total increase (decrease) in number of 
               shares outstanding 

[shares] 3,410 [shares] 31,937 [shares] 3,410

            Number of shares outstanding at end of period [shares] 1,67,024 [shares] 1,63,614 [shares] 1,31,677 [shares] 1,67,024

         Reconciliation of value of shares outstanding 
         [Abstract] 
            Changes in equity share capital [Abstract] 
               Increase in equity share capital during 
               period [Abstract] 
                  Amount of rights issue during period 0 0.159295 0

                  Amount of other preferential allotment 
                  issue during period 

0 0.00268 0

                  Amount of shares issued under employee 
                  stock option plan 

0.0341 0.0012 0.0341

                  Total aggregate amount of increase 
                  in equity share capital during period 

0.0341 0.163175 0.0341

               Decrease in equity share capital during 
               period [Abstract] 
                  Other decrease in amount of shares 0 0 0

                  Total decrease in equity share capital 
                  during period 

0 0 0
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               Total increase (decrease) in share capital 0.0341 0.163175 0.0341

            Equity share capital at end of period 1.514045 1.479945 1.31677 1.514045

         Details of application money received for 
         allotment of securities and due for refund and 
         interest accrued thereon [Abstract] 
            Application money received for allotment of 
            securities and due for refund and interest 
            accrued thereon [Abstract] 
               Total application money received for 
               allotment of securities and due for refund 
               and interest accrued thereon 

0 0 0

         Type of share Refer to child
member

Disclosure of classes of equity share capital [Table] ..(2)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of equity share capital [Axis] Equity shares 1 [Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

   Disclosure of classes of equity share capital [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of classes of equity share capital [Line items] 
         Type of share Refer to child member

         Number of shares authorised [shares] 2,18,330

         Value of shares authorised 2.1833

         Number of shares issued [shares] 1,64,903

         Value of shares issued 1.64903

         Number of shares subscribed and fully paid [shares] 1,32,375

         Value of shares subscribed and fully paid 1.32375

         Number of shares subscribed but not fully paid [shares] 31,239

         Value of shares subscribed but not fully paid 0.31239

         Total number of shares subscribed [shares] 1,63,614

         Total value of shares subscribed 1.63614

         Value of shares paid-up [Abstract] 
            Number of shares paid-up [shares] 1,63,614

            Value of shares called 1.479945

            Value of shares paid-up 1.479945

         Par value per share [INR/shares] 1

         Amount per share called in case shares not fully called [INR/shares] 0.5

         Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding [Abstract] 
            Changes in number of shares outstanding [Abstract] 
               Increase in number of shares outstanding [Abstract] 
                  Number of shares issued as rights [shares] 31,549

                  Number of shares issued as other preferential allotment [shares] 268

                  Number of shares issued under employee stock option plan [shares] 120

                  Total aggregate number of shares issued during period [shares] 31,937

               Decrease in number of shares during period [Abstract] 
                  Other decrease in number of shares [shares] 0

                  Total decrease in number of shares during period [shares] 0

               Total increase (decrease) in number of shares outstanding [shares] 31,937

            Number of shares outstanding at end of period [shares] 1,63,614 [shares] 1,31,677

         Reconciliation of value of shares outstanding [Abstract] 
            Changes in equity share capital [Abstract] 
               Increase in equity share capital during period [Abstract] 
                  Amount of rights issue during period 0.159295

                  Amount of other preferential allotment issue during period 0.00268

                  Amount of shares issued under employee stock option plan 0.0012

                  Total aggregate amount of increase in equity share capital during period 0.163175

               Decrease in equity share capital during period [Abstract] 
                  Other decrease in amount of shares 0

                  Total decrease in equity share capital during period 0

               Total increase (decrease) in share capital 0.163175

            Equity share capital at end of period 1.479945 1.31677

         Details of application money received for allotment of securities and due for 
         refund and interest accrued thereon [Abstract] 
            Application money received for allotment of securities and due for refund and 
            interest accrued thereon [Abstract] 
               Total application money received for allotment of securities and due for 
               refund and interest accrued thereon 

0

         Type of share Refer to child member
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Disclosure of shareholding more than five per cent in company [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of equity share capital [Axis] Equity shares 1 [Member]

Name of shareholder [Axis] Name of shareholder [Member] Shareholder 1 [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

         Type of share Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

Equity Shares Equity Shares

   Disclosure of shareholding more than five per cent in 
   company [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of shareholding more than five per cent 
      in company [LineItems] 

         Type of share Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

Equity Shares Equity Shares

         Name of shareholder Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

Abhiraj Singh Bhal Abhiraj Singh Bhal

         Permanent account number of shareholder ASIPB2625A ASIPB2625A

         Country of incorporation or residence of 
         shareholder 

INDIA INDIA

         Number of shares held in company [shares] 1,51,239 [shares] 1,51,239 [shares] 50,413 [shares] 50,413

         Percentage of shareholding in company 89.58% 91.65% 29.86% 30.55%

Disclosure of shareholding more than five per cent in company [Table] ..(2)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classes of equity share capital [Axis] Equity shares 1 [Member]

Name of shareholder [Axis] Shareholder 2 [Member] Shareholder 3 [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
         Type of share Equity Shares Equity Shares Equity Shares Equity Shares

   Disclosure of shareholding more than five per cent in 
   company [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of shareholding more than five per cent 
      in company [LineItems] 
         Type of share Equity Shares Equity Shares Equity Shares Equity Shares

         Name of shareholder Varun Khaitan Varun Khaitan Raghav Chandra Raghav Chandra

         Permanent account number of shareholder DJMPK8841R DJMPK8841R AJKPC7734J AJKPC7734J

         Country of incorporation or residence of 
         shareholder 

INDIA INDIA INDIA INDIA

         Number of shares held in company [shares] 50,413 [shares] 50,413 [shares] 50,413 [shares] 50,413

         Percentage of shareholding in company 29.86% 30.55% 29.86% 30.55%

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

Disclosure of notes on equity share capital explanatory [TextBlock] Textual information (13) 
[See below]

      Whether there are any shareholders holding more than five per cent 
      shares in company 

Yes Yes
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Textual information (13)

Disclosure of notes on equity share capital explanatory [Text Block]

 

13 Equity Share Capital        

     Equity    Equity  

     Authorised Capital    Issued Capital  

     (Equity shares of face value of Rs 1 each)    (Equity shares of face value of Rs 1 each)  

     Number of   Rs. in Lakh  Number of   Rs. in Lakh

     shares    shares  

  As at 1 April, 2019 1,68,330 1.68 1,32,966 1.33

  Increase during the year 50,000 0.5 31,937 0.32

  As at 31 March, 2020 2,18,330 2.18 1,64,903 1.65

  Increase during the year  -    -   3,410 0.03

  As at 31 March, 2021 2,18,330 2.18 1,68,313 1.68

 

Subscribed Equity Share Capital  Number of   Rs. in Lakh

   shares  

At 1 April, 2019 1,31,677 1.32

Shares issued during the year 31,937 0.32

At 31 March, 2020 1,63,614 1.64

Shares issued during the year 3,410 0.03

At 31 March, 2021 1,67,024 1.67
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Paid up Equity Share Capital  Number of   Rs. in Lakh

   shares  

At 1 April, 2019 1,31,677 1.32

Shares issued during the year* 31,937 0.16

At 31 March, 2020 1,63,614 1.48

Shares issued during the year 3,410 0.03

At 31 March, 2021 1,67,024 1.51

 

*31,239 equity share at paid up value of Rs. 0.5 each and 698 equity share at paid up value of Rs. 1 each

 

(a) Details of equity shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the
Holding Company

       

     As at 31 March,
2021

   As at 31 March,
2020

 

    Number of shares  %
holding

Number of shares  %
holding

  Equity Shares        

  Abhiraj Singh Bhal 50,413 29.86% 50,413 30.55%

  Varun Khaitan 50,413 29.86% 50,413 30.55%

  Raghav Chandra 50,413 29.86% 50,413 30.55%

 

(b)

The Holding Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 1 per share. Shareholder is eligible for one vote per
share held in case of fully paid up shares and upto paid up value in case of partly paid up shares. The dividend proposed by the Board of
Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the
event of liquidation of the Holding Company, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Holding
Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

   



 

186

URBANCLAP TECHNOLOGIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2020 to 31/03/2021 

(c) Share options granted under the Holding Company's employee share option plan

  Information relating to Holding Company's Employee Option Plan, including details of options issued, exercised and lapsed during the
financial year and options outstanding at the end of the reporting period, is set out in Note 33.

 

34 Instruments entirely equity in nature

   

 

Series A Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares, Series A1 Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares
(CCPS), Series B Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares, Series B1 Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference
Shares, Series C Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares, Series D Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference
Shares, Series E Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares ("Liquidation Preference Shares").The holders of the
Liquidation Preference Shares may convert their respective class of CCPS in whole or part into Equity shares at any time before 19
(Nineteen) years from the date of issuance of the same subject to the adjustments specified in Schedule III PART A, PART B, PART C,
PART D, PART E, PART F and PART G of the Article of Association of the Holdding Company. In the event the conversion of
respective class of Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares ("CCPS") entitles the holder to any fraction of an Equity
Share then such fraction shall be rounded up to the nearest whole number.

 

The Liquidation Preference Shares shall carry a pre-determined cumulative dividend rate of 1% per annum on an As If Converted Basis.
In addition to the same, if the holder of Equity Shares are paid dividend in excess of 1% per annum, the holder of the Liquidation
Preference shares shall be entitled to dividend at such higher rate. The dividend shall be paid on pari passu basis in priority to other
classes of shares.

   

(a)

The Holding Company has issued Series A, A1, B, B1, C, D and E, 1%, Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) and has
recognised in the shareholders equity Rs 34.58 lakhs and Rs 95,973.36 lakhs, as preference share capital and related share premium,
respectively, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Pursuant to the Shareholders' Agreement dated July 31,
2019, CCPS holders have the right to require an exit by way of buyback of all or part of the CCPS. Per Ind AS 32, 'Financial
Instruments: Presentation', this represents a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset and is hence required to be
classified as a financial liability. In accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, the Holding Company has an accounting policy
choice to separate host liability and the equity conversion feature. Alternatively, the Holding Company may choose to measure the
CCPS in its entirety at fair value through profit and loss. However, there remain certain contradictions between the Ind AS accounting
standards and the Companies Act, 2013 with regard to classification and measurement of such CCPS. Considering that the rule of
construction requires that the Act prevails over any subordinate legislation like the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, the Holding Company has not classified and measured the CCPS in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109 for the prior
years ended March 31 2018 and March 31 2019.  The Shareholders' Agreement has been amended dated March 30, 2020 with majority
preference shareholders having the ability to trigger the buyback, agreeing to irrevocably revoke/ waive these rights. As on the date of
waiver, the buyback clause is neither enforceable nor exercisable. Accordingly, from the date of the revision in Shareholders'
Agreement, the CCPS in their entirety meet the definition of an equity instrument as per Ind AS 32 and no change in classification is
necessitated as at March 31 2020.

   

 

(b) Share Capital        

           

           

  Authorised Share Capital        
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  Particulars  As at March 31,
2021

   As at March 31,
2020

 

   
 Number of
shares

 Rs in
Lakh

 Number of
shares

 Rs in
Lakh

  Series A Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 46,640 4.66 46,640 4.66

  Series A1 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 84,380 8.44 84,380 8.44

  Series B Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 93,025 9.3 93,025 9.3

  Series B1 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 1,402 0.14 1,402 0.14

  Series C Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 47,200 4.72 47,200 4.72

  Series D Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 52,542 5.25 52,542 5.25

  Series E Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 20,578 2.06 20,578 2.06

    3,45,767 34.57 3,45,767 34.57

           

  Issued Capital        

  Series A Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 46,640 4.66 46,640 4.66

  Series A1 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 84,380 8.44 84,380 8.44

  Series B Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 93,025 9.3 93,025 9.3

  Series B1 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 1,402 0.14 1,402 0.14

  Series C Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 47,200 4.72 47,200 4.72

  Series D Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 52,542 5.25 52,542 5.25

  Series E Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 20,578 2.06 20,578 2.06

    3,45,767 34.57 3,45,767 34.57

           

  Subscribed Capital        

  Series A Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 46,640 4.66 46,640 4.66
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  Series A1 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 84,380 8.44 84,380 8.44

  Series B Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 93,025 9.3 93,025 9.3

  Series B1 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 1,401 0.14 1,401 0.14

  Series C Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 47,200 4.72 47,200 4.72

  Series D Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 52,542 5.25 52,542 5.25

  Series E Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 20,578 2.06 20,578 2.06

    3,45,766 34.57 3,45,766 34.57

           

  Paid up Capital        

  Series A Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 46,640 4.66 46,640 4.66

  Series A1 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 84,380 8.44 84,380 8.44

  Series B Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 93,025 9.3 93,025 9.3

  Series B1 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 1,401 0.14 1,401 0.14

  Series C Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 47,200 4.72 47,200 4.72

  Series D Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 52,542 5.25 52,542 5.25

  Series E Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs10/- each 20,578 2.06 20,578 2.06

    3,45,766 34.57 3,45,766 34.57

           

           

(c) Reconciliation of the number of Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares        

           

  Particulars  As at March 31,
2021

   As at March 31,
2020
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     Number of
shares

 Rs in
Lakh

 Number of
shares

 Rs in
Lakh

  Series A Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share:        

  Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 46,640 4.66 46,640 4.66

  Shares issued during the year  -  -    -  -  

  Shares outstanding at the end of the year 46,640 4.66 46,640 4.66

           

  Series A1 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share:        

  Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 84,380 8.44 84,380 8.44

  Shares issued during the year  -  -    -  -  

  Shares outstanding at the end of the year 84,380 8.44 84,380 8.44

           

  Series B Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share:        

  Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 93,025 9.3 93,025 9.3

  Shares issued during the year  -  -    -  -  

  Shares outstanding at the end of the year 93,025 9.3 93,025 9.3

           

  Series B1 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share:        

  Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,401 0.14 1,401 0.14

  Shares issued during the year  -  -    -  -  

  Balance called up money  -  -    -  -  

  Shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,401 0.14 1,401 0.14

           

  Series C Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share:        
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  Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 47,200 4.72 47,200 4.72

  Shares issued during the year  -  -    -  -  

  Shares outstanding at the end of the year 47,200 4.72 47,200 4.72

           

  Series D Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share:        

  Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 52,542 5.25 52,542 5.25

  Shares issued during the year  -  -    -  -  

  Shares outstanding at the end of the year 52,542 5.25 52,542 5.25

           

  Series E Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share:        

  Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 20,578 2.06  -  -  

  Shares issued during the year  -  -   20,578 2.06

  Shares outstanding at the end of the year 20,578 2.06 20,578 2.06

           

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the
Holding Company

       

           

  Name of shareholder
 As at March 31,
2021

 
 As at March 31,
2020

 

    No. of Shares
%
Holding

No. of Shares
%
Holding

  Series A Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares:        

  Saif Partners India V Limited, Mauritius 4,598 9.86% 4,598 9.86%

  Internet Fund V Pte. Limited, Singapore 14,978 32.11% 14,978 32.11%

  Accel India IV (Mauritius) Limited, Mauritius 23,320 50.00% 23,320 50.00%
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  Series A1 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares:        

  Saif Partners India V Limited, Mauritius 42,190 50.00% 42,190 50.00%

  Accel India IV (Mauritius) Limited, Mauritius 42,190 50.00% 42,190 50.00%

           

  Series B Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares:        

  Saif Partners India V Limited, Mauritius 26,318 28.29% 26,318 28.29%

  Accel India IV (Mauritius) Limited, Mauritius 5,907 6.35% 5,907 6.35%

  Steadview Capital Mauritius Limited, Mauritius 5,304 5.70% 5,304 5.70%

  Bessemer India Capital Holding II Limited, Mauritius 54,560 58.65% 54,560 58.65%

           

  Series B1 Compulsorily Convertible  Preference Shares:        

  VYC11 Limited, British Virgin Island 1,401 100.00% 1,401 100.00%

           

  Series C Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares:        

  Saif Partners India V Limited, Mauritius 5,631 11.93% 5,631 11.93%

  Accel India IV (Mauritius) Limited, Mauritius 5,631 11.93% 5,631 11.93%

  VYC11 Limited, British Virgin Island 33,686 71.37% 33,686 71.37%

           

  Series D Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares:        

  Steadview Capital Mauritius Limited, Mauritius 27,914 53.13% 27,914 53.13%

  VYC11 Limited, British Virgin Island 18,951 36.07% 18,951 36.07%

  ABG Capital 5,677 10.80% 5,677 10.80%
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  Series E Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares:        

  Internet Fund V Pte. Limited, Singapore 12,327 59.90% 12,327 59.90%

  Steadview Capital Mauritius Limited, Mauritius 5,845 28.40% 5,845 28.40%

  VYC11 Limited, British Virgin Island 1,375 6.68% 1,375 6.68%

  ABG Capital 1,031 5.01% 1,031 5.01%

 

 

[612700] Notes - Income taxes

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

Disclosure of income tax [TextBlock] T e x t u a l  i n f o r m a t i o n  ( 1 4 )  
[See below]
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Textual information (14)

Disclosure of income tax [Text Block]

 

30 Deferred tax assets (Net)    

       

  Deferred tax assets    

  Current year losses 4,280.60 3,243.80

  Brought forward losses 8,035.08 7,799.72

  Employee benefits 3,379.08 2,300.51

  Impact of IND AS 116 127.36 37.84

  Depreciation and amortisation 32.24 48.92

  Others 23.58 565.24

  Total (A) 15,877.94 13,996.03

       

  Deferred tax liabilities    

  Others -20.19 -22.79

  Total (B) -20.19 -22.79

       

  Net deferred tax assets (A-B) 15,857.75 13,973.24

  Net deferred tax assets recognised in books of accounts  -    -  

       

 
The Group has not recognized deferred tax assets on tax losses and other temporary differences in the absence of
reasonable certainty of future taxable profits, for the current and previous year.

   

 



 

194

URBANCLAP TECHNOLOGIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2020 to 31/03/2021 

[611000] Notes - Exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
Disclosure of exploration and evaluation assets [TextBlock] 
   Whether there are any exploration and evaluation activities No No

[611900] Notes - Accounting for government grants and disclosure of government assistance

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
Disclosure of accounting for government grants and disclosure of government 
assistance [TextBlock] 
   Whether company has received any government grant or government assistance Yes No

   Description of accounting policy for government grants [TextBlock] Textual information (15) 
[See below]

   Description of nature and extent of government grants recognised in 
   financial statements 

The Government Grants is 
received to cover salary 
cost incurred during the 
COVID period

   Indication of other forms of government assistance with direct benefits 
   for entity 

  Not Applicable 

   Explanation of unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attaching 
   to government assistance 

  Not Applicable 

   Capital subsidies or grants received from government authorities 0 0

   Revenue subsidies or grants received from government authorities 172.2 0

Textual information (15)

Description of accounting policy for government grants [Text Block]

 

Government grants are recognised where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be
complied with.

When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed
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[401100] Notes - Subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets

Other current liabilities, others [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Other current liabilities, others [Axis] 1 2

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
   Subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets 
   [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of other current liabilities notes 
      [Abstract] 
         Other current liabilities [Abstract] 
            Other current liabilities, others 536.5 189.46 4,281.41 1,185.88

            Other current liabilities, others [Abstract] 
               Other current liabilities, others [Line 
               items] 
                  Description of other current liabilities, 
                  others 

Contract Liabilities:
Opening Balance

Contract Liabilities:
Opening Balance

Contract Liabilities:
Additions

Contract Liabilities:
Additions

                  Other current liabilities, others 536.5 189.46 4,281.41 1,185.88

Other current liabilities, others [Table] ..(2)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Other current liabilities, others [Axis] 3

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
   Subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of other current liabilities notes [Abstract] 
         Other current liabilities [Abstract] 
            Other current liabilities, others -3,575.62 -838.84

            Other current liabilities, others [Abstract] 
               Other current liabilities, others [Line items] 

                  Description of other current liabilities, others 
Contract Liabilities:
Less: Revenue
recognized

Contract Liabilities:
Less: Revenue
recognized

                  Other current liabilities, others -3,575.62 -838.84

Other non-current financial liabilities others [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Other non-current financial liabilities others [Axis] 1

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
   Subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of other non-current financial liabilities notes [Abstract] 
         Other non-current financial liabilities [Abstract] 
            Other non-current financial liabilities, others 7,017.65 10,064.27

            Other non-current financial liabilities others [Abstract] 
               Other non-current financial liabilities others [Line items] 
                  Description other non-current financial liabilities others Lease Liabilities Lease Liabilities

                  Other non-current financial liabilities, others 7,017.65 10,064.27

Classification of inventories [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification of inventories [Axis] Company inventories [Member] Stock-in-trade [Member]

31/03/2021 31/03/2020
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
   Subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets 
   [Abstract] 
      Inventories notes [Abstract] 
         Classification of inventories [Abstract] 
            Classification of inventories [Line items] 
               Inventories 1,246.93 1,419.32 1,246.93 1,419.32

               Mode of valuation Lower of cost and
Net realizable value

Lower of cost and
Net realizable value
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Details of loans [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification based on current non-current [Axis] Non-current [Member]

Classification of loans [Axis] Loans [Member]

Classification of assets based on security [Axis] Classification of assets based on security
[Member]

Unsecured considered good [Member]

31/03/2021 31/03/2020 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
   Subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets 
   [Abstract] 
      Loans notes [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of loans [Abstract] 
            Details of loans [Line items] 
               Loans , gross 767.08 909.08 767.08 909.08

               Allowance for bad and doubtful loans 0 0 0 0

               Total loans 767.08 909.08 767.08 909.08

               Details of loans due by directors, other 
               officers or others [Abstract] 
                  Loans due by directors 0 0 0 0

                  Loans due by other officers 0 0 0 0

                  Total loans due by directors, other 
                  officers or others 

0 0 0 0

               Details of loans due by firms or 
               companies in which any director 
               is partner or director [Abstract] 
                  Loans due by firms in which any director 
                  is partner 

0 0 0 0

                  Loans due by private companies in 
                  which any director is director 

0 0 0 0

                  Loans due by private companies in 
                  which any director is member 

0 0 0 0

                  Total loans due by firms or 
                  companies in which any director 
                  is partner or director 

0 0 0 0

Details of loans [Table] ..(2)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification based on current non-current [Axis] Non-current [Member] Current [Member]

Classification of loans [Axis] Security deposits [Member] Loans [Member]

Classification of assets based on security [Axis] Unsecured considered good [Member] Classification of assets based on security
[Member]

31/03/2021 31/03/2020 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
   Subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets 
   [Abstract] 
      Loans notes [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of loans [Abstract] 
            Details of loans [Line items] 
               Loans , gross 767.08 909.08 150.34 100.56

               Allowance for bad and doubtful loans 0 0 0 0

               Total loans 767.08 909.08 150.34 100.56

               Details of loans due by directors, other 
               officers or others [Abstract] 
                  Loans due by directors 0 0 0 0

                  Loans due by other officers 0 0 0 0

                  Total loans due by directors, other 
                  officers or others 

0 0 0 0

               Details of loans due by firms or 
               companies in which any director 
               is partner or director [Abstract] 
                  Loans due by firms in which any director 
                  is partner 

0 0 0 0

                  Loans due by private companies in 
                  which any director is director 

0 0 0 0

                  Loans due by private companies in 
                  which any director is member 

0 0 0 0

                  Total loans due by firms or 
                  companies in which any director 
                  is partner or director 

0 0 0 0
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Details of loans [Table] ..(3)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification based on current non-current [Axis] Current [Member]

Classification of loans [Axis] Loans [Member] Security deposits [Member]
Classification of assets based on security [Axis] Unsecured considered good [Member] Unsecured considered good [Member]

31/03/2021 31/03/2020 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
   Subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets 
   [Abstract] 
      Loans notes [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of loans [Abstract] 
            Details of loans [Line items] 
               Loans , gross 150.34 100.56 150.34 100.56

               Allowance for bad and doubtful loans 0 0 0 0

               Total loans 150.34 100.56 150.34 100.56

               Details of loans due by directors, other 
               officers or others [Abstract] 
                  Loans due by directors 0 0 0 0

                  Loans due by other officers 0 0 0 0

                  Total loans due by directors, other 
                  officers or others 

0 0 0 0

               Details of loans due by firms or 
               companies in which any director 
               is partner or director [Abstract] 
                  Loans due by firms in which any director 
                  is partner 

0 0 0 0

                  Loans due by private companies in 
                  which any director is director 

0 0 0 0

                  Loans due by private companies in 
                  which any director is member 

0 0 0 0

                  Total loans due by firms or 
                  companies in which any director 
                  is partner or director 

0 0 0 0

Disclosure of breakup of provisions [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification based on current non-current [Axis] Non-current [Member] Current [Member]

31/03/2021 31/03/2020 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
   Subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets 
   [Abstract] 
      Provisions notes [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of breakup of provisions [Abstract] 
            Disclosure of breakup of provisions [Line items] 
               Provisions [Abstract] 
                  Provisions for employee benefits 
                  [Abstract] 
                     Provision gratuity 554.01 341.46 34.64 7.3

                     Provision leave encashment 0 0 283.83 123.54

                     Total provisions for employee benefits 554.01 341.46 318.47 130.84

                  CSR expenditure provision 0 0 0 0

                  Total provisions 554.01 341.46 318.47 130.84
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Details of advances [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification based on current non-current [Axis] Non-current [Member]

Classification of advances [Axis] Advances [Member]

Classification of assets based on security [Axis] Classification of assets based on security
[Member]

Unsecured considered good [Member]

31/03/2021 31/03/2020 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
   Subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets 
   [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of notes on advances [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of advances [Abstract] 
            Disclosure of advances [Line items] 
               Advances 297.14 110.06 297.14 110.06

               Details of advance due by directors other 
               officers or others [Abstract] 
                  Advance due by directors 0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by other officers 0 0 0 0

                  Total advance due by directors other 
                  officers or others 

0 0 0 0

               Details of advance due by firms or 
               companies in which any director 
               is partner or director [Abstract] 
                  Advance due by firms in which any 
                  director is partner 

0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by private companies in 
                  which any director is director 

0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by private companies in 
                  which any director is member 

0 0 0 0

                  Total advance due by firms or 
                  companies in which any director 
                  is partner or director 

0 0 0 0

Details of advances [Table] ..(2)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification based on current non-current [Axis] Non-current [Member]

Classification of advances [Axis] Security deposits [Member] Advances given suppliers [Member]
Classification of assets based on security [Axis] Unsecured considered good [Member] Unsecured considered good [Member]

31/03/2021 31/03/2020 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
   Subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets 
   [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of notes on advances [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of advances [Abstract] 
            Disclosure of advances [Line items] 
               Advances 0 0 0 0

               Details of advance due by directors other 
               officers or others [Abstract] 
                  Advance due by directors 0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by other officers 0 0 0 0

                  Total advance due by directors other 
                  officers or others 

0 0 0 0

               Details of advance due by firms or 
               companies in which any director 
               is partner or director [Abstract] 
                  Advance due by firms in which any 
                  director is partner 

0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by private companies in 
                  which any director is director 

0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by private companies in 
                  which any director is member 

0 0 0 0

                  Total advance due by firms or 
                  companies in which any director 
                  is partner or director 

0 0 0 0
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Details of advances [Table] ..(3)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification based on current non-current [Axis] Non-current [Member]

Classification of advances [Axis] Other Advances [Member] Prepaid expenses [Member]
Classification of assets based on security [Axis] Unsecured considered good [Member] Unsecured considered good [Member]

31/03/2021 31/03/2020 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
   Subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets 
   [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of notes on advances [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of advances [Abstract] 
            Disclosure of advances [Line items] 
               Advances 297.14 110.06 0 0

               Details of advance due by directors other 
               officers or others [Abstract] 
                  Advance due by directors 0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by other officers 0 0 0 0

                  Total advance due by directors other 
                  officers or others 

0 0 0 0

               Details of advance due by firms or 
               companies in which any director 
               is partner or director [Abstract] 
                  Advance due by firms in which any 
                  director is partner 

0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by private companies in 
                  which any director is director 

0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by private companies in 
                  which any director is member 

0 0 0 0

                  Total advance due by firms or 
                  companies in which any director 
                  is partner or director 

0 0 0 0

Details of advances [Table] ..(4)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification based on current non-current [Axis] Non-current [Member]

Classification of advances [Axis] Advance tax [Member] Advance income tax paid [Member]
Classification of assets based on security [Axis] Unsecured considered good [Member] Unsecured considered good [Member]

31/03/2021 31/03/2020 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
   Subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets 
   [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of notes on advances [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of advances [Abstract] 
            Disclosure of advances [Line items] 
               Advances 297.14 110.06 297.14 110.06

               Details of advance due by directors other 
               officers or others [Abstract] 
                  Advance due by directors 0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by other officers 0 0 0 0

                  Total advance due by directors other 
                  officers or others 

0 0 0 0

               Details of advance due by firms or 
               companies in which any director 
               is partner or director [Abstract] 
                  Advance due by firms in which any 
                  director is partner 

0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by private companies in 
                  which any director is director 

0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by private companies in 
                  which any director is member 

0 0 0 0

                  Total advance due by firms or 
                  companies in which any director 
                  is partner or director 

0 0 0 0
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Details of advances [Table] ..(5)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification based on current non-current [Axis] Non-current [Member]

Classification of advances [Axis] Service tax receivable [Member] Other advances, others [Member]
Classification of assets based on security [Axis] Unsecured considered good [Member] Unsecured considered good [Member]

31/03/2021 31/03/2020 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
   Subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets 
   [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of notes on advances [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of advances [Abstract] 
            Disclosure of advances [Line items] 
               Advances 0 0 0 0

               Details of advance due by directors other 
               officers or others [Abstract] 
                  Advance due by directors 0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by other officers 0 0 0 0

                  Total advance due by directors other 
                  officers or others 

0 0 0 0

               Details of advance due by firms or 
               companies in which any director 
               is partner or director [Abstract] 
                  Advance due by firms in which any 
                  director is partner 

0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by private companies in 
                  which any director is director 

0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by private companies in 
                  which any director is member 

0 0 0 0

                  Total advance due by firms or 
                  companies in which any director 
                  is partner or director 

0 0 0 0

Details of advances [Table] ..(6)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification based on current non-current [Axis] Current [Member]

Classification of advances [Axis] Advances [Member]

Classification of assets based on security [Axis] Classification of assets based on security
[Member]

Unsecured considered good [Member]

31/03/2021 31/03/2020 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
   Subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets 
   [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of notes on advances [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of advances [Abstract] 
            Disclosure of advances [Line items] 
               Advances 1,333.74 1,364.72 1,333.74 1,364.72

               Details of advance due by directors other 
               officers or others [Abstract] 
                  Advance due by directors 0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by other officers 0 0 0 0

                  Total advance due by directors other 
                  officers or others 

0 0 0 0

               Details of advance due by firms or 
               companies in which any director 
               is partner or director [Abstract] 
                  Advance due by firms in which any 
                  director is partner 

0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by private companies in 
                  which any director is director 

0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by private companies in 
                  which any director is member 

0 0 0 0

                  Total advance due by firms or 
                  companies in which any director 
                  is partner or director 

0 0 0 0
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Details of advances [Table] ..(7)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification based on current non-current [Axis] Current [Member]

Classification of advances [Axis] Security deposits [Member] Advances given suppliers [Member]
Classification of assets based on security [Axis] Unsecured considered good [Member] Unsecured considered good [Member]

31/03/2021 31/03/2020 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
   Subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets 
   [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of notes on advances [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of advances [Abstract] 
            Disclosure of advances [Line items] 
               Advances 0 0 525.68 449.54

               Details of advance due by directors other 
               officers or others [Abstract] 
                  Advance due by directors 0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by other officers 0 0 0 0

                  Total advance due by directors other 
                  officers or others 

0 0 0 0

               Details of advance due by firms or 
               companies in which any director 
               is partner or director [Abstract] 
                  Advance due by firms in which any 
                  director is partner 

0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by private companies in 
                  which any director is director 

0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by private companies in 
                  which any director is member 

0 0 0 0

                  Total advance due by firms or 
                  companies in which any director 
                  is partner or director 

0 0 0 0

Details of advances [Table] ..(8)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification based on current non-current [Axis] Current [Member]

Classification of advances [Axis] Other Advances [Member] Prepaid expenses [Member]
Classification of assets based on security [Axis] Unsecured considered good [Member] Unsecured considered good [Member]

31/03/2021 31/03/2020 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
   Subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets 
   [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of notes on advances [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of advances [Abstract] 
            Disclosure of advances [Line items] 
               Advances 808.06 915.18 274.97 148.96

               Details of advance due by directors other 
               officers or others [Abstract] 
                  Advance due by directors 0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by other officers 0 0 0 0

                  Total advance due by directors other 
                  officers or others 

0 0 0 0

               Details of advance due by firms or 
               companies in which any director 
               is partner or director [Abstract] 
                  Advance due by firms in which any 
                  director is partner 

0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by private companies in 
                  which any director is director 

0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by private companies in 
                  which any director is member 

0 0 0 0

                  Total advance due by firms or 
                  companies in which any director 
                  is partner or director 

0 0 0 0
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Details of advances [Table] ..(9)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification based on current non-current [Axis] Current [Member]

Classification of advances [Axis] Advance tax [Member] Advance income tax paid [Member]
Classification of assets based on security [Axis] Unsecured considered good [Member] Unsecured considered good [Member]

31/03/2021 31/03/2020 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
   Subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets 
   [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of notes on advances [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of advances [Abstract] 
            Disclosure of advances [Line items] 
               Advances 0 0 0 0

               Details of advance due by directors other 
               officers or others [Abstract] 
                  Advance due by directors 0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by other officers 0 0 0 0

                  Total advance due by directors other 
                  officers or others 

0 0 0 0

               Details of advance due by firms or 
               companies in which any director 
               is partner or director [Abstract] 
                  Advance due by firms in which any 
                  director is partner 

0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by private companies in 
                  which any director is director 

0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by private companies in 
                  which any director is member 

0 0 0 0

                  Total advance due by firms or 
                  companies in which any director 
                  is partner or director 

0 0 0 0

Details of advances [Table] ..(10)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification based on current non-current [Axis] Current [Member]

Classification of advances [Axis] Service tax receivable [Member] Other advances, others [Member]
Classification of assets based on security [Axis] Unsecured considered good [Member] Unsecured considered good [Member]

31/03/2021 31/03/2020 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
   Subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets 
   [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of notes on advances [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of advances [Abstract] 
            Disclosure of advances [Line items] 
               Advances (A)   484.76 (B)   764.3 48.33 1.92

               Details of advance due by directors other 
               officers or others [Abstract] 
                  Advance due by directors 0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by other officers 0 0 0 0

                  Total advance due by directors other 
                  officers or others 

0 0 0 0

               Details of advance due by firms or 
               companies in which any director 
               is partner or director [Abstract] 
                  Advance due by firms in which any 
                  director is partner 

0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by private companies in 
                  which any director is director 

0 0 0 0

                  Advance due by private companies in 
                  which any director is member 

0 0 0 0

                  Total advance due by firms or 
                  companies in which any director 
                  is partner or director 

0 0 0 0

Footnotes
 (A) Goods and Services Tax credit recoverable

 (B) Goods and Services Tax credit recoverable
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Other current financial liabilities, others [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Other current financial liabilities, others [Axis] 1 2

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
   Subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets 
   [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of other current financial liabilities 
      notes [Abstract] 
         Other current financial liabilities [Abstract] 
            Other current financial liabilities, others 1,653.45 1,822.24 190.07 189.38

            Other current financial liabilities, others 
            [Abstract] 
               Other current financial liabilities, others 
               [Line items] 
                  Description of other current financial 
                  liabilities, others 

Lease Liabilities Lease Liabilities
Employee benefits
payable

Employee benefits
payable

                  Other current financial liabilities, 
                  others 

1,653.45 1,822.24 190.07 189.38

Other current financial liabilities, others [Table] ..(2)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Other current financial liabilities, others [Axis] 3 4

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
   Subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets 
   [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of other current financial liabilities 
      notes [Abstract] 
         Other current financial liabilities [Abstract] 
            Other current financial liabilities, others 1,376.62 326.39 401.24 391.14

            Other current financial liabilities, others 
            [Abstract] 
               Other current financial liabilities, others 
               [Line items] 

                  Description of other current financial 
                  liabilities, others 

Payable to
customers (service
providers)

Payable to customers
(service providers)

Security deposits
from customers
(service providers)

Security deposits
from customers
(service providers)

                  Other current financial liabilities, 
                  others 

1,376.62 326.39 401.24 391.14

Other current financial liabilities, others [Table] ..(3)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Other current financial liabilities, others [Axis] 5 6

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
   Subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets 
   [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of other current financial liabilities 
      notes [Abstract] 
         Other current financial liabilities [Abstract] 
            Other current financial liabilities, others 132.35 74.2 102.87 77.38

            Other current financial liabilities, others 
            [Abstract] 
               Other current financial liabilities, others 
               [Line items] 
                  Description of other current financial 
                  liabilities, others 

Creditor for capital
goods

Creditor for capital
goods

Amount recovered
on behalf of others

Amount recovered on
behalf of others

                  Other current financial liabilities, 
                  others 

132.35 74.2 102.87 77.38
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Other current financial assets others [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Other current financial assets others [Axis] 1 2

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
   Subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets 
   [Abstract] 
      Other current financial assets [Abstract] 
         Other current financial assets others 503.15 893.52 893.04 138.3

         Other current financial assets others [Abstract] 
            Other current financial assets others [Line 
            items] 
               Description other current financial assets 
               others 

Interest accrued on
deposits

Interest accrued on
deposits

Recoverable from
payment gateway

Recoverable from
payment gateway

               Other current financial assets others 503.15 893.52 893.04 138.3

Other current financial assets others [Table] ..(2)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Other current financial assets others [Axis] 3 4

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
   Subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets 
   [Abstract] 
      Other current financial assets [Abstract] 
         Other current financial assets others 76.92 483.74 122.68 1.65

         Other current financial assets others [Abstract] 
            Other current financial assets others [Line 
            items] 
               Description other current financial assets 
               others 

Recoverable from
service providers

Recoverable from
service providers

Other assets Other assets

               Other current financial assets others 76.92 483.74 122.68 1.65

Other current financial assets others [Table] ..(3)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Other current financial assets others [Axis] 5 6

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
   Subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets 
   [Abstract] 
      Other current financial assets [Abstract] 
         Other current financial assets others 124.05 200 -124.05 -200

         Other current financial assets others [Abstract] 
            Other current financial assets others [Line 
            items] 

               Description other current financial assets 
               others 

Recoverable from
service providers

Recoverable from
service providers

Recoverable from
service providers :
Less: Allowance for
doubtful recoveries

Recoverable from
service providers :
Less: Allowance for
doubtful recoveries

               Other current financial assets others 124.05 200 -124.05 -200
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Subclassification of trade receivables [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification based on current non-current [Axis] Non-current [Member]

Classification of assets based on security [Axis] Classification of assets based on security
[Member]

Unsecured considered good [Member]

31/03/2021 31/03/2020 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
   Subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets 
   [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of notes on trade receivables [Abstract] 
         Subclassification of trade receivables [Abstract] 
            Subclassification of trade receivables [Line 
            items] 
               Breakup of trade receivables [Abstract] 
                  Trade receivables, gross 0 0 0 0

                  Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 0 0 0 0

                  Total trade receivables 0 0 0 0

               Details of trade receivables due by 
               directors, other officers or others 
               [Abstract] 
                  Trade receivables due by directors 0 0

                  Trade receivables due by other officers 0 0

                  Total trade receivables due by 
                  directors, other officers or others 

0 0

               Details of trade receivables due by firms 
               or companies in which any director is 
               partner or director [Abstract] 
                  Trade receivables due by firms in 
                  which any director is partner 

0 0

                  Trade receivables due by private 
                  companies in which any director is 
                  director 

0 0

                  Trade receivables due by private 
                  companies in which any director is 
                  member 

0 0

                  Total trade receivables due by 
                  firms or companies in which any 
                  director is partner or director 

0 0
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Subclassification of trade receivables [Table] ..(2)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Classification based on current non-current [Axis] Current [Member]

Classification of assets based on security [Axis] Classification of assets based on security
[Member]

Unsecured considered good [Member]

31/03/2021 31/03/2020 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
   Subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets 
   [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of notes on trade receivables [Abstract] 
         Subclassification of trade receivables [Abstract] 
            Subclassification of trade receivables [Line 
            items] 
               Breakup of trade receivables [Abstract] 
                  Trade receivables, gross 445.21 93.6 (A)   445.21 93.6

                  Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 137.64 0 137.64 0

                  Total trade receivables 307.57 93.6 307.57 93.6

               Details of trade receivables due by 
               directors, other officers or others 
               [Abstract] 
                  Trade receivables due by directors 0 0

                  Trade receivables due by other officers 0 0

                  Total trade receivables due by 
                  directors, other officers or others 

0 0

               Details of trade receivables due by firms 
               or companies in which any director is 
               partner or director [Abstract] 
                  Trade receivables due by firms in 
                  which any director is partner 

0 0

                  Trade receivables due by private 
                  companies in which any director is 
                  director 

0 0

                  Trade receivables due by private 
                  companies in which any director is 
                  member 

0 0

                  Total trade receivables due by 
                  firms or companies in which any 
                  director is partner or director 

0 0

Footnotes
 (A) Trade receivables – unsecured and considered good: 307.57 'Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk:

44.09 Trade receivables – credit impaired: 93.55
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Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

31/03/2020

Disclosure of subclassification and notes on liabilities and assets 
explanatory [TextBlock] 

         Disclosure of notes on trade receivables explanatory [TextBlock] Textual information (16) 
[See below]

         Disclosure of notes on loans explanatory [TextBlock] Textual information (17) 
[See below]

         Disclosure of notes on other non-current assets explanatory 
         [TextBlock] 

Textual information (18) 
[See below]

            Advances, non-current (A)   297.14 (B)   110.06

            Total other non-current assets 297.14 110.06

         Disclosure of inventories Explanatory [TextBlock] Textual information (19) 
[See below]

         Disclosure of notes on cash and bank balances explanatory [TextBlock] Textual information (20) 
[See below]

                        Fixed deposits with banks 1,341.07 8,920.25

                        Other balances with banks 3,241.27 1,017.41

                        Total balance with banks 4,582.34 9,937.66

                     Cash on hand 0 0

                     Total cash and cash equivalents 4,582.34 9,937.66

                  Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 8,190.25 5,356.04

                  Total cash and bank balances 12,772.59 15,293.7

                  Total balances held with banks to extent held as 
                  margin money or security against borrowings, 
                  guarantees or other commitments 

0 0

               Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity 0 0

         Disclosure of notes on other current financial assets explanatory 
         [TextBlock] 

Textual information (21) 
[See below]

         Total other current financial assets 1,595.79 1,517.21

         Disclosure of notes on other current assets explanatory [TextBlock] Textual information (22) 
[See below]

            Advances, current (C)   1,333.74 (D)   1,364.72

            Total other current assets 1,333.74 1,364.72

            Total other non-current financial liabilities (E)   7,017.65 (F)   10,064.27

         Disclosure of notes on provisions explanatory [TextBlock] Textual information (23) 
[See below]

         Disclosure of notes on other current financial liabilities 
         explanatory [TextBlock] 

Textual information (24) 
[See below]

            Interest accrued on borrowings 0 0

            Interest accrued on public deposits 0 0

            Interest accrued others 0 0

            Unpaid dividends 0 0

            Unpaid matured deposits and interest accrued thereon 0 0

            Unpaid matured debentures and interest accrued thereon 0 0

            Debentures claimed but not paid 0 0

            Public deposit payable, current 0 0

            Total other current financial liabilities (G)   3,856.6 (H)   2,880.73

         Disclosure of other current liabilities notes explanatory [TextBlock] Textual information (25) 
[See below]

               Advance received from customers 797.47 535

               Total other advance 797.47 535

               Taxes payable other tax (I)   735.17 (J)   480.39

               Current liabilities portion of share application money pending 
               allotment 

0 0

               Total other payables, current 735.17 480.39

            Total other current liabilities (K)   2,774.93 (L)   1,551.89
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Footnotes
 (A) - Advance tax : 297.14

 (B) - Advance tax : 110.06

 (C) Prepaid Expenses : 274.97 Goods and Services Tax credit recoverable : 484.76 Advance to vendors : 525.68 Other advances :
48.33

 (D) Prepaid Expenses : 148.96 Goods and Services Tax credit recoverable : 764.3 Advance to vendors : 449.54 Other advances :
1.92

 (E) Lease liabilities : 7017.65

 (F) Lease liabilities : 10064.27

 (G) Lease liabilities : 1653.45 Other financial liabilities : 2203.15

 (H) Lease liabilities : 1822.24 Other financial liabilities : 1058.49

 (I) Statutory dues payable : 735.17

 (J) Statutory dues payable : 480.39

 (K) Contract liabilities : 1242.29 Other current liabilities : 1532.64

 (L) Contract liabilities : 536.5 Other current liabilities : 1015.39

Textual information (16)

Disclosure of notes on trade receivables explanatory [Text Block]

 

10 Trade receivables    

  Trade receivables – unsecured and considered good 307.57 93.6

  Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 44.09  -  

  Trade receivables – credit impaired 93.55  -  

  Less: Loss Allowance -137.64  -  

    307.57 93.6
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Textual information (17)

Disclosure of notes on loans explanatory [Text Block]

 

6  Loans    

   (Measured at amortised cost)    

   Non-current (Unsecured, considered good)    

   Security deposits  767.08 909.08

    767.08 909.08

       

   Current (Unsecured, considered good)    

   Security deposits  150.34 100.56

    150.34 100.56

 

Textual information (18)

Disclosure of notes on other non-current assets explanatory [Text Block]

 

8  Other assets    

   Non-current (Unsecured, considered good)     

   Balances with government authorities    

   - Advance tax 297.14 110.06

    297.14 110.06
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Textual information (19)

Disclosure of inventories Explanatory [Text Block]

 

9 Inventories    

  Traded goods 1,246.93 1,419.32

    1,246.93 1,419.32

 



 

211

URBANCLAP TECHNOLOGIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2020 to 31/03/2021 

Textual information (20)

Disclosure of notes on cash and bank balances explanatory [Text Block]

 

11 Cash and cash equivalents        

  Balance with banks - in current accounts     3,241.27 1,017.41

  Term deposit with maturity less than or equal to 3 months     1,341.07 8,920.25

        4,582.34 9,937.66

           

  There are no repatriation restriction with regard to cash and cash equivalents as the end of reporting period and
prior periods

       

           

12 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents        

  Term deposit with maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months*     8,190.25 5,356.04

        8,190.25 5,356.04

           

 
*Term deposits of Rs. 1,030.00 Lakh (March 31, 2020 Rs. 36.04 Lakh) are under lien with banks for assuring
guarantees.
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Textual information (21)

Disclosure of notes on other current financial assets explanatory [Text Block]

 

7  Other financial assets    

   (Measured at amortised cost)    

   Current (Unsecured, considered good)    

   Interest accrued on deposits 503.15 893.52

   Recoverable from payment gateway 893.04 138.3

   Recoverable from service providers 76.92 483.74

   Other assets 122.68 1.65

    1,595.79 1,517.21

       

   Current (Unsecured, Considered Doubtful)    

   Recoverable from service providers 124.05 200

   Less: Allowance for doubtful recoveries -124.05 -200

    1,595.79 1,517.21
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Textual information (22)

Disclosure of notes on other current assets explanatory [Text Block]

 

8  Other assets    

   Current assets (Unsecured, considered good)    

   Prepaid Expenses 274.97 148.96

   Goods and Services Tax credit recoverable 484.76 764.3

   Advance to vendors 525.68 449.54

   Other advances  48.33 1.92

    1,333.74 1,364.72
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Textual information (23)

Disclosure of notes on provisions explanatory [Text Block]

 

18 Provisions    

  Non-current    

  Provision for employee benefits    

  Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 32) 554.01 341.46

    554.01 341.46

       

  Current    

  Provision for employee benefits    

  Provision for leave encashment 283.83 123.54

  Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 32) 34.64 7.3

    318.47 130.84
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Textual information (24)

Disclosure of notes on other current financial liabilities explanatory [Text Block]

 

       Rs in
Lakh

     As at  As at

    31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

  Financial liabilities    

       

15 Trade payables    

  -Micro and small enterprises* 41.23 13.62

  Others 4,784.77 3,194.19

       

    4,826.00 3,207.81

       

 
* The Group has certain dues to suppliers (trade and capital) registered under Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘MSMED Act’). The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as
follows:

   

       

 
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each
accounting year:

   

  Principal amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises 41.23 13.62

  Interest due on the above 2.76  -  

 
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
during each accounting year;

  -     -  

 
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

6.93  -  
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  The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and 9.68  -  

 
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

  -     -  

       

       

16 Other financial liabilities    

  Current    

  Employee benefits payable 190.07 189.38

  Payable to customers (service providers) 1376.62 326.39

  Security deposits from customers (service providers) 401.24 391.14

  Creditor for capital goods 132.35 74.2

  Amount recovered on behalf of others 102.87 77.38

    2,203.15 1,058.49
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Textual information (25)

Disclosure of other current liabilities notes explanatory [Text Block]

 

17 Contract Liabilities    

       

  Movement in contract liabilities:    

  Opening balance 536.5 189.46

  Addition 4,281.41 1,185.88

  Less: Revenue recognized* 3,575.62 838.84

    1,242.29 536.5

       

 
* Out of the revenue recognized, revenue recognized from opening balance is Rs. 536.50 Lakh (March 31, 2020: Rs.
189.46 Lakh)

   

  The Group expects to recognize the revenue for the contract liabilities during the operating cycle of the Group    

 

19 Other current liabilities    

       

  Statutory dues payable 735.17 480.39

  Advance from customers (service providers) 797.47 535

    1,532.64 1,015.39
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[401200] Notes - Additional disclosures on balance sheet

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

Disclosure of additional balance sheet notes explanatory [TextBlock] Textual information (26) 
[See below]

   Additional balance sheet notes [Abstract] 
      Contingent liabilities and commitments [Abstract] 
         Classification of contingent liabilities [Abstract] 
            Total contingent liabilities 0 0

         Total contingent liabilities and commitments 0 0

      Details regarding dividends [Abstract] 
         Amount of dividends proposed to be distributed to equity shareholders 0 0

         Amount of per share dividend proposed to be distributed to equity 
         shareholders 

[INR/shares] 0 [INR/shares] 0

      Details of deposits [Abstract] 
         Deposits accepted or renewed during period 0 0

         Deposits matured and claimed but not paid during period 0 0

         Deposits matured and claimed but not paid 0 0

         Deposits matured but not claimed 0 0

         Interest on deposits accrued and due but not paid 0 0

      Details of share application money received and paid [Abstract] 
         Share application money received during year 0 0

         Share application money paid during year 0 0

         Amount of share application money received back during year 0 0

         Amount of share application money repaid returned back during year 0 0

         Number of person share application money paid during year [pure] 0 [pure] 0

         Number of person share application money received during year [pure] 0 [pure] 0

         Number of person share application money paid as at end of year [pure] 0 [pure] 0

         Number of person share application money received as at end of year [pure] 0 [pure] 0

         Share application money received and due for refund 0 0

      Details regarding cost records and cost audit[Abstract] 
         Details regarding cost records [Abstract] 
            Whether maintenance of cost records by company has been 
            mandated under Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 
            2014 

No No

         Net worth of company (A)   45,360.36 (B)   63,105.81

      Details of unclaimed liabilities [Abstract] 
         Unclaimed share application refund money 0 0

         Unclaimed matured debentures 0 0

         Unclaimed matured deposits 0 0

         Interest unclaimed amount 0 0

      Financial parameters balance sheet items [Abstract] 
         Investment in subsidiary companies 0 0

         Investment in government companies 0 0

         Amount due for transfer to investor education and protection fund 
         (IEPF) 

0 0

         Gross value of transactions with related parties 0 0

         Number of warrants converted into equity shares during period [pure] 0 [pure] 0

         Number of warrants converted into preference shares during period [pure] 0 [pure] 0

         Number of warrants converted into debentures during period [pure] 0 [pure] 0

         Number of warrants issued during period (in foreign currency) [pure] 0 [pure] 0

         Number of warrants issued during period (INR) [pure] 0 [pure] 0

Footnotes
 (A) Equity share capital : 1.51 Other equity : 45358.85

 (B) Equity share capital : 1.48 Other equity : 63104.33
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Textual information (26)

Disclosure of additional balance sheet notes explanatory [Text Block]

 

42 Transfer pricing

 

The Group has a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation
under sections 92-92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation to be
contemporaneous in nature, the Group appoints independent consultants for conducting a Transfer Pricing Study to determine whether
the transactions with associate enterprises are undertaken, during the financial year, on an "arms length basis". Adjustments, if any,
arising from the transfer pricing study shall be accounted for as and when the study is completed for the current financial year. However,
the management is of the opinion that its international transactions are at arm's length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any
impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation. The transfer pricing
study for the year ended March 31, 2020 did not result in any adjustment.

43 The corporate social responsibility (CSR)

 
Group falls under the criteria specified as per Sec. 135 of Companies Act, 2013. But as the Group is incurring losses during the
immediately preceding 3 financial years, Group is not required to spend any amount on the CSR activities.

 

 

44 Impact of COVID-19

 

The Group has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 in the preparation of these
financial statements including the recoverability of carrying amounts of financial and non financial assets. In developing the assumptions
relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Group has, at the date of
approval of these financial statements, used internal and external sources of information and expects that the carrying amount of these
assets will be recovered. The Group shall continue to monitor the impact of the situation on the financial condition, operations and
liquidity of the Group.

 

 

 

 

[611800] Notes - Revenue

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

Disclosure of revenue [TextBlock] Textual information (27) 
[See below]

Textual information (28) 
[See below]
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Textual information (27)

Disclosure of revenue [Text Block]

 

Revenue recognition 

 

In revenue arrangements where more than one service is provided to the customer, customer consideration is allocated between the services
using fair value principles. The fair values determined for deliverables may impact the timing of the recognition of revenue. The Group
generally determines the fair value of individual elements based on a cost plus a reasonable margin. Revision to the estimates of these fair
values may significantly affect the allocation of total arrangement consideration among the individual elements.

 

(vii)              Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services/goods are transferred to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those services and excluding taxes or duties collected on
behalf of the government.

Commission income

The Group acts as an agent between service professional and an end customer and earns commission as its revenue. Commission Income is
recognised net of discounts, rebates and any other incentive provided to the end customer.

Revenue from sale of services is recognized upon successful completion of services as per agreement, such revenue is recognized at point in
time.

Revenue from subscription (from end Customer and from service professional) is recognised over the subscription period.

A contract liability is recognised on account of unsettled advances received from /due to customers for subscription.

Sale of goods

The Group sells products to the service professionals which are used by the service professional for rendering services on the platform.
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at a point in time i.e. when control of goods are transferred to the service professional. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Group has
used a practical expedient as permitted under para 63 of Ind AS 115.

Discounts, wallet balance, credits and other incentives

The Group periodically provides incentive offers to the end customers. These promotions are generally in the nature of discount coupons,
cash credits, wallet balance etc. which are to be applied against the transaction price. These incentive offers are recorded as reduction in
commission revenue on a transaction by transaction basis. Discounts in excess of revenue earned from the end customer at an individual
transaction level are recorded as Marketing Expenses.

Credit expiry revenue

Wallet balance maintained by service professionals as per the agreed terms, on expiry is recorded as revenue in the books of the Group.
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Interest income

Interest income on all debt instruments is measured either at amortised cost. Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the EIR, the Group estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument. Interest income is included in other income in the
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Textual information (28)

Disclosure of revenue [Text Block]

 

Revenue recognition 

In revenue arrangements where more than one service is provided to the customer, customer consideration is allocated between the services
using fair value principles. The fair values determined for deliverables may impact the timing of the recognition of revenue. The Group
generally determines the fair value of individual elements based on a cost plus a reasonable margin. Revision to the estimates of these fair
values may significantly affect the allocation of total arrangement consideration among the individual elements.

 

2.6        Revenue recognition

 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services/goods are transferred to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those services and excluding taxes or duties collected on
behalf of government.

           

 

Commission income

The Group acts as an agent between service professional and an end customer and earns commission as its revenue. Commission Income is
recognised net of discounts, rebates and any other incentive provided to the end customer.

Revenue from sale of services is recognized upon successful completion of services as per agreement, such revenue is recognized at point in
time.

 

Revenue from subscription (from end Customer and from service professional) is recognised over the subscription period.

A contract liability is recognised on account of unsettled advances received from /due to customers for subscription.

 

Sale of goods

The Group sells products to the Service professionals which are used by the service professional for rendering services on the platform.
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at a point in time i.e. when control of goods are transferred to the service professional.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed, as revenue are exclusive of goods and
services tax (GST).
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Discounts, wallet balance, credits and other incentives

Urbanclap periodically provides incentive offers to the end customers. These promotions are generally in the nature of discount coupons,
cash credits, wallet balance etc. to be applied against the transaction price. These incentive offers are recorded as reduction in commission
revenue on a transaction by transaction basis. Discounts in excess of revenue earned from the end customer at an individual transaction level
are recorded as Marketing Expenses.

 

Credit expiry revenue

Service professional maintain balance in their wallet. If the wallet balance remains unutilized for 364 days, the balance will get expired. As
per the terms, On expiry the available balance in wallet is recorded as revenue in the books of the Group.

 

 

Other Income

Profit on sale of investments and fair value impact on mark to market contracts are recognised on transaction completion or on reporting date
as applicable.

 

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate (EIR) method or time-proportion method, based on rate implicit in the
transaction.

 

[612400] Notes - Service concession arrangements

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
Disclosure of service concession arrangements [TextBlock] 
   Whether there are any service concession arrangments No No

[612000] Notes - Construction contracts

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
Disclosure of notes on construction contracts [TextBlock] 
   Whether there are any construction contracts No No



 

224

URBANCLAP TECHNOLOGIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2020 to 31/03/2021 

[612600] Notes - Employee benefits

Disclosure of defined benefit plans [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR

Defined benefit plans [Axis] Domestic defined benefit plans
[Member]

Defined benefit plans categories [Axis] 1

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of defined benefit plans [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of defined benefit plans [Line items] 
            Description of type of plan Gratuity Gratuity

            Surplus (deficit) in plan [Abstract] 
               Defined benefit obligation, at present value 557.05 348.76

               Plan assets, at fair value 0 0

               Net surplus (deficit) in plan -557.05 -348.76

            Actuarial assumption of discount rates 6.80% 6.25%

Disclosure of net defined benefit liability (assets) [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Defined benefit plans [Axis] Domestic defined benefit plans [Member]

Net defined benefit liability (assets) [Axis] Net defined benefit liability (assets) [Member]

Present value of
defined benefit

obligation
[Member]

Defined benefit plans categories [Axis] 1 1

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
         Disclosure of net defined benefit liability 
         (assets) [Abstract] 
            Disclosure of net defined benefit liability 
            (assets) [Line items] 
               Description of type of plan Refer to child member Refer to child member Gratuity

               Changes in net defined benefit liability 
               (assets) [Abstract] 
                  Current service cost, net defined 
                  benefit liability (assets) 

182.19 123.64 182.19

                  Interest expense (income), net defined 
                  benefit liability (assets) 

23.72 9.67 23.72

                  Gain (loss) on remeasurement, net 
                  defined benefit liability (assets) 
                  [Abstract] 
                     Actuarial losses (gains) arising from 
                     changes in financial assumptions, net 
                     defined benefit liability (assets) 

-38.3 -61.63 -38.3

                     Total loss (gain) on 
                     remeasurement, net defined 
                     benefit liability (assets) 

-38.3 -61.63 -38.3

                  Payments from plan, net defined benefit 
                  liability (assets) 

35.92 0.96 (A)   35.92

                  Total increase (decrease) in net 
                  defined benefit liability (assets) 

208.29 193.98 208.29

               Net defined benefit liability (assets) at 
               end of period 

557.05 348.76 154.78 557.05

 (A) Benefits Paid
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Disclosure of net defined benefit liability (assets) [Table] ..(2)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Defined benefit plans [Axis] Domestic defined benefit plans [Member]

Net defined benefit liability (assets) [Axis] Present value of defined benefit
obligation [Member]

Plan assets [Member]

Defined benefit plans categories [Axis] 1 1

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
         Disclosure of net defined benefit liability 
         (assets) [Abstract] 
            Disclosure of net defined benefit liability 
            (assets) [Line items] 
               Description of type of plan Gratuity Gratuity Gratuity

               Changes in net defined benefit liability 
               (assets) [Abstract] 
                  Current service cost, net defined 
                  benefit liability (assets) 

123.64 0 0

                  Interest expense (income), net defined 
                  benefit liability (assets) 

9.67 0 0

                  Gain (loss) on remeasurement, net 
                  defined benefit liability (assets) 
                  [Abstract] 
                     Actuarial losses (gains) arising from 
                     changes in financial assumptions, net 
                     defined benefit liability (assets) 

-61.63 0 0

                     Total loss (gain) on 
                     remeasurement, net defined 
                     benefit liability (assets) 

-61.63 0 0

                  Payments from plan, net defined benefit 
                  liability (assets) 

(A)   0.96 0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in net 
                  defined benefit liability (assets) 

193.98 0 0

               Net defined benefit liability (assets) at 
               end of period 

348.76 154.78 0 0

 (A) Benefits Paid

Disclosure of net defined benefit liability (assets) [Table] ..(3)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR

Defined benefit plans [Axis]
Domestic defined

benefit plans
[Member]

Net defined benefit liability (assets) [Axis] Plan assets
[Member]

Defined benefit plans categories [Axis] 1

31/03/2019
         Disclosure of net defined benefit liability (assets) [Abstract] 
            Disclosure of net defined benefit liability (assets) [Line items] 
               Net defined benefit liability (assets) at end of period 0

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

Disclosure of employee benefits [TextBlock] Textual information (29) 
[See below]

Textual information (30) 
[See below]

   Disclosure of defined benefit plans [TextBlock] Textual information (31) 
[See below]

      Whether there are any defined benefit plans Yes Yes

      Disclosure of net defined benefit liability (assets) [TextBlock] 
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Textual information (29)

Disclosure of employee benefits [Text Block]

 

(vi)               Employee benefits

1)   Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense on accrual basis.

2)   Defined contribution plan

The Group makes defined contribution to the Government Employee Provident Fund and superannuation fund, which are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, on accrual basis. The Group recognises contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when
an employee renders the related service. The Group has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

3)   Defined benefit plan

The Holding Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India. The Holding Companys liabilities under The Payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972 are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial year using the projected unit credit method.

An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit
obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at
interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

This cost is included in the Employee benefits expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Re-measurement gains or losses and return on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net Interest on the net defined benefit liability) arising from changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in OCI. These are presented as re-measurement gains or losses on defined benefit plans
under other comprehensive income in other equity. Remeasurements gains or losses are not reclassified subsequently to the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

4)   Compensated absences

The employees of the Group are entitled to compensated absences. The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilised accumulating
compensated absences and utilise it in future periods or receive cash at retirement or termination of employment. The Group records an
obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increases this entitlement. The Group
measures the expected cost of compensated absences as the additional amount that the Group expects to pay as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the end of the reporting period. The Group recognises accumulated compensated absences based on
actuarial valuation in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Group presents the entire leave as a current liability in the Balance Sheet, since it
does not have any unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date.

 

 



 

227

URBANCLAP TECHNOLOGIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2020 to 31/03/2021 
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Textual information (30)

Disclosure of employee benefits [Text Block]

 

2.7        Employee benefit expenses

 

Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance, Gratuity Fund and Leave encashment.

 

(i)          Post-employment benefit costs and termination benefits

Defined contribution plan

Payments to defined contribution benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

 

Contribution towards provident fund and Employee State Insurance for certain employees is made to the regulatory authorities, where the
Group has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Group does not carry any further
obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis.

 

Defined benefit plan

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being
carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the
asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge
or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive
income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in
the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined
benefit liability or asset.

 

The Group provides for gratuity covering eligible employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan
provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on
the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. The Group's liability is not funded by any plan asset."

 

(ii)        Short-term employee benefits and Long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the
related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.
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Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
in exchange for the related service.

 

 

 

 

Leave Encashment

The Obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet as the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement
for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement in expected to occur.

 

(iii)       Employee share based payments

 

The Holding Company has Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) for eligible employees of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which
entitles the employee to receive equity instruments of the holding company, provided the specified vesting conditions are met and is
classified as 'Equity-settled share-based payments'.

 

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date using "Black Scholes European Call Option Pricing Model".

 

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
equity-settled employee benefits reserve.
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Textual information (31)

Disclosure of defined benefit plans [Text Block]

 

32 Employee benefits    

       

(a) Defined benefit plan    

 

Gratuity:

The Group provides for gratuity as per defined benefit plan (the Gratuity Plan) covering eligible employees in
accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to
eligible employees upon retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on
the respective employees salary and the tenure of employment. The Groups liability is actuarially determined
(using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/ gains are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise. The Group's liability is not funded by any plan
asset.

 

Leave Encashment:

The Obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet as the group does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when
the actual settlement in expected to occur.

 

Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance:

Contribution towards provident fund and Employee State Insurance for eligible employees is made to the
regulatory authorities. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Group does not
carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis.

   

       

      Rs in Lakh

(b) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet consist of-
 Leave
encashment

 

   

As at

31 March,
2021

As at

31 March,
2020

       

  Current liability 283.83 123.54

       

The entire amount of the provision of Rs 283.83 Lakh (31 March, 2020 Rs 123.54 Lakh) is presented as
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  current, since the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these obligations.
However, based on past experience, the Group does not expect all employees to avail the full amount of
accrued leave or require payment for such leave within the next 12 months.

   

      Rs in Lakh

   

As at

31 March,
2021

As at

31 March,
2020

  Leave obligations not expected to be settled within the next 12 months 165.91 87.85

       

       

(c) The results of the actuarial study for the gratuity obligation as computed by the actuary are shown below:    

      Rs in Lakh

  Particulars

As at

31 March,
2021

As at

31 March,
2020

i) Components of statement of income statement charge    

  Current service cost 182.19 123.64

  Interest cost 23.72 9.67

  Actuarial (gain)/loss due to changes in financial assumptions 38.3 61.63

  Total charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss 244.21 194.94

       

ii) Reconciliation of benefit obligations    

  Obligation at start of the year 348.76 154.78

  Service cost 182.19 123.64

  Interest cost 23.72 9.67

  Actuarial (gain)/loss due to changes in financial assumptions 38.3 61.63

  Benefits paid -35.92 -0.96
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  Defined benefits obligations at the end of the year 557.05 348.76

       

iii) Amount to be recognized in the Balance Sheet    

  Present value of the obligation at the end of the year 557.05 348.76

  Net liability/(asset) recognized in Balance Sheet -557.05 -348.76

       

iv) Amount recognised in Profit and Loss    

  Interest cost 23.72 9.67

  Current service cost 182.19 123.64

  Expenses to be recognized in P&L 205.91 133.31

       

      Rs in Lakh

  Particulars

As at

31 March,
2021

As at

31 March,
2020

v) Expenses recognised in other comprehensive income    

  Cumulative unrecognized actuarial (gain)/loss opening 52.92 -8.71

  Actuarial (gain)/loss - obligation 38.3 61.63

  Cumulative total actuarial (gain)/loss 91.22 52.92

       

  Movements in net liability/(asset)    

  Net liability at the beginning of the year 348.76 154.78

  Employer contributions    

  Direct benefit payments by employer -35.92 -0.96



 

233

URBANCLAP TECHNOLOGIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2020 to 31/03/2021 

  Total expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss 205.91 133.31

  Total amount recognised in OCI 38.3 61.63

  Net liability at the end of the year 557.05 348.76

       

       

  Principal actuarial assumptions    

       

  Discount rate 6.80% 6.25%

  Salary escalation 10.00% 10.00%

  Withdrawal rate:age    

  30 and below 30.00% 30.00%

  44 to 30 15.00% 15.00%

  60 to 44 5.00% 5.00%

  Mortality rate IALM
2012-14

IALM
2012-14

       

      Rs in Lakh

  Amounts recognised in the balance sheet consist of-  Gratuity  

   

As at

31 March,
2021

As at

31 March,
2020

       

  Current liability 34.64 7.3

  Non current liability* 522.41 341.46
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  *Liability amounting to Rs 31.60 Lakh pertains to subsidiary incorporated outside India.    

       

(d) Sensitivity analysis of significant assumptions    

 

The following tables present a sensitivity analysis to each of the relevant actuarial assumption, holding other
assumptions constant, showing how the defined benefit obligation would have been affected by changes in the
relevant actuarial assumptions that were reasonably possible at the reporting date.

Changes in defined benefit obligation of Gratuity plan due to changes in mortality rate, is negligible.

   

       

       

       

  Defined Benefit Obligation (Base) 557.05 Lakh @ Salary Increase Rate : 10%, and discount rate :6.80%   Rs in Lakh

   

As at

31 March,
2021

 

  Particulars
Defined
benefit
obligation*

 

    Decrease in
assumption

Increase in
assumption

  Discount rate (1% movement) -44.61 38.05

  Salary escalation (1% movement) 37.35 -42.78

  Withdrawal rate (1% movement) -19.04 17.11

       

  Defined Benefit Obligation (Base) 348.76 Lakh @ Salary Increase Rate : 10%, and discount rate :6.25%    

   

As at

31 March,
2020

 

  Particulars
Defined
benefit
obligation*

 

Decrease in Increase in
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    assumption assumption

  Discount rate (1% movement) -28.69 24.36

  Salary escalation (1% movement) 23.79 -27.37

  Withdrawal rate (1% movement) -13.71 12.23

       

  *Amount in brackets represent loss    

       

(e) The Expected Maturity Analysis of Undiscounted Gratuity is as follows:    

       

  1 Year 34.64 7.3

  2 Year 4.36 2.53

  3 Year 5.35 3.07

  4 Year 5.95 3.4

  5 Year 5.89 3.46

  more than 5 Year 500.86 329

       

 
The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 28 years (March
31, 2020: 28 years)

   

       

(f) Expense recognized for contribution to provident and other fund is Rs 485.16 Lakh (31 March, 2020 Rs 330.95
Lakh)
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[612800] Notes - Borrowing costs

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
Disclosure of borrowing costs [TextBlock] 
   Whether any borrowing costs has been capitalised during the year No No

[612200] Notes - Leases

Disclosure of finance lease and operating lease by lessee [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR

Maturity [Axis] Not later than one year [Member] Later than one year and not later than
five years [Member]

31/03/2021 31/03/2020 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
      Disclosure of finance lease and operating lease by 
      lessee [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of finance lease and operating lease 
         by lessee [Line items] 
            Minimum finance lease payments payable 2,418.57 2,911.29 6,594.12 9,752.83

Disclosure of finance lease and operating lease by lessee [Table] ..(2)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Maturity [Axis] Later than five years [Member]

31/03/2021 31/03/2020
      Disclosure of finance lease and operating lease by lessee [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of finance lease and operating lease by lessee [Line items] 
            Minimum finance lease payments payable 2,224.93 3,223.2

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

Disclosure of leases [TextBlock] Textual information (32) 
[See below]

   Whether company has entered into any lease agreement Yes Yes

   Disclosure of finance lease and operating lease by lessee [TextBlock] 
   Whether any operating lease has been converted to financial lease or 
   vice-versa 

No No
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Textual information (32)

Disclosure of leases [Text Block]

 

31 Leases    

 

The Group has entered into agreements for taking on lease certain office, and store premises. The lease term is for
a period ranging from 2 to 9 years, with escalation clauses in the lease agreements.

 

The Group had also elected to apply the following practical expedients available under Ind AS 116:

The Group has received COVID-19 related rent concessions and has applied the practical expedient introduced in
July 2020 to all qualifying rent concessions, and the amount recognised in other income is Rs 349.75 Lakh.

 

Extension and termination options are included in a number of properties across the Company. These are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing assets used in the Company's operation. The most
extension and termination options held are exercisable by lessor and Company mutually.

 

   

       

(a) The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on undiscounted basis:    

      Rs in
Lakh

  Particulars

As at

31
March,
2021

As at

31
March,
2020

(i)  Not later than one year 2,418.57 2,911.29

(ii)  Later than one year and not later than five years 6,594.12 9,752.83

(iii)  Later than five years 2,224.93 3,223.20

    11,237.62 15,887.32

       

       

(b) Details of lease liability:    

  The following is the movement in lease liabilities:    
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  Particulars

As at

31
March,
2021

As at

31
March,
2020

  Opening balance 11,886.51 4,538.78

  Additions during the year 648.34 8,291.95

  Terminated/Modified during the year -2,148.09  -  

  Finance cost accrued during the period 961.19 747.35

  Rent Abatement -349.75  -  

  Payment of lease liabilities -2,327.10 -1,691.57

    8,671.10 11,886.51

  - Current 1,653.45 1,822.24

  - Non-current 7,017.65 10,064.27

       

       

(c) Statement of profit and loss

As at

31
March,
2021

As at

31
March,
2020

  Decrease in Rent expense (Included in other expenses) -2,327.10 -1,691.57

  Increase in Finance cost 961.19 747.35

  Increase in Depreciation and Amortisation cost 2,237.92 1,527.29

  Net Increase/(decrease) in Loss before tax 872.01 583.07

       

(d)
Expense relating to short-term leases and low value accounted for applying paragraph 6 is Rs 201.07 Lakh (31
March, 2020: Rs 232.37 Lakh)
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[612300] Notes - Transactions involving legal form of lease

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
Disclosure of arrangements involving legal form of lease [TextBlock] 
   Whether there are any arrangements involving legal form of lease No No

[612900] Notes - Insurance contracts

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
Disclosure of insurance contracts [TextBlock] 
   Whether there are any insurance contracts as per Ind AS 104 No No

[613100] Notes - Effects of changes in foreign exchange rates

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
Disclosure of effect of changes in foreign exchange rates [TextBlock] 
   Whether there is any change in functional currency during the year No No

   Description of presentation currency INR

[500100] Notes - Subclassification and notes on income and expenses

Miscellaneous other operating revenues [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Miscellaneous other operating revenues [Axis] 1

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
   Disclosure of other operating revenues [Abstract] 
      Other operating revenues [Abstract] 
         Miscellaneous other operating revenues 110.27 104.11

         Miscellaneous other operating revenues [Abstract] 
            Miscellaneous other operating revenues [LineItems] 

               Description of miscellaneous other operating revenues Credit expiry
revenue

Credit expiry revenue

               Miscellaneous other operating revenues 110.27 104.11
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Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
Subclassification and notes on income and expense explanatory [TextBlock] 
   Disclosure of revenue from operations [Abstract] 

      Disclosure of notes on revenue from operations explanatory [TextBlock] Textual information (33) 
[See below]

      Disclosure of revenue from operations for other than finance company 
      [Abstract] 
         Revenue from sale of products 5,026.87 6,236.19

         Revenue from sale of services 19,628.26 15,523.33

         Other operating revenues 110.27 104.11

         Other operating revenues 110.27 104.11

         Total revenue from operations other than finance company 24,765.4 21,863.63

      Total revenue from operations 24,765.4 21,863.63

   Disclosure of other operating revenues [Abstract] 

      Disclosure of notes on other operating revenues explanatory [TextBlock] Textual information (34) 
[See below]

      Other operating revenues [Abstract] 

         Miscellaneous other operating revenues (A)   110.27 (B)   104.11

         Total other operating revenues 110.27 104.11

         Total other operating revenues 110.27 104.11

         Miscellaneous other operating revenues [Abstract] 

               Miscellaneous other operating revenues (A)   110.27 (B)   104.11

   Disclosure of other income [Abstract] 

      Disclosure of notes on other income explanatory [TextBlock] Textual information (35) 
[See below]

      Interest income [Abstract] 
         Interest income on current investments [Abstract] 
            Interest on fixed deposits, current investments 348.59 267.99

            Total interest income on current investments 348.59 267.99

         Total interest income 348.59 267.99

      Dividend income [Abstract] 
         Total dividend income 0 0

      Net gain/loss on sale of investments [Abstract] 
         Net gain/loss on sale of current investments 203.56 1,842.22

         Total net gain/loss on sale of investments 203.56 1,842.22

      Other non-operating income [Abstract] 
         Surplus on disposal, discard, demolishment and destruction of 
         depreciable property, plant and equipment 

0 1.3

         Liabilities written off 0 41.57

         Miscellaneous other non-operating income (C)   3,660.64 (D)   2,290.79

         Total other non-operating income 3,660.64 2,333.66

      Total other income 4,212.79 4,443.87

   Disclosure of finance cost [Abstract] 

      Disclosure of notes on finance cost explanatory [TextBlock] Textual information (36) 
[See below]

      Interest expense [Abstract] 
         Interest expense borrowings 0 50.26

         Interest lease financing (E)   961.19 (F)   747.35

         Total interest expense 961.19 797.61

      Total finance costs 961.19 797.61

   Employee benefit expense [Abstract] 

      Disclosure of notes on employee benefit expense explanatory [TextBlock] Textual information (37) 
[See below]

      Salaries and wages 14,626.13 10,399.75

      Managerial remuneration [Abstract] 
         Remuneration to directors [Abstract] 
            Total remuneration to directors 0 0

         Total managerial remuneration 0 0

      Contribution to provident and other funds [Abstract] 
         Contribution to provident and other funds for others 485.16 330.95

         Total contribution to provident and other funds 485.16 330.95

      Employee share based payment [Abstract] 
         Employee share based payment- Equity settled 7,164.42 2,643.4

         Total employee share based payment 7,164.42 2,643.4

      Gratuity 237.97 133.31
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      Staff welfare expense 184.59 441.71

      Total employee benefit expense 22,698.27 13,949.12

   Depreciation, depletion and amortisation expense [Abstract] 
      Disclosure of notes on depreciation, depletion and amortisation 
      expense explanatory [TextBlock] 

Textual information (38) 
[See below]

      Depreciation expense (G)   2,541.23 (H)   1,867.31

      Amortisation expense 26.91 25.94

      Total depreciation, depletion and amortisation expense 2,568.14 1,893.25

   Breakup of other expenses [Abstract] 

      Disclosure of notes on other expenses explanatory [TextBlock] Textual information (39) 
[See below]

      Consumption of stores and spare parts 0 0

      Power and fuel 0 0

      Rent (I)   201.07 (J)   232.37

      Repairs to building 0 0

      Repairs to machinery 0 0

      Insurance 0 0

      Rates and taxes excluding taxes on income [Abstract] 
         Other cess taxes 33.09 90.31

         Total rates and taxes excluding taxes on income 33.09 90.31

      Electricity expenses 157.42 209.18

      Telephone postage 536.17 775.58

      Information technology expenses 966.29 704.71

      Travelling conveyance 250.39 429.29

      Legal professional charges (K)   1,172.66 (L)   802.31

      Training recruitment expenses (M)   652.26 (N)   974.18

      Safety security expenses (O)   2,099.51
(P)   0 

      Directors sitting fees 0 0

      Advertising promotional expenses 383.86 739.96

      Cost repairs maintenance other assets 108.16 147.49

      Cost transportation [Abstract] 
         Cost freight 833.24 769.12

         Total cost transportation 833.24 769.12

      Loss on disposal of intangible Assets 0 0

      Loss on disposal, discard, demolishment and destruction of 
      depreciable property plant and equipment 

3.75 0

      Payments to auditor [Abstract] 
         Payment for audit services 30.75 22.5

         Payment for taxation matters 1 1

         Payment for other services 2.22 3

         Payment for reimbursement of expenses 0 0.68

         Total payments to auditor 33.97 27.18

      CSR expenditure 0 0

      Miscellaneous expenses 15,789.01 13,595.69

      Total other expenses 23,220.85 19,497.37
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Footnotes
 (A) Credit expiry revenue : 110.27

 (B) Credit expiry revenue : 104.11

 (C) Mutual funds : 12.89 From financial asset : 73.96 Corporate Fixed deposits : 2502.43 Unwinding of discount on security deposits
: 81.23 Allowance for doubtful recoveries of advance written back : 75.95 Rent abatement and net gain on lease modification :
577.68 Miscellaneous income* : 336.5

 (D) Mutual funds : 41.16 From financial asset : 1396.15 Corporate Fixed deposits : 788.17 Unwinding of discount on security
deposits : 64.17 Allowance for doubtful recoveries of advance written back : 0 Rent abatement and net gain on lease modification : 0
Miscellaneous income* : 1.14

 (E) Interest on leases (Refer Note 31) : 961.19

 (F) Interest on leases (Refer Note 31) : 747.35

 (G) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment : 303.31 Depreciation of Right-of-use assets : 2237.92

 (H) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment : 340.02 Depreciation of Right-of-use assets : 1527.29

 (I) Lease rent : 201.07

 (J) Lease rent : 232.37

 (K) Professional expense on rendering of pest control services : 484.31 Legal & professional charges* : 688.35

 (L) Professional expense on rendering of pest control services : 0 Legal & professional charges* : 802.31

 (M) Training expenses : 575.85 Recruitment expenses : 76.41

 (N) Training expenses : 688.3 Recruitment expenses : 285.88

 (O) Safety material cost : 2099.51

 (P) Safety material cost : 0
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Textual information (33)

Disclosure of notes on revenue from operations explanatory [Text Block]

 

       Rs in Lakh

     Year ended  Year ended

    31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

20 Revenue from operations    

  Revenue from contract with customers    

  Sale of services 19,628.26 15,523.33

  Sale of products 5,026.87 6,236.19

       

  Other operating revenue    

  Credit expiry revenue 110.27 104.11

    24,765.40 21,863.63

       

  Reconciliation of revenue recognized with contract price :    

  Contract price 27,534.74 24,012.03

  Less: Discount 2,769.34 2,147.26

  Total revenue from operations 24,765.40 21,864.77
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Textual information (34)

Disclosure of notes on other operating revenues explanatory [Text Block]

 

  Other operating revenue    

  Credit expiry revenue 110.27 104.11
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Textual information (35)

Disclosure of notes on other income explanatory [Text Block]

 

21 Other income    

  Fair value gain on financial instruments at FVTPL    

  Mutual funds 12.89 41.16

  Net gain or loss on sale of investment    

  Mutual funds 203.56 1,842.22

  Interest income on financial assets carried at amortized cost    

   From financial asset 73.96 1,396.15

  Bank Fixed deposits 348.59 267.99

  Corporate Fixed deposits 2,502.43 788.17

  Unwinding of discount on security deposits 81.23 64.17

  Liability no longer required written back  -   41.57

  Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  -   1.3

  Allowance for doubtful recoveries of advance written back 75.95  -  

  Rent abatement and net gain on lease modification 577.68  -  

  Miscellaneous income* 336.5 1.14

    4,212.79 4,443.87

       

 
* Miscellaneous income includes government grant of Rs 172.20 Lakh (31 March, 2020- Nil). The amount
recognised include grant amounting to Rs 10.32 Lakh which pertains to March'20 but has been received by the Group
in current year.

   

 



 

246

URBANCLAP TECHNOLOGIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2020 to 31/03/2021 

Textual information (36)

Disclosure of notes on finance cost explanatory [Text Block]

 

25 Finance costs    

  Interest on borrowings  -   50.26

  Interest on leases (Refer Note 31) 961.19 747.35

    961.19 797.61

 

Textual information (37)

Disclosure of notes on employee benefit expense explanatory [Text Block]

 

24 Employee benefits expense    

  Salaries, wages and bonus 14,626.13 10,399.75

  Contributions to provident and other funds (Refer Note 32) 485.16 330.95

  Employee Stock Option Plan (Refer Note 33) 7,164.42 2,643.40

  Gratuity (Refer Note 32) 237.97 133.31

  Staff welfare expenses 184.59 441.71

    22,698.27 13,949.12
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Textual information (38)

Disclosure of notes on depreciation, depletion and amortisation expense explanatory [Text Block]

 

26 Depreciation and amortisation expense    

  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 303.31 340.02

  Amortisation of intangible assets 26.91 25.94

  Depreciation of Right-of-use assets 2,237.92 1,527.29

    2,568.14 1,893.25
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Textual information (39)

Disclosure of notes on other expenses explanatory [Text Block]

 

27 Other expenses    

  Marketing expenses 11,718.39 11,171.66

  Safety material cost 2,099.51  -  

  Software expenses 966.29 704.71

  Freight & cartage 833.24 769.12

  Promotional expenses 383.86 739.96

  Professional expense on rendering of pest control services 484.31  -  

  Payment gateway charges 690.44 698.78

  Service expenses 21.33  -  

  Installation Charges  -   24.56

  Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3.75  -  

  Bandwidth & hosting charges 527.58 453.07

  Training expenses 575.85 688.3

  Communication expenses 536.17 775.58

  Contractual employee expenses 1,916.02 297.94

  Electricity expenses 157.42 209.18

  Write-down of assets 6.82 84.64

  Finance charges 54.65 20.59

  Allowance for doubtful recoveries of advance  -   200

  Advances written off 90.25 53.65
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  Allowances for bad and doubtful debts 137.31  -  

  Legal & professional charges* 722.32 829.49

  Lease rent (Refer Note 31) 201.07 232.37

  Office expense 558.02 522.12

  Rates & taxes 33.09 90.31

  Foreign exchange loss 14.06 13.28

  Repairs & maintenance 108.16 147.49

  Recruitment expenses 76.41 285.88

  Travelling expenses 250.39 429.29

  Miscellaneous Expenses 54.14 55.4

    23,220.85 19,497.37

       

  *Payment to auditors    

  Statutory audit fee (excluding taxes) 30.75 22.5

  Tax audit fee 1 1

  Out of pocket expense  -   0.68

  Other services 2.22 3

    33.97 27.18
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[613200] Notes - Cash flow statement

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

Disclosure of cash flow statement [TextBlock] 
      Cash and cash equivalents cash flow statement 4,582.34 9,937.66 568.82

      Cash and cash equivalents 4,582.34 9,937.66

      Income taxes paid (refund), classified as operating activities 187.08 96.86

      Total income taxes paid (refund) 187.08 96.86

[500200] Notes - Additional information statement of profit and loss

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

Additional information on profit and loss account explanatory [TextBlock] Textual information (40) 
[See below]

         Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade (A)   172.39 (B)   -752.14

         Total changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and 
         stock-in-trade 

172.39 -752.14

               Domestic sale traded goods 5,026.87 6,236.19

               Total domestic turnover goods, gross 5,026.87 6,236.19

            Total revenue from sale of products 5,026.87 6,236.19

            Domestic revenue services 19,628.26 15,523.33

            Total revenue from sale of services 19,628.26 15,523.33

      Gross value of transaction with related parties 0 0

      Bad debts of related parties 0 0

Footnotes
 (A) Opening inventories : 1419.32 Less: Closing inventories : -1246.93

 (B) Opening inventories : 667.18 Less: Closing inventories : -1419.32
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Textual information (40)

Additional information on profit and loss account explanatory [Text Block]

 

22 Purchases of stock-in-trade    

  Purchases of stock-in-trade 4,284.87 6,440.06

    4,284.87 6,440.06

 

23 Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade    

  Opening inventories 1,419.32 667.18

  Less: Closing inventories -1,246.93 -1,419.32

  (Increase)/Decrease in inventories* 172.39 -752.14

       

  *During the year ended March 31, 2021 Rs 9.06 Lakhs  (March 31, 2020: Rs 29.71 Lakhs) is recognised as an
expense for inventories carried at net realisable value.

   

 

      Rs in Lakh

     Year ended  Year ended

    31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

28 Other comprehensive income    

       

  Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss    

  Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans -38.3 -61.63

  Income tax (expense)/credit relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss    

  Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss    
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  Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 55.92 -19.99

  Income tax (expense)/credit relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss    

  Total 17.62 -81.62

 

 

[611200] Notes - Fair value measurement

Disclosure of fair value measurement of liabilities [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Measurement [Axis] At fair value [Member]

Classes of liabilities [Axis] 1 2

Levels of fair value hierarchy [Axis] All levels of fair value hierarchy [Member]
All levels of fair
value hierarchy

[Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of fair value measurement of liabilities 
      [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of fair value measurement of 
         liabilities [Line items] 
            Liabilities 4,826 3,207.81 1,855.57 2,203.15

            Description of valuation techniques used in 
            fair value measurement, liabilities 

Refer to child member Refer to child member
Refer to child
member

            Reconciliation of changes in fair value 
            measurement, liabilities [Abstract] 
               Changes in fair value measurement, 
               liabilities [Abstract] 
                  Purchases, fair value measurement, 
                  liabilities 

1,618.19 1,352.24 1,144.66

                  Sales, fair value measurement, liabilities 0 0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in fair value 
                  measurement, liabilities 

1,618.19 1,352.24 1,144.66

               Liabilities at end of period 4,826 3,207.81 1,855.57 2,203.15

            Description of line items in profit or loss 
            where gains (losses) are recognised, fair 
            value measurement, liabilities 

Refer to child member Refer to child member
Refer to child
member

            Description of line items in other 
            comprehensive income where gains (losses) are 
            recognised, fair value measurement, 
            liabilities 

Refer to child member Refer to child member
Refer to child
member
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Disclosure of fair value measurement of liabilities [Table] ..(2)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Measurement [Axis] At fair value [Member]

Classes of liabilities [Axis] 2 3

Levels of fair value hierarchy [Axis] All levels of fair value hierarchy
[Member]

All levels of fair value hierarchy
[Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of fair value measurement of liabilities 
      [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of fair value measurement of 
         liabilities [Line items] 
            Liabilities 1,058.49 927.65 0 0

            Description of valuation techniques used in 
            fair value measurement, liabilities 

Refer to child member
Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

            Reconciliation of changes in fair value 
            measurement, liabilities [Abstract] 
               Changes in fair value measurement, 
               liabilities [Abstract] 
                  Purchases, fair value measurement, 
                  liabilities 

130.84 0 0

                  Sales, fair value measurement, liabilities 0 0 740.74

                  Total increase (decrease) in fair value 
                  measurement, liabilities 

130.84 0 -740.74

               Liabilities at end of period 1,058.49 927.65 0 0

            Description of line items in profit or loss 
            where gains (losses) are recognised, fair 
            value measurement, liabilities 

Refer to child member
Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

            Description of line items in other 
            comprehensive income where gains (losses) are 
            recognised, fair value measurement, 
            liabilities 

Refer to child member
Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

Disclosure of fair value measurement of liabilities [Table] ..(3)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR

Measurement [Axis] At fair value
[Member]

Recurring fair value measurement [Member]

Classes of liabilities [Axis] 3 1

Levels of fair value hierarchy [Axis]
All levels of fair
value hierarchy

[Member]
All levels of fair value hierarchy [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of fair value measurement of liabilities 
      [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of fair value measurement of 
         liabilities [Line items] 
            Liabilities 740.74 4,826 3,207.81 1,855.57

            Description of valuation techniques used in 
            fair value measurement, liabilities 

Refer to child member Refer to child member

            Reconciliation of changes in fair value 
            measurement, liabilities [Abstract] 
               Changes in fair value measurement, 
               liabilities [Abstract] 
                  Purchases, fair value measurement, 
                  liabilities 

1,618.19 1,352.24

                  Sales, fair value measurement, liabilities 0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in fair value 
                  measurement, liabilities 

1,618.19 1,352.24

               Liabilities at end of period 740.74 4,826 3,207.81 1,855.57

            Description of line items in profit or loss 
            where gains (losses) are recognised, fair 
            value measurement, liabilities 

Refer to child member Refer to child member

            Description of line items in other 
            comprehensive income where gains (losses) are 
            recognised, fair value measurement, 
            liabilities 

Refer to child member Refer to child member
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Disclosure of fair value measurement of liabilities [Table] ..(4)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Measurement [Axis] Recurring fair value measurement [Member]

Classes of liabilities [Axis] 1 2

Levels of fair value hierarchy [Axis] Level 1 of fair value hierarchy [Member]
All levels of fair
value hierarchy

[Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of fair value measurement of liabilities 
      [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of fair value measurement of 
         liabilities [Line items] 
            Liabilities 4,826 3,207.81 1,855.57 2,203.15

            Description of valuation techniques used in 
            fair value measurement, liabilities 

Textual information (41)
[See below]

Textual information (42)
[See below]

Refer to child
member

            Reconciliation of changes in fair value 
            measurement, liabilities [Abstract] 
               Changes in fair value measurement, 
               liabilities [Abstract] 
                  Purchases, fair value measurement, 
                  liabilities 

1,618.19 1,352.24 1,144.66

                  Sales, fair value measurement, liabilities 0 0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in fair value 
                  measurement, liabilities 

1,618.19 1,352.24 1,144.66

               Liabilities at end of period 4,826 3,207.81 1,855.57 2,203.15

            Description of line items in profit or loss 
            where gains (losses) are recognised, fair 
            value measurement, liabilities 

Trade Payables Trade Payables
Refer to child
member

            Description of line items in other 
            comprehensive income where gains (losses) are 
            recognised, fair value measurement, 
            liabilities 

Trade Payables Trade Payables
Refer to child
member

Disclosure of fair value measurement of liabilities [Table] ..(5)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Measurement [Axis] Recurring fair value measurement [Member]

Classes of liabilities [Axis] 2

Levels of fair value hierarchy [Axis] All levels of fair value hierarchy
[Member]

Level 1 of fair value hierarchy
[Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of fair value measurement of liabilities 
      [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of fair value measurement of 
         liabilities [Line items] 
            Liabilities 1,058.49 927.65 2,203.15 1,058.49

            Description of valuation techniques used in 
            fair value measurement, liabilities 

Refer to child member
Textual information
(43) [See below]

Textual information
(44) [See below]

            Reconciliation of changes in fair value 
            measurement, liabilities [Abstract] 
               Changes in fair value measurement, 
               liabilities [Abstract] 
                  Purchases, fair value measurement, 
                  liabilities 

130.84 1,144.66 130.84

                  Sales, fair value measurement, liabilities 0 0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in fair value 
                  measurement, liabilities 

130.84 1,144.66 130.84

               Liabilities at end of period 1,058.49 927.65 2,203.15 1,058.49

            Description of line items in profit or loss 
            where gains (losses) are recognised, fair 
            value measurement, liabilities 

Refer to child member
Other financial
liabilities

Other Financial
Liabilities

            Description of line items in other 
            comprehensive income where gains (losses) are 
            recognised, fair value measurement, 
            liabilities 

Refer to child member
Other financial
liabilities

Other Financial
Liabilities
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Disclosure of fair value measurement of liabilities [Table] ..(6)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Measurement [Axis] Recurring fair value measurement [Member]

Classes of liabilities [Axis] 2 3

Levels of fair value hierarchy [Axis]
Level 1 of fair

value hierarchy
[Member]

All levels of fair value hierarchy [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of fair value measurement of liabilities 
      [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of fair value measurement of 
         liabilities [Line items] 
            Liabilities 927.65 0 0 740.74

            Description of valuation techniques used in 
            fair value measurement, liabilities 

Refer to child member Refer to child member

            Reconciliation of changes in fair value 
            measurement, liabilities [Abstract] 
               Changes in fair value measurement, 
               liabilities [Abstract] 
                  Purchases, fair value measurement, 
                  liabilities 

0 0

                  Sales, fair value measurement, liabilities 0 740.74

                  Total increase (decrease) in fair value 
                  measurement, liabilities 

0 -740.74

               Liabilities at end of period 927.65 0 0 740.74

            Description of line items in profit or loss 
            where gains (losses) are recognised, fair 
            value measurement, liabilities 

Refer to child member Refer to child member

            Description of line items in other 
            comprehensive income where gains (losses) are 
            recognised, fair value measurement, 
            liabilities 

Refer to child member Refer to child member

Disclosure of fair value measurement of liabilities [Table] ..(7)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Measurement [Axis] Recurring fair value measurement [Member]

Classes of liabilities [Axis] 3
Levels of fair value hierarchy [Axis] Level 1 of fair value hierarchy [Member]

01/04/2020

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of fair value measurement of liabilities [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of fair value measurement of liabilities [Line items] 
            Liabilities 0 0 740.74

            Description of valuation techniques used in fair value 
            measurement, liabilities 

NA
Textual information (45) [See
below]

            Reconciliation of changes in fair value measurement, liabilities 
            [Abstract] 
               Changes in fair value measurement, liabilities [Abstract] 
                  Purchases, fair value measurement, liabilities 0 0

                  Sales, fair value measurement, liabilities 0 740.74

                  Total increase (decrease) in fair value measurement, 
                  liabilities 

0 -740.74

               Liabilities at end of period 0 0 740.74

            Description of line items in profit or loss where gains 
            (losses) are recognised, fair value measurement, 
            liabilities 

NA Borrowings

            Description of line items in other comprehensive income 
            where gains (losses) are recognised, fair value 
            measurement, liabilities 

NA Borrowings
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Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR

Measurement [Axis] At fair value [Member]

Recurring fair
value

measurement
[Member]

Classes of assets [Axis] Classes of assets [Member] Classes of assets
[Member]

Levels of fair value hierarchy [Axis] All levels of fair value hierarchy [Member]
All levels of fair
value hierarchy

[Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets 
      [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets 
         [Line items] 
            Assets 52,493.97 65,673.19 53,064.12 52,493.97

            Description of valuation techniques used in 
            fair value measurement, assets 

Refer to child member Refer to child member
Refer to child
member

            Reconciliation of changes in fair value 
            measurement, assets [Abstract] 
               Changes in fair value measurement, assets 
               [Abstract] 
                  Purchases, fair value measurement, assets 3,048.18 26,389.09 3,048.18

                  Sales, fair value measurement, assets 16,227.4 13,780.02 16,227.4

                  Total increase (decrease) in fair value 
                  measurement, assets 

-13,179.22 12,609.07 -13,179.22

               Assets at end of period 52,493.97 65,673.19 53,064.12 52,493.97

            Description of line items in profit or loss 
            where gains (losses) are recognised, fair 
            value measurement, assets 

Refer to child member Refer to child member
Refer to child
member

            Description of line items in other 
            comprehensive income where gains (losses) are 
            recognised, fair value measurement, assets 

Refer to child member Refer to child member
Refer to child
member

Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets [Table] ..(2)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Measurement [Axis] Recurring fair value measurement [Member]

Classes of assets [Axis] Classes of assets [Member] Other equity securities [Member]

Levels of fair value hierarchy [Axis] All levels of fair value hierarchy
[Member]

All levels of fair value hierarchy
[Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets 
      [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets 
         [Line items] 
            Assets 65,673.19 53,064.12 37,050.94 47,859.6

            Description of valuation techniques used in 
            fair value measurement, assets 

Refer to child member
Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

            Reconciliation of changes in fair value 
            measurement, assets [Abstract] 
               Changes in fair value measurement, assets 
               [Abstract] 
                  Purchases, fair value measurement, assets 26,389.09 0 10,158.76

                  Sales, fair value measurement, assets 13,780.02 10,808.66 13,780.02

                  Total increase (decrease) in fair value 
                  measurement, assets 

12,609.07 -10,808.66 -3,621.26

               Assets at end of period 65,673.19 53,064.12 37,050.94 47,859.6

            Description of line items in profit or loss 
            where gains (losses) are recognised, fair 
            value measurement, assets 

Refer to child member
Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

            Description of line items in other 
            comprehensive income where gains (losses) are 
            recognised, fair value measurement, assets 

Refer to child member
Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member
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Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets [Table] ..(3)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Measurement [Axis] Recurring fair value measurement [Member]

Classes of assets [Axis] Other equity securities [Member]

Levels of fair value hierarchy [Axis]
All levels of fair
value hierarchy

[Member]
Level 1 of fair value hierarchy [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets 
      [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets 
         [Line items] 
            Assets 51,480.86 4,074.08 9,022.76 22,802.78

            Description of valuation techniques used in 
            fair value measurement, assets 

Textual information (46)
[See below]

Textual information (47)
[See below]

            Reconciliation of changes in fair value 
            measurement, assets [Abstract] 
               Changes in fair value measurement, assets 
               [Abstract] 
                  Purchases, fair value measurement, assets 0 0

                  Sales, fair value measurement, assets 4,948.68 13,780.02

                  Total increase (decrease) in fair value 
                  measurement, assets 

-4,948.68 -13,780.02

               Assets at end of period 51,480.86 4,074.08 9,022.76 22,802.78

            Description of line items in profit or loss 
            where gains (losses) are recognised, fair 
            value measurement, assets 

Investments Investments

            Description of line items in other 
            comprehensive income where gains (losses) are 
            recognised, fair value measurement, assets 

NA NA

Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets [Table] ..(4)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Measurement [Axis] Recurring fair value measurement [Member]

Classes of assets [Axis] Other equity securities [Member] Other assets
[Member]

Levels of fair value hierarchy [Axis] Level 3 of fair value hierarchy [Member]
All levels of fair
value hierarchy

[Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets 
      [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets 
         [Line items] 
            Assets 32,976.86 38,836.84 28,678.08 15,443.03

            Description of valuation techniques used in 
            fair value measurement, assets 

Textual information (48)
[See below]

Textual information (49)
[See below]

Refer to child
member

            Reconciliation of changes in fair value 
            measurement, assets [Abstract] 
               Changes in fair value measurement, assets 
               [Abstract] 
                  Purchases, fair value measurement, assets 0 10,158.76 3,048.18

                  Sales, fair value measurement, assets 5,859.98 0 5,418.74

                  Total increase (decrease) in fair value 
                  measurement, assets 

-5,859.98 10,158.76 -2,370.56

               Assets at end of period 32,976.86 38,836.84 28,678.08 15,443.03

            Description of line items in profit or loss 
            where gains (losses) are recognised, fair 
            value measurement, assets 

Investments Investments
Refer to child
member

            Description of line items in other 
            comprehensive income where gains (losses) are 
            recognised, fair value measurement, assets 

Investments Investments
Refer to child
member
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Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets [Table] ..(5)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Measurement [Axis] Recurring fair value measurement [Member]

Classes of assets [Axis] Other assets [Member] Other assets 1 [Member]

Levels of fair value hierarchy [Axis] All levels of fair value hierarchy
[Member]

All levels of fair value hierarchy
[Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets 
      [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets 
         [Line items] 
            Assets 17,813.59 1,583.26 307.57 93.6

            Description of valuation techniques used in 
            fair value measurement, assets 

Refer to child member
Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

            Reconciliation of changes in fair value 
            measurement, assets [Abstract] 
               Changes in fair value measurement, assets 
               [Abstract] 
                  Purchases, fair value measurement, assets 16,230.33 213.97 14.63

                  Sales, fair value measurement, assets 0 0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in fair value 
                  measurement, assets 

16,230.33 213.97 14.63

               Assets at end of period 17,813.59 1,583.26 307.57 93.6

            Description of line items in profit or loss 
            where gains (losses) are recognised, fair 
            value measurement, assets 

Refer to child member
Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

            Description of line items in other 
            comprehensive income where gains (losses) are 
            recognised, fair value measurement, assets 

Refer to child member
Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets [Table] ..(6)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Measurement [Axis] Recurring fair value measurement [Member]

Classes of assets [Axis] Other assets 1 [Member]

Levels of fair value hierarchy [Axis]
All levels of fair
value hierarchy

[Member]
Level 1 of fair value hierarchy [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets 
      [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets 
         [Line items] 
            Assets 78.97 0 0 0

            Description of valuation techniques used in 
            fair value measurement, assets 

NA NA

            Reconciliation of changes in fair value 
            measurement, assets [Abstract] 
               Changes in fair value measurement, assets 
               [Abstract] 
                  Purchases, fair value measurement, assets 0 0

                  Sales, fair value measurement, assets 0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in fair value 
                  measurement, assets 

0

               Assets at end of period 78.97 0 0 0

            Description of line items in profit or loss 
            where gains (losses) are recognised, fair 
            value measurement, assets 

NA NA

            Description of line items in other 
            comprehensive income where gains (losses) are 
            recognised, fair value measurement, assets 

NA NA
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Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets [Table] ..(7)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Measurement [Axis] Recurring fair value measurement [Member]

Classes of assets [Axis] Other assets 1 [Member] Other assets 2
[Member]

Levels of fair value hierarchy [Axis] Level 3 of fair value hierarchy [Member]
All levels of fair
value hierarchy

[Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets 
      [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets 
         [Line items] 
            Assets 307.57 93.6 78.97 4,582.34

            Description of valuation techniques used in 
            fair value measurement, assets 

Textual information (50)
[See below]

Textual information (51)
[See below]

Refer to child
member

            Reconciliation of changes in fair value 
            measurement, assets [Abstract] 
               Changes in fair value measurement, assets 
               [Abstract] 
                  Purchases, fair value measurement, assets 213.97 14.63 0

                  Sales, fair value measurement, assets 0 0 5,355.32

                  Total increase (decrease) in fair value 
                  measurement, assets 

213.97 14.63 -5,355.32

               Assets at end of period 307.57 93.6 78.97 4,582.34

            Description of line items in profit or loss 
            where gains (losses) are recognised, fair 
            value measurement, assets 

Trade receivables Trade receivables
Refer to child
member

            Description of line items in other 
            comprehensive income where gains (losses) are 
            recognised, fair value measurement, assets 

Trade receivables Trade receivables
Refer to child
member

Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets [Table] ..(8)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Measurement [Axis] Recurring fair value measurement [Member]

Classes of assets [Axis] Other assets 2 [Member]

Levels of fair value hierarchy [Axis] All levels of fair value hierarchy
[Member]

Level 1 of fair value hierarchy
[Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets 
      [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets 
         [Line items] 
            Assets 9,937.66 568.82 0 0

            Description of valuation techniques used in 
            fair value measurement, assets 

Refer to child member NA NA

            Reconciliation of changes in fair value 
            measurement, assets [Abstract] 
               Changes in fair value measurement, assets 
               [Abstract] 
                  Purchases, fair value measurement, assets 9,368.84 0 0

                  Sales, fair value measurement, assets 0 0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in fair value 
                  measurement, assets 

9,368.84 0

               Assets at end of period 9,937.66 568.82 0 0

            Description of line items in profit or loss 
            where gains (losses) are recognised, fair 
            value measurement, assets 

Refer to child member NA NA

            Description of line items in other 
            comprehensive income where gains (losses) are 
            recognised, fair value measurement, assets 

Refer to child member NA NA
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Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets [Table] ..(9)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Measurement [Axis] Recurring fair value measurement [Member]

Classes of assets [Axis] Other assets 2 [Member]

Levels of fair value hierarchy [Axis]
Level 1 of fair

value hierarchy
[Member]

Level 3 of fair value hierarchy [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets 
      [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets 
         [Line items] 
            Assets 0 4,582.34 9,937.66 568.82

            Description of valuation techniques used in 
            fair value measurement, assets 

Textual information (52)
[See below]

Textual information (53)
[See below]

            Reconciliation of changes in fair value 
            measurement, assets [Abstract] 
               Changes in fair value measurement, assets 
               [Abstract] 
                  Purchases, fair value measurement, assets 0 9,368.84

                  Sales, fair value measurement, assets 5,355.32 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in fair value 
                  measurement, assets 

-5,355.32 9,368.84

               Assets at end of period 0 4,582.34 9,937.66 568.82

            Description of line items in profit or loss 
            where gains (losses) are recognised, fair 
            value measurement, assets 

Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents

            Description of line items in other 
            comprehensive income where gains (losses) are 
            recognised, fair value measurement, assets 

Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents

Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets [Table] ..(10)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Measurement [Axis] Recurring fair value measurement [Member]

Classes of assets [Axis] Other assets 3 [Member]

Levels of fair value hierarchy [Axis] All levels of fair value hierarchy [Member]
Level 1 of fair

value hierarchy
[Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets 
      [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets 
         [Line items] 
            Assets 8,190.25 5,356.04 169.46 0

            Description of valuation techniques used in 
            fair value measurement, assets 

Refer to child member Refer to child member NA

            Reconciliation of changes in fair value 
            measurement, assets [Abstract] 
               Changes in fair value measurement, assets 
               [Abstract] 
                  Purchases, fair value measurement, assets 2,834.21 5,186.58 0

                  Sales, fair value measurement, assets 0 0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in fair value 
                  measurement, assets 

2,834.21 5,186.58

               Assets at end of period 8,190.25 5,356.04 169.46 0

            Description of line items in profit or loss 
            where gains (losses) are recognised, fair 
            value measurement, assets 

Refer to child member Refer to child member NA

            Description of line items in other 
            comprehensive income where gains (losses) are 
            recognised, fair value measurement, assets 

Refer to child member Refer to child member NA
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Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets [Table] ..(11)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Measurement [Axis] Recurring fair value measurement [Member]

Classes of assets [Axis] Other assets 3 [Member]

Levels of fair value hierarchy [Axis] Level 1 of fair value hierarchy
[Member]

Level 3 of fair value hierarchy
[Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets 
      [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets 
         [Line items] 
            Assets 0 0 8,190.25 5,356.04

            Description of valuation techniques used in 
            fair value measurement, assets 

NA
Textual information
(54) [See below]

Textual information
(55) [See below]

            Reconciliation of changes in fair value 
            measurement, assets [Abstract] 
               Changes in fair value measurement, assets 
               [Abstract] 
                  Purchases, fair value measurement, assets 0 2,834.21 5,186.58

                  Sales, fair value measurement, assets 0 0 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in fair value 
                  measurement, assets 

0 2,834.21 5,186.58

               Assets at end of period 0 0 8,190.25 5,356.04

            Description of line items in profit or loss 
            where gains (losses) are recognised, fair 
            value measurement, assets 

NA
Bank balances other
than cash and cash
equivalents

Bank balances other
than cash and cash
equivalents

            Description of line items in other 
            comprehensive income where gains (losses) are 
            recognised, fair value measurement, assets 

NA
Bank balances other
than cash and cash
equivalents

Bank balances other
than cash and cash
equivalents

Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets [Table] ..(12)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Measurement [Axis] Recurring fair value measurement [Member]

Classes of assets [Axis] Other assets 3
[Member]

Other assets 4 [Member]

Levels of fair value hierarchy [Axis]
Level 3 of fair

value hierarchy
[Member]

All levels of fair value hierarchy [Member]

31/03/2019
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets 
      [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets 
         [Line items] 
            Assets 169.46 2,362.87 2,426.29 766.01

            Description of valuation techniques used in 
            fair value measurement, assets 

Refer to child member Refer to child member

            Reconciliation of changes in fair value 
            measurement, assets [Abstract] 
               Changes in fair value measurement, assets 
               [Abstract] 
                  Purchases, fair value measurement, assets 0 1,660.28

                  Sales, fair value measurement, assets 63.42 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in fair value 
                  measurement, assets 

-63.42 1,660.28

               Assets at end of period 169.46 2,362.87 2,426.29 766.01

            Description of line items in profit or loss 
            where gains (losses) are recognised, fair 
            value measurement, assets 

Refer to child member Refer to child member

            Description of line items in other 
            comprehensive income where gains (losses) are 
            recognised, fair value measurement, assets 

Refer to child member Refer to child member
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Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets [Table] ..(13)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Measurement [Axis] Recurring fair value measurement [Member]

Classes of assets [Axis] Other assets 4 [Member]

Levels of fair value hierarchy [Axis] Level 1 of fair value hierarchy [Member]
Level 3 of fair

value hierarchy
[Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets 
      [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets 
         [Line items] 
            Assets 0 0 0 2,362.87

            Description of valuation techniques used in 
            fair value measurement, assets 

NA NA
Textual information
(56) [See below]

            Reconciliation of changes in fair value 
            measurement, assets [Abstract] 
               Changes in fair value measurement, assets 
               [Abstract] 
                  Purchases, fair value measurement, assets 0 0 0

                  Sales, fair value measurement, assets 0 0 63.42

                  Total increase (decrease) in fair value 
                  measurement, assets 

0 -63.42

               Assets at end of period 0 0 0 2,362.87

            Description of line items in profit or loss 
            where gains (losses) are recognised, fair 
            value measurement, assets 

NA NA
Others financial
assets

            Description of line items in other 
            comprehensive income where gains (losses) are 
            recognised, fair value measurement, assets 

NA NA
Others financial
assets

Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets [Table] ..(14)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR

Measurement [Axis] Recurring fair value measurement
[Member]

Classes of assets [Axis] Other assets 4 [Member]
Levels of fair value hierarchy [Axis] Level 3 of fair value hierarchy [Member]

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

      Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets [Line items] 
            Assets 2,426.29 766.01

            Description of valuation techniques used in fair value measurement, assets Textual information (57) [See
below]

            Reconciliation of changes in fair value measurement, assets [Abstract] 
               Changes in fair value measurement, assets [Abstract] 
                  Purchases, fair value measurement, assets 1,660.28

                  Sales, fair value measurement, assets 0

                  Total increase (decrease) in fair value measurement, assets 1,660.28

               Assets at end of period 2,426.29 766.01

            Description of line items in profit or loss where gains (losses) are 
            recognised, fair value measurement, assets 

Others financial assets

            Description of line items in other comprehensive income where gains (losses) 
            are recognised, fair value measurement, assets 

Others financial assets

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

Disclosure of fair value measurement [TextBlock] Textual information (58) 
[See below]

   Disclosure of fair value measurement of assets [TextBlock] 
      Whether assets have been measured at fair value Yes Yes

   Disclosure of fair value measurement of liabilities [TextBlock] 
      Whether liabilities have been measured at fair value Yes Yes

   Disclosure of fair value measurement of equity [TextBlock] 
      Whether equity have been measured at fair value No No
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Textual information (41)

Description of valuation techniques used in fair value measurement, liabilities
1) Fair value of the cash and short term deposits, current loans and advances and other current financial liabilities and other financial
institutions and other similar items approximate their carrying value largely due to short term maturities of these instruments. and 2) The fair
value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates
currently available for debt of similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

Textual information (42)

Description of valuation techniques used in fair value measurement, liabilities
1) Fair value of the cash and short term deposits, current loans and advances and other current financial liabilities and other financial
institutions and other similar items approximate their carrying value largely due to short term maturities of these instruments. and 2) The fair
value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates
currently available for debt of similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

Textual information (43)

Description of valuation techniques used in fair value measurement, liabilities
1) Fair value of the cash and short term deposits, current loans and advances and other current financial liabilities and other financial
institutions and other similar items approximate their carrying value largely due to short term maturities of these instruments. and 2) The fair
value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates
currently available for debt of similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

Textual information (44)

Description of valuation techniques used in fair value measurement, liabilities
1) Fair value of the cash and short term deposits, current loans and advances and other current financial liabilities and other financial
institutions and other similar items approximate their carrying value largely due to short term maturities of these instruments. and 2) The fair
value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates
currently available for debt of similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

Textual information (45)

Description of valuation techniques used in fair value measurement, liabilities
1) Fair value of the cash and short term deposits, current loans and advances and other current financial liabilities and other financial
institutions and other similar items approximate their carrying value largely due to short term maturities of these instruments. and 2) The fair
value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates
currently available for debt of similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

Textual information (46)

Description of valuation techniques used in fair value measurement, assets
1) Fair value of the cash and short term deposits, current loans and advances and other current financial liabilities and other financial
institutions and other similar items approximate their carrying value largely due to short term maturities of these instruments. and 2) The fair
value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates
currently available for debt of similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

Textual information (47)

Description of valuation techniques used in fair value measurement, assets
1) Fair value of the cash and short term deposits, current loans and advances and other current financial liabilities and other financial
institutions and other similar items approximate their carrying value largely due to short term maturities of these instruments. and 2) The fair
value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates
currently available for debt of similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
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Textual information (48)

Description of valuation techniques used in fair value measurement, assets
1) Fair value of the cash and short term deposits, current loans and advances and other current financial liabilities and other financial
institutions and other similar items approximate their carrying value largely due to short term maturities of these instruments. and 2) The fair
value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates
currently available for debt of similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

Textual information (49)

Description of valuation techniques used in fair value measurement, assets
1) Fair value of the cash and short term deposits, current loans and advances and other current financial liabilities and other financial
institutions and other similar items approximate their carrying value largely due to short term maturities of these instruments. and 2) The fair
value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates
currently available for debt of similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

Textual information (50)

Description of valuation techniques used in fair value measurement, assets
1) Fair value of the cash and short term deposits, current loans and advances and other current financial liabilities and other financial
institutions and other similar items approximate their carrying value largely due to short term maturities of these instruments. and 2) The fair
value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates
currently available for debt of similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

Textual information (51)

Description of valuation techniques used in fair value measurement, assets
1) Fair value of the cash and short term deposits, current loans and advances and other current financial liabilities and other financial
institutions and other similar items approximate their carrying value largely due to short term maturities of these instruments. and 2) The fair
value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates
currently available for debt of similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

Textual information (52)

Description of valuation techniques used in fair value measurement, assets
1) Fair value of the cash and short term deposits, current loans and advances and other current financial liabilities and other financial
institutions and other similar items approximate their carrying value largely due to short term maturities of these instruments. and 2) The fair
value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates
currently available for debt of similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

Textual information (53)

Description of valuation techniques used in fair value measurement, assets
1) Fair value of the cash and short term deposits, current loans and advances and other current financial liabilities and other financial
institutions and other similar items approximate their carrying value largely due to short term maturities of these instruments. and 2) The fair
value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates
currently available for debt of similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

Textual information (54)

Description of valuation techniques used in fair value measurement, assets
1) Fair value of the cash and short term deposits, current loans and advances and other current financial liabilities and other financial
institutions and other similar items approximate their carrying value largely due to short term maturities of these instruments. and 2) The fair
value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates
currently available for debt of similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
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Textual information (55)

Description of valuation techniques used in fair value measurement, assets
1) Fair value of the cash and short term deposits, current loans and advances and other current financial liabilities and other financial
institutions and other similar items approximate their carrying value largely due to short term maturities of these instruments. and 2) The fair
value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates
currently available for debt of similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

Textual information (56)

Description of valuation techniques used in fair value measurement, assets
1) Fair value of the cash and short term deposits, current loans and advances and other current financial liabilities and other financial
institutions and other similar items approximate their carrying value largely due to short term maturities of these instruments. and 2) The fair
value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates
currently available for debt of similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

Textual information (57)

Description of valuation techniques used in fair value measurement, assets
1) Fair value of the cash and short term deposits, current loans and advances and other current financial liabilities and other financial
institutions and other similar items approximate their carrying value largely due to short term maturities of these instruments. and 2) The fair
value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates
currently available for debt of similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
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Textual information (58)

Disclosure of fair value measurement [Text Block]

 

35 Capital management    

       

 
The Group manages it's capital with the objective of maximising growth and total shareholder return. The Group
uses a mix of equity and debt to allocate appropriate capital for continued growth, safeguard it's ability to continue
as a growing concern and optimise it's cost of capital.

   

      Rs. in
Lakh

   

 As at

31
March,
2021

 As at

31
March,
2020

   Total borrowings (Including lease liabilities) 8,671.10 11,886.51

   Less: Cash and cash equivalent -4,582.34 -9,937.66

   Net Debt 4,088.76 1,948.85

       

   Total equity 45,360.36 63,105.81

       

   Net debt to equity ratio 0.09 0.03

 

36
Financial instruments- accounting,
classification and fair value
measurement

               

                   

A. Accounting classification and fair
values

               

                 
Rs. in
Lakh
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  As at 31 March, 2021   Carrying amount        Fair
value

     

   
 Fair value
through profit and
loss

 Fair value
through 
other 
comprehensive

income

 Amortised
Cost*

 Total  Level 1  Level
2

 Level 3  Total

  Financial assets                

  Investments 4,074.08  -   32,976.86 37,050.94 4,074.08  -   32,976.86 37,050.94

  Trade receivables  -    -   307.57 307.57  -    -   307.57 307.57

  Cash and cash equivalents  -    -   4,582.34 4,582.34  -    -   4,582.34 4,582.34

  Bank balances other than above  -    -   8,190.25 8,190.25  -    -   8,190.25 8,190.25

  Others financial assets  -    -   2,362.87 2,362.87  -    -   2,362.87 2,362.87

  Total 4,074.08  -   48,419.89 52,493.97 4,074.08  -   48,419.89 52,493.97

                   

  Financial liabilities                

  Borrowings  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -  

  Trade payables  -    -   4,826.00 4,826.00  -    -   4,826.00 4,826.00

  Other financial liabilities  -    -   2,203.15 2,203.15  -    -   2,203.15 2,203.15

  Total  -    -   7,029.15 7,029.15  -    -   7,029.15 7,029.15

                   

                 
Rs. in
Lakh

  As at 31 March, 2020   Carrying amount      
 Fair
value

     

   
 Fair value
through profit and
loss

 Fair value
through 
other 
comprehensive

income

 Amortised
Cost*

 Total  Level 1  Level
2

 Level 3  Total
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  Financial assets                

  Investments 9,022.76  -   38,836.84 47,859.60 9,022.76  -   38,836.84 47,859.60

  Trade receivables  -    -   93.6 93.6  -    -   93.6 93.6

  Cash and cash equivalents  -    -   9,937.66 9,937.66  -    -   9,937.66 9,937.66

  Bank balances other than above  -    -   5,356.04 5,356.04  -    -   5,356.04 5,356.04

  Others financial assets  -    -   2,426.29 2,426.29  -    -   2,426.29 2,426.29

  Total 9,022.76  -   56,650.43 65,673.19 9,022.76  -   56,650.43 65,673.19

                   

  Financial liabilities                

  Borrowings  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -  

  Trade payables  -    -   3,207.81 3,207.81  -    -   3,207.81 3,207.81

  Other financial liabilities  -    -   1,058.49 1,058.49  -    -   1,058.49 1,058.49

  Total  -    -   4,266.30 4,266.30  -    -   4,266.30 4,266.30

 

  * The carrying value and the fair value approximates.

   

B. Measurement of fair values

  The table shown below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method.  The different levels have been defined
below:

  - Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

 
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as
prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)

  - Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

   

C. Valuation techniques
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  The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

 
1) Fair value of the cash and short term deposits, current loans and advances and other current financial liabilities and other financial
institutions and other similar items approximate their carrying value largely due to short term maturities of these instruments.

  2) The fair value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows
using rates currently available for debt of similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

 

 

38 Financial risk management objectives and policies

 

The Group is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk

- Liquidity risk

- Interest rate risk

- Market risk

 

The Group’s board of directors has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management
framework. This note presents information about the risks associated with its financial instruments, the Group’s objectives, policies and
processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management of capital.

   

(a) Credit risk

 

The Group is exposed to credit risk as a result of the risk of counterparties defaulting on their obligations. The Group’s exposure to
credit risk primarily relates to its operating activities (trade receivables) and its treasury activities, including deposits with banks,
investment in money market and other financial instruments. The Group monitors and limits its exposure to credit risk on a continuous
basis. The Group’s credit risk associated with trade receivable is primarily related to customers not able to settle their obligation as
agreed upon. To manage this, the Group periodically reviews the financial reliability of its customers, taking into account their financial
condition, current economic trends and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of trade receivables.

   

 

Trade receivables

Trade receivables represent the most significant exposure to credit risk and is managed by the Group through policies, procedures and
controls relating to customer credit risk management. Outstanding trade receivables are monitored at regular intervals. Impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date on individual customer basis.

 

Expected credit loss for trade receivables
under simplified approach

      Rs. in Lakh

  As at 31 March, 2021      
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Aging
Gross carrying amount -
Trade receivables

Expected
loss rate

Expected credit loss (loss
allowance provision)

Carrying amount of
trade receivables

0-90 Days past due 1,659.33 0.18% 3 1,656.33

91-180 Days past due 29.15 31.60% 9.21 19.94

181-365 Days past due 55.34 42.43% 23.48 31.86

Above 365 Days past due 8.4 100.00% 8.4  -  

Total 1,752.22   44.09 1,708.13

 

Expected credit loss for trade receivables
under simplified approach

       

  As at 31 March, 2020      

Aging Gross carrying amount -
Trade receivables

Expected
loss rate

Expected credit loss (loss
allowance provision)

Carrying amount of
trade receivables

0-90 Days past due 93.6  -    -   93.6

91-180 Days past due  -    -    -    -  

181-365 Days past due  -    -    -    -  

Above 365 Days past due  -    -    -    -  

Total 93.6    -   93.6

 

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance    

   As at 31 March, 2021  As at 31 March, 2020

As at the beginning of the year  -    -  

Expected credit loss provision made/ (reversed) on trade receivables 
calculated at lifetime expected credit losses

44.09  -  

Specific provision made 93.55  -  

As at the end of the year 137.64  -  
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Financial instruments and cash deposits 
Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the treasury department in accordance with the Group’s approved investment policy.
Investments of surplus funds are made primarily in liquid mutual funds units, fixed maturity plan securities, non-convertible debentures,
commercial papers.

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of balance sheet at 31 March, 2021 is the carrying amount of these
financial instruments. 

Basis assessment, the Group has not identified any expected credit loss on the financial instruments and cash deposits.

 

(b) Liquidity risk

 

Liquidity risk is the risk of being unable to meet the obligations resulting from financial liabilities which may arise from unavailability
of funds. The Group monitors and manages its liquidity risk to ensure access to sufficient funds to meet operational and financial
requirements. The Group has access to credit facilities and monitors cash and bank balances on a regular basis. In relation to the Group’s
liquidity risk, the Group’s policy is to ensure that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and
stressed conditions without incurring unacceptable losses.

   

  Maturities of financial liabilities

  The contractual undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities are as follows:

 

        Rs. in Lakh

As at 31 March, 2021 Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total

         

Trade payables 4,826.00  -    -   4,826.00

Other financial liabilities 2,203.15  -    -   2,203.15

Lease Liability 2,418.57 6,594.12 2,224.93 11,237.62

  9,447.72 6,594.12 2,224.93 18,266.77

         

         

As at 31 March, 2020 Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
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Trade payables 3,207.81  -    -   3,207.81

Other financial liabilities 1,058.49  -    -   1,058.49

Lease Liability 2,911.29 9,752.83 3,223.20 15,887.32

  7,177.59 9,752.83 3,223.20 20,153.62

 

(c) Interest rate risk

 

Interest rate risk is the risk that an upward movement in the interest rate would adversely effect the borrowing cost of the Group. 

Further, the Group's investments are primarily in fixed rate interest bearing investments, accordingly the Group is not significantly
exposed to interest rate risk.

   

(d) Market risk

 

Market risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Such changes in the value of financial instruments may results from changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, credit,
liquidity and other market changes. 

The Group's exposure to foreign currency is very limited, as the Group does not have any significant foreign currency transactions.

 

 

[613300] Notes - Operating segments

Disclosure of geographical areas [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Geographical areas [Axis] Country of domicile [Member] Foreign countries [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
            Revenue from external customers 23,117.21 21,106.51 1,648.19 757.12

      Disclosure of geographical areas [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of geographical areas [Line items] 
            Country of domicile or foreign country INDIA INDIA

            Revenue from external customers 23,117.21 21,106.51 1,648.19 757.12

            Revenue from external customers 23,117.21 21,106.51 1,648.19 757.12
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Disclosure of geographical areas [Table] ..(2)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Geographical areas [Axis] Foreign country 1 [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
            Revenue from external customers 1,648.19 757.12

      Disclosure of geographical areas [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of geographical areas [Line items] 
            Revenue from external customers 1,648.19 757.12

            Revenue from external customers 1,648.19 757.12

Disclosure of reportable segments [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Entity's reportable segments [Axis] Reportable segments 1 [Member] Reportable segments 2 [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of reportable segments [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of reportable segments [Line items] 
            Nature of reportable segment Service Service Products Products

            Revenue primary reportable segment 19,738.53 15,581.21 5,026.87 6,236.19

            Total revenues from external customers and 
            transactions with other reportable segments 
            of same enterprise reportable segment 

19,738.53 15,581.21 5,026.87 6,236.19

            Profit (loss) reportable segment 5,424.98 1,750.82 -390.68 -220.35

            Assets reportable segment 580.02 163.4 1,535.21 1,459.38

            Liabilities reportable segment 4,843.45 2,133.24 1,137.84 862.47

Disclosure of reportable segments [Table] ..(2)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Entity's reportable segments [Axis] Material reconciling items [Member] Unallocated amounts [Member]

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of reportable segments [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of reportable segments [Line items] 

            Nature of reportable segment Refer to child
member

Refer to child
member

Unallocated Unallocated

            Revenue primary reportable segment 0 46.23 0 46.23

            Total revenues from external customers and 
            transactions with other reportable segments 
            of same enterprise reportable segment 

0 46.23 0 46.23

            Profit (loss) reportable segment -29,961.84 -17,048.24 -29,961.84 -17,048.24

            Assets reportable segment 62,592.8 79,660.02 62,592.8 79,660.02

            Liabilities reportable segment 13,366.37 15,181.33 13,366.37 15,181.33

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

Disclosure of entity's operating segments [TextBlock] Textual information (59) 
[See below]

   Disclosure of reportable segments [TextBlock] 
      Whether there are any reportable segments Yes Yes

   Disclosure of products and services [TextBlock] 
   Disclosure of geographical areas [TextBlock] 
   Disclosure of major customers [TextBlock] 
      Whether there are any major customers No No
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Textual information (59)

Disclosure of entity's operating segments [Text Block]

 

40 Segment reporting        

 

Information reported to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) for the purposes of
cost allocation and assessment of performance focuses on the types of goods or services
delivered or provided. The directors of the Group have chosen to organise the Group
around differences in products and services.

The Group has identified service and product as its primary segment. Service segment is
for providing an online/mobile app which enables the customers registered on its platform
to search and hire service professionals for their household & business needs. Product
segment is for selling products to the Service professionals which are used by the service
professional for rendering services on the platform.

       

(a) Segment results        

           

         
Rs.  in
Lakh

   

Year
ended 31
March,
2021

     

    Service Products Unallocated Total

  Revenue from external customers 19,738.53 5,026.87  -   24,765.40

  Other income  -   22.74 4,190.05 4,212.79

  Other expenses 14,313.55 5,440.29 30,622.55 50,376.39

  Interest, net  -    -   961.19 961.19

  Depreciation and amortisation  -    -   2,568.15 2,568.15

  Segment profit before tax 5,424.98 -390.68 -29,961.84 -24,927.54

           

  Segment assets 580.02 1,535.21 62,592.80 64,708.03

  Segment liabilities 4,843.45 1,137.84 13,366.37 19,347.66
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  Expenditure for non-current assets, if any        

           

          Rs.  in
Lakh

   

Year
ended 31
March,
2020

     

    Service Products Unallocated Total

  Revenue from external customers 15,581.21 6,236.19 46.23 21,863.63

  Other income  -    -   4,443.87 4,443.87

  Other expenses 13,830.39 6,456.54 18,847.48 39,134.41

  Interest, net  -    -   797.61 797.61

  Depreciation and amortisation  -    -   1,893.25 1,893.25

  Segment profit before tax 1,750.82 -220.35 -17,048.24 -15,517.77

           

  Segment assets 163.4 1,459.38 79,660.02 81,282.80

  Segment liabilities 2,133.24 862.47 15,181.33 18,177.04

           

  Expenditure for non-current assets, if any        

           

           

(b) Information by Geographies        

  Revenue from external customers   Rs.  in
Lakh

   

As at As at
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    31
March,
2021

31
March,
2020

   

  India 23,117.21 21,106.51    

  Outside India 1,648.19 757.12    

           

           

 
The total of Non-Current assets excluding financial assets, equity accounted investments
and deferred tax assets analysed by the country in which assets are located are given
below

       

     
Rs.  in
Lakh

   

   

As at

31
March,
2021

As at

31
March,
2020

   

  India 9,317.78 12,701.59    

  Outside India 165.26 23.43    

           

(c) Major customers        

  The Group do not have any customer from whom they have 10% or more revenue.        

 

 

[610700] Notes - Business combinations

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
Disclosure of business combinations [TextBlock] 
   Whether there is any business combination No No

   Disclosure of reconciliation of changes in goodwill [TextBlock] 
      Whether there is any goodwill arising out of business combination No No

   Disclosure of acquired receivables [TextBlock] 
      Whether there are any acquired receivables from business combination No No

   Disclosure of contingent liabilities in business combination [TextBlock] 
      Whether there are any contingent liabilities in business combination No No
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[611500] Notes - Interests in other entities

Details of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations [Axis] 1 2 3

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
         Details of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations 
         [Abstract] 
            Details of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations 
            [LineItems] 

               Name of subsidiary which is yet to commence operations 
Urbanclap
Technologies
Global B.V

Urbancare Financial
Services Private Limited

Urban Company
Arabia for
Information
Technology

               Country of incorporation or residence of subsidiary which 
               is yet to commence operations 

NETHERLANDS INDIA SAUDI ARABIA

               CIN of subsidiary company which is yet to commence operations U65900DL2019PTC355746

Disclosure of details of subsidiaries [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Subsidiaries [Axis] 1 2

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
         Disclosure of subsidiaries [Abstract] 
            Disclosure of subsidiaries [Line items] 

               Name of subsidiary Handy Home Solutions
Private Limited

Urbanclap
Technologies Global
B.V.

Urbanclap
Technologies
Global B.V.

Urbancare Financial
Services Private Limited

               Country of incorporation or residence of 
               subsidiary 

INDIA NETHERLANDS NETHERLANDS INDIA

               CIN of subsidiary company U74900MH2014PTC259683 U65900DL2019PTC355746

               Section under which company became
subsidiary 

Section 2(87)(ii) Section 2(87)(ii) Section 2(87)(ii) Section 2(87)(ii)

               Whether subsidiary has filed balance sheet No No No Yes

               SRN of filing of balance sheet by subsidiary R93185569

               Reason if no filing has been made by 
               subsidiary 

It will be filed in due course

               Whether financial year of subsidiary 
               different from financial year of 
               holding company 

No No No No

               Financial year of subsidiary [Abstract] 
                  Start date of accounting period of 
                  subsidiary 

01/04/2020 01/04/2019 01/04/2020 01/04/2019

                  End date of accounting period of 
                  subsidiary 

31/03/2021 31/03/2020 31/03/2021 31/03/2020

               Percentage of shareholding in subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

               Key information about subsidiary [Abstract] 
                  Reporting currency of subsidiary INR EUR EUR INR

                  Exchange rate as applicable for subsidiary NA 82.79
Euro 1= INR
85.93979

NA

                  Share capital of subsidiary 5.44 16.86 16.86 230

                  Reserves and surplus of subsidiary -3.63 1.06 0.75 -6.65

                  Total assets of subsidiary 1,586.74 18.07 17.62 234.17

                  Total liabilities of subsidiary 1,584.93 0.14 0 10.82

                  Investment of subsidiary 0 17.47 17.47 0

                  Turnover of subsidiary 476.05 0 0 0

                  Profit before tax of subsidiary -98.67 -0.39 -0.31 -6.65

                  Provision for tax of subsidiary 0 0 0 0

                  Profit after tax of subsidiary -98.67 -0.39 -0.31 -6.65

                  Proposed dividend of subsidiary 0 0 0 0

               Name of subsidiary Handy Home Solutions
Private Limited

Urbanclap
Technologies Global
B.V.

Urbanclap
Technologies
Global B.V.

Urbancare Financial
Services Private Limited

               Country of incorporation or residence of 
               subsidiary 

INDIA NETHERLANDS NETHERLANDS INDIA

               CIN of subsidiary company U74900MH2014PTC259683 U65900DL2019PTC355746
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Disclosure of details of subsidiaries [Table] ..(2)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Subsidiaries [Axis] 3 4

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
         Disclosure of subsidiaries [Abstract] 
            Disclosure of subsidiaries [Line items] 

               Name of subsidiary 
Urbanclap
Technologies
DMCC

Urbanc lap
Technogies DMCC

Urban Home
Experts Pte. Ltd

Urban Home Experts
PTY LTD

               Country of incorporation or residence of 
               subsidiary 

UNITED ARAB
EMIRATES

UNITED ARAB
EMIRATES

SINGAPORE AUSTRALIA

               Section under which company became subsidiary Section 2(87)(ii) Section 2(87)(ii) Section 2(87)(ii) Section 2(87)(ii)

               Whether subsidiary has filed balance sheet No No No No

               Whether financial year of subsidiary 
               different from financial year of 
               holding company 

No No No No

               Financial year of subsidiary [Abstract] 
                  Start date of accounting period of 
                  subsidiary 

01/04/2020 01/04/2019 01/04/2020 01/04/2019

                  End date of accounting period of 
                  subsidiary 

31/03/2021 31/03/2020 31/03/2021 31/03/2020

               Percentage of shareholding in subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

               Key information about subsidiary [Abstract] 
                  Reporting currency of subsidiary AED AED SGD AUD

                  Exchange rate as applicable for subsidiary AED 1= INR
19.916217

20.54
SGD 1= INR
54.431329

46.04

                  Share capital of subsidiary 0.5 0.5 120.05 15.61

                  Reserves and surplus of subsidiary 14.69 10.91 -25.62 -15.37

                  Total assets of subsidiary 46.47 26.05 99.48 2.08

                  Total liabilities of subsidiary 35.3 14.64 5.05 1.85

                  Investment of subsidiary 0 0 67.96 0

                  Turnover of subsidiary 59.88 38.18 2.99 0.36

                  Profit before tax of subsidiary -58.39 -37.05 -21.87 -15.73

                  Provision for tax of subsidiary 0 0 0 0

                  Profit after tax of subsidiary -58.39 -37.05 -21.87 -15.73

                  Proposed dividend of subsidiary 0 0 0 0

               Name of subsidiary 
Urbanclap
Technologies
DMCC

Urbanc lap
Technogies DMCC

Urban Home
Experts Pte. Ltd

Urban Home Experts
PTY LTD

               Country of incorporation or residence of 
               subsidiary 

UNITED ARAB
EMIRATES

UNITED ARAB
EMIRATES

SINGAPORE AUSTRALIA
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Disclosure of details of subsidiaries [Table] ..(3)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Subsidiaries [Axis] 5 6

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
         Disclosure of subsidiaries [Abstract] 
            Disclosure of subsidiaries [Line items] 

               Name of subsidiary Urban Home
Experts Pty. Ltd

Urbanhome Experts
Pte Ltd

Urbancare Financial
Services Private Limited

HANDY HOME
SOLUTIONS PRIVATE
LIMITED

               Country of incorporation or residence of 
               subsidiary 

AUSTRALIA SINGAPORE INDIA INDIA

               CIN of subsidiary company U65900DL2019PTC355746 U74900MH2014PTC259683

               Section under which company became
subsidiary 

Section 2(87)(ii) Section 2(87)(ii) Section 2(87)(ii) Section 2(87)(ii)

               Whether subsidiary has filed balance sheet No No No Yes

               SRN of filing of balance sheet by subsidiary R81788606

               Reason if no filing has been made by 
               subsidiary 

It will be filed in due course

               Whether financial year of subsidiary 
               different from financial year of 
               holding company 

No No No No

               Financial year of subsidiary [Abstract] 
                  Start date of accounting period of 
                  subsidiary 

01/04/2020 01/04/2019 01/04/2020 01/04/2019

                  End date of accounting period of 
                  subsidiary 

31/03/2021 31/03/2020 31/03/2021 31/03/2020

               Percentage of shareholding in subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

               Key information about subsidiary [Abstract] 
                  Reporting currency of subsidiary AUD SGD INR INR

                  Exchange rate as applicable for subsidiary AUD 1= INR
55.72238

52.98 NA NA

                  Share capital of subsidiary 47.92 19.11 230 5.44

                  Reserves and surplus of subsidiary -38.69 -4.68 -6.81 95.04

                  Total assets of subsidiary 18.03 15.13 243.84 172.01

                  Total liabilities of subsidiary 8.8 0.69 20.64 71.53

                  Investment of subsidiary 0 11.89 0 0

                  Turnover of subsidiary 5.19 0.06 0 27.05

                  Profit before tax of subsidiary -31.09 -4.68 -0.16 -2.54

                  Provision for tax of subsidiary 0 0 0 0

                  Profit after tax of subsidiary -31.09 -4.68 -0.16 -2.54

                  Proposed dividend of subsidiary 0 0 0 0

               Name of subsidiary Urban Home
Experts Pty. Ltd

Urbanhome Experts
Pte Ltd

Urbancare Financial
Services Private Limited

HANDY HOME
SOLUTIONS PRIVATE
LIMITED

               Country of incorporation or residence of 
               subsidiary 

AUSTRALIA SINGAPORE INDIA INDIA

               CIN of subsidiary company U65900DL2019PTC355746 U74900MH2014PTC259683



 

280

URBANCLAP TECHNOLOGIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2020 to 31/03/2021 

Disclosure of details of subsidiaries [Table] ..(4)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Subsidiaries [Axis] 7

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
         Disclosure of subsidiaries [Abstract] 
            Disclosure of subsidiaries [Line items] 

               Name of subsidiary 

Urban Company
Arabia  for
Information
Technology

               Country of incorporation or residence of subsidiary SAUDI ARABIA

               Section under which company became subsidiary Section 2(87)(ii)

               Whether subsidiary has filed balance sheet No

               Whether financial year of subsidiary different from financial year of holding company No

               Financial year of subsidiary [Abstract] 
                  Start date of accounting period of subsidiary 01/04/2020

                  End date of accounting period of subsidiary 31/03/2021

               Percentage of shareholding in subsidiary 100.00%

               Key information about subsidiary [Abstract] 
                  Reporting currency of subsidiary SAR

                  Exchange rate as applicable for subsidiary SAR 1= INR
19.59542

                  Share capital of subsidiary 0

                  Reserves and surplus of subsidiary 1.85

                  Total assets of subsidiary 0

                  Total liabilities of subsidiary 1.85

                  Investment of subsidiary 0

                  Turnover of subsidiary 0

                  Profit before tax of subsidiary -1.85

                  Provision for tax of subsidiary 0

                  Profit after tax of subsidiary -1.85

                  Proposed dividend of subsidiary 0

               Name of subsidiary 

Urban Company
Arabia  for
Information
Technology

               Country of incorporation or residence of subsidiary SAUDI ARABIA
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Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
Disclosure of interests in other entities [TextBlock] 
   Disclosure of interests in subsidiaries [TextBlock] 
      Disclosure of subsidiaries [TextBlock] 
         Whether company has subsidiary companies Yes Yes

         Number of subsidiary companies [pure] 7 [pure] 6

         Whether company has subsidiary companies which are yet to commence 
         operations 

Yes No

         Whether company has subsidiary companies liquidated or sold during 
         year 

No No

   Disclosure of interests in associates [TextBlock] 
      Disclosure of associates [TextBlock] 
         Whether company has invested in associates No No

         Whether company has associates which are yet to commence operations No No

         Whether company has associates liquidated or sold during year No No

   Disclosure of interests in joint arrangements [TextBlock] 
      Disclosure of joint ventures [TextBlock] 
         Whether company has invested in joint ventures No No

         Whether company has joint ventures which are yet to commence 
         operations 

No No

         Whether company has joint ventures liquidated or sold during year No No

   Disclosure of interests in unconsolidated structured entities [TextBlock] 
      Disclosure of unconsolidated structured entities [TextBlock] 
         Whether there are unconsolidated structured entities No No

   Disclosure of investment entities [TextBlock] 
      Disclosure of information about unconsolidated subsidiaries [TextBlock] 
         Whether there are unconsolidated subsidiaries No No

      Disclosure of information about unconsolidated structured entities 
      controlled by investment entity [TextBlock] 
         Whether there are unconsolidated structured entities controlled by 
         investment entity 

No No

[613400] Notes - Consolidated Financial Statements

Disclosure of details of entities consolidated [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Entities consolidated [Axis] 1 2 3 4

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of additional information consolidated 
      financial statements [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of additional information 
         consolidated financial statements [Line items] 

            Name of entity consolidated 
Urbanclap
Technologies India
Private Limited

Urbanclap
Technologies
Global B.V.,
Netherlands

Handyhome
Solutions Private
Limited

Urban Home
Experts PTE LTD,
Singapore

            Type of entity consolidated Parent Foreign Subsidiary Indian Subsidiary Foreign Subsidiary

            Amount of net assets of entity consolidated 41,020.59 12.5 1,569.75 1,443.48

            Net assets of entity as percentage of 
            consolidated net assets 

(A)   90.43% (B)   0.00% (C)   3.00% (D)   3.00%

            Amount of share in profit or loss of entity 
            consolidated 

-22,448.65 -27.07 1,202.89 -1,112.64

            Share in profit or loss of entity as 
            percentage of consolidated profit or 
            loss 

(E)   90.06% (F)   0.00% (G)   -5.00% (H)   4.00%

            Amount of share in other comprehensive income 
            consolidated 

17.62 0 0 0

            Share in other comprehensive income consolidated (I)   100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

            Amount of share in comprehensive income 
            consolidated 

-22,431.03 -27.07 1,202.89 -1,112.64

            Share in comprehensive income consolidated (J)   90.05% (K)   0.00% (L)   -5.00% (M)   4.00%
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Footnotes
 (A) % of consolidated net assets: 90.43

 (B) % of consolidated net assets: 0.03

 (C) % of consolidated net assets: 3.46

 (D) % of consolidated net assets: 3.18

 (E) % of consolidated Profit and Loss: 90.06

 (F) % of consolidated Profit and Loss: 0.11

 (G) % of consolidated Profit and Loss: -4.83

 (H) % of consolidated Profit and Loss: 4.46

 (I) % of consolidated OCI: 100

 (J) % of consolidated TCI: 90.05

 (K) % of consolidated TCI: 0.11

 (L) % of consolidated TCI: -4.83

 (M) % of consolidated TCI: 4.47

Disclosure of details of entities consolidated [Table] ..(2)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Entities consolidated [Axis] 5 6 7 8

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of additional information consolidated 
      financial statements [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of additional information 
         consolidated financial statements [Line items] 

            Name of entity consolidated Urbancare Financial
Services P Ltd

Urbanclap
Technologies
DMCC, UAE

Urban Home
Experts PTY LTD,
Australia

Urban Company
Arabia  for
Information
Technology, Saudi
Arabia

            Type of entity consolidated Indian Subsidiary Foreign Subsidiary Foreign Subsidiary Foreign Subsidiary

            Amount of net assets of entity consolidated 240.41 516.4 559.55 0

            Net assets of entity as percentage of 
            consolidated net assets 

(A)   0.00% (B)   1.00% (C)   1.00% (D)   0.00%

            Amount of share in profit or loss of entity 
            consolidated 

2.33 -911.11 -1,597.48 -35.81

            Share in profit or loss of entity as 
            percentage of consolidated profit or 
            loss 

(E)   0.00% (F)   4.00% (G)   6.00% (H)   0.00%

            Amount of share in other comprehensive income 
            consolidated 

0 0 0 0

            Share in other comprehensive income consolidated 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

            Amount of share in comprehensive income 
            consolidated 

2.33 -911.11 -1,597.48 -35.81

            Share in comprehensive income consolidated (I)   0.00% (J)   4.00% (K)   6.00% (L)   0.00%

Footnotes
 (A) % of consolidated net assets: 0.53

 (B) % of consolidated net assets: : 1.14

 (C) % of consolidated net assets: 1.23

 (D) % of consolidated net assets: 0

 (E) % of consolidated Profit and Loss: -0.01

 (F) % of consolidated Profit and Loss: 3.66

 (G) % of consolidated Profit and Loss: 6.41

 (H) % of consolidated Profit and Loss: 0.14

 (I) % of consolidated TCI: -0.01

 (J) % of consolidated TCI: 3.66

 (K) % of consolidated TCI: 6.41

 (L) % of consolidated TCI: 0.14
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Disclosure of details of subsidiaries [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Subsidiaries [Axis] 1 2 3 4

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
         Disclosure of details of subsidiaries [Abstract] 
            Disclosure of details of subsidiaries 
            [LineItems] 

               Name of subsidiary consolidated 
Urbanclap
Technologies
Global B.V.

Handyhome
Solutions Private
Limited

Urban Home
Experts PTE LTD

Urbancare Financial
Services Private
Limited

               Principal place of business of subsidiary 
               consolidated 

NETHERLANDS INDIA SINGAPORE INDIA

               Country of incorporation or residence of 
               subsidiary consolidated 

NETHERLANDS INDIA SINGAPORE INDIA

               Date of end of reporting period of 
               financial statements of subsidiary 
               consolidated 

31/03/2021 31/03/2021 31/03/2021 31/03/2021

               Description of reason why using 
               different reporting date or period for 
               subsidiary consolidated 

NA NA NA NA

               Proportion of ownership interest in 
               subsidiary consolidated 

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

               Proportion of voting power held in 
               subsidiary consolidated 

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Disclosure of details of subsidiaries [Table] ..(2)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Subsidiaries [Axis] 5 6 7

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
         Disclosure of details of subsidiaries [Abstract] 
            Disclosure of details of subsidiaries [LineItems] 

               Name of subsidiary consolidated 
Urbanclap
Technologies
DMCC

Urban Home
Experts PTY LTD

Urban Company
Arabia  for
Information
Technology

               Principal place of business of subsidiary consolidated UNITED ARAB
EMIRATES

AUSTRALIA SAUDI ARABIA

               Country of incorporation or residence of subsidiary 
               consolidated 

UNITED ARAB
EMIRATES

AUSTRALIA SAUDI ARABIA

               Date of end of reporting period of financial statements of 
               subsidiary consolidated 

31/03/2021 31/03/2021 31/03/2021

               Description of reason why using different reporting date 
               or period for subsidiary consolidated 

NA NA NA

               Proportion of ownership interest in subsidiary consolidated 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

               Proportion of voting power held in subsidiary consolidated 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

Disclosure of notes on consolidated financial statements explanatory 
[TextBlock] 

Textual information (60) 
[See below]

   Whether consolidated financial statements is applicable on company Yes

      Disclosure of details of subsidiaries [TextBlock] 
   Disclosure of additional information consolidated financial statements 
   [TextBlock] 
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Textual information (60)

Disclosure of notes on consolidated financial statements explanatory [Text Block]

 

41

Additional Information pursuant
to schedule III for the
preparation of consolidated
financial statements:

               

                   

   

As at

31 March
2021

             

  Name of the Entity Net Assets  
Share in
Profit and
Loss

 

Share in other
comprehensive

income (OCI)

 

Share in total
comprehensive

income (TCI)

 

   
% of
consolidated
net assets

Amount

% of
consolidated
Profit and
Loss

Amount
% of
consolidated
OCI

Amount
% of
consolidated
TCI

Amount

                   

  Parent                

 
Urbanclap Technologies India
Private Limited

90.43% 41,020.59 90.06% -22,448.65 100.00% 17.62 90.05% -22,431.03

                   

  Subsidiaries                

  Urbanclap Technologies Global
B.V., Netherlands

0.03% 12.5 0.11% -27.07 0.00%  -   0.11% -27.07

  Handyhome Solutions Private
Limited

3.46% 1,569.75 -4.83% 1,202.89 0.00%  -   -4.83% 1,202.89

  Urban Home Experts PTE LTD,
Singapore

3.18% 1,443.48 4.46% -1,112.64 0.00%  -   4.47% -1,112.64

  Urbancare Financial Services P
Ltd

0.53% 240.41 -0.01% 2.33 0.00%  -   -0.01% 2.33

  Urbanclap Technologies DMCC,
UAE

1.14% 516.4 3.66% -911.11 0.00%  -   3.66% -911.11
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Urban Home Experts PTY LTD,
Australia

1.23% 559.55 6.41% -1,597.48 0.00%  -   6.41% -1,597.48

 
Urban Company Arabia for
Information Technology, Saudi
Arabia

0.00%  -   0.14% -35.81 0.00%  -   0.14% -35.81

                   

  Total 100.00% 45,362.68 100.00% -24,927.54 100.00% 17.62 100.00% -24,909.92

                   

                   

   

As at

31 March
2020

             

  Name of the Entity Net Assets  
Share in
Profit and
Loss

 

Share in other
comprehensive

income (OCI)

 

Share in total
comprehensive

income (TCI)

 

   
% of
consolidated
net assets

Amount

% of
consolidated
Profit and
Loss

Amount
% of
consolidated
OCI

Amount
% of
consolidated
OCI

Amount

                   

  Parent                

  Urbanclap Technologies India
Private Limited

98.55% 62,192.43 89.76% -13,928.98 100.00% -81.62 89.82% -14,010.60

                   

  Subsidiaries                

  Urbanclap Technologies Global
B.V., Netherlands

0.06% 37.92 0.20% -31.21 0.00%  -   0.20% -31.21

  Handyhome Solutions Private
Limited

0.26% 164.28 -0.03% 5.4 0.00%  -   -0.03% 5.4

  Urban Home Experts PTE LTD,
Singapore

0.22% 137.45 1.56% -242.47 0.00%  -   1.55% -242.47

  Urbancare Financial Services P
Ltd

0.36% 227.51 0.04% -6.65 0.00%  -   0.04% -6.65
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Urbanclap Technologies DMCC,
UAE

0.53% 333.4 3.79% -587.82 0.00%  -   3.77% -587.82

  Urban Home Experts PTY LTD,
Australia

0.02% 12.82 4.68% -726.04 0.00%  -   4.65% -726.04

                   

  Total 100.00% 63,105.81 100.00% -15,517.77 100.00% -81.62 100.00% -15,599.39

 

[611400] Notes - Separate financial statements

Disclosure of subsidiaries [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Subsidiaries [Axis] 1 2

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of subsidiaries [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of subsidiaries [Line items] 

            Name of subsidiary Handy Home Solutions
Private Limited

Urbanclap
Technologies Global
B.V.

Urbanclap
Technologies
Global B.V.

Urbancare Financial
Services Private Limited

            CIN of subsidiary company U74900MH2014PTC259683 U65900DL2019PTC355746

            Country of incorporation or residence of 
            subsidiary 

INDIA NETHERLANDS NETHERLANDS INDIA

            Proportion of ownership interest in subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

            Proportion of voting rights held in subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Disclosure of subsidiaries [Table] ..(2)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Subsidiaries [Axis] 3 4

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of subsidiaries [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of subsidiaries [Line items] 

            Name of subsidiary 
Urbanclap
Technologies
DMCC

Urbanc lap
Technogies DMCC

Urban Home
Experts Pte. Ltd

Urban Home Experts
PTY LTD

            Country of incorporation or residence of 
            subsidiary 

UNITED ARAB
EMIRATES

UNITED ARAB
EMIRATES

SINGAPORE AUSTRALIA

            Proportion of ownership interest in subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

            Proportion of voting rights held in subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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Disclosure of subsidiaries [Table] ..(3)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Subsidiaries [Axis] 5 6

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of subsidiaries [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of subsidiaries [Line items] 

            Name of subsidiary Urban Home
Experts Pty. Ltd

Urbanhome Experts
Pte Ltd

Urbancare Financial
Services Private Limited

HANDY HOME
SOLUTIONS PRIVATE
LIMITED

            CIN of subsidiary company U65900DL2019PTC355746 U74900MH2014PTC259683

            Country of incorporation or residence of 
            subsidiary 

AUSTRALIA SINGAPORE INDIA INDIA

            Proportion of ownership interest in subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

            Proportion of voting rights held in subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Disclosure of subsidiaries [Table] ..(4)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Subsidiaries [Axis] 7

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021
      Disclosure of subsidiaries [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of subsidiaries [Line items] 

            Name of subsidiary 

Urban Company
Arabia  for
Information
Technology

            Country of incorporation or residence of subsidiary SAUDI ARABIA

            Proportion of ownership interest in subsidiary 100.00%

            Proportion of voting rights held in subsidiary 100.00%

[610800] Notes - Related party

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

Disclosure of related party [TextBlock] Textual information (61) 
[See below]

   Whether there are any related party transactions during year No No

   Whether entity applies exemption in Ind AS 24.25 No No

      Whether company is subsidiary company No No
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Textual information (61)

Disclosure of related party [Text Block]

 

37 Related party transaction    

       

(a)   Key managerial personnel compensation    

     
 Rs in
Lakh

   Particulars

Year
ended

31 March,
2021

Year
ended

31 March,
2020

   Short-term employee benefits 298.93 298.82

   Share-based payment 315.3  -  

   Post-employment benefits*  -    -  

       

   * As Gratuity and leave salary are computed for all the employees in aggregate, the amount relating to the Key
Managerial Personnel cannot be individually identified.

   

 

[611700] Notes - Other provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
Disclosure of other provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
[TextBlock] 

   Disclosure of contingent liabilities [TextBlock] Textual information (62) 
[See below]

      Whether there are any contingent liabilities No No
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Textual information (62)

Disclosure of contingent liabilities [Text Block]

 

39 Contingent liabilities

   

(a)

The Group will continue to assess the impact of further developments relating to retrospective application of Supreme Court judgement
in  case of "Vivekananda Vidyamandir And Others Vs The Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (II) West Bengal" and the related
circular (Circular No. C-I/1(33)2019/Vivekananda Vidya Mandir/284) dated February 28, 2019 clarifying the definition of 'basic wages'
under Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1952 and deal with it appropriately

(b)

During the current year and as in the previous financial year, the management has received several claims from consumers related to
services provided through service providers and lessors related to leased premises.The uncertainties and possible reimbursements are
dependent on the outcome of the different legal processes which have been invoked by the claimants and therefore cannot be predicted
accurately or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle or a reliable estimate cannot be made. The Group engages reputed professional advisors to protect its interests and has been
advised that it has strong legal positions against such disputes and no provision is required in the financial statements as on March 31,
2021.

 

[610500] Notes - Events after reporting period

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
Disclosure of events after reporting period [TextBlock] 
   Disclosure of non-adjusting events after reporting period [TextBlock] 
      Whether there are non adjusting events after reporting period No No

[612500] Notes - Share-based payment arrangements

Disclosure of terms and conditions of share-based payment arrangement [Table] ..(1)

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
Types of share-based payment arrangements [Axis] 1

01/04/2020 
to 

31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
      Disclosure of terms and conditions of share-based payment arrangement [Abstract] 
         Disclosure of terms and conditions of share-based payment arrangement [Line items] 

            Description of share-based payment arrangement 

Employee Stock
Option Plan 2015
(ESOP -2015) -
Also refer note no.
33 of notes to
financial statement
for detailed
infomration on
ESOP

Employee Stock
Option Plan 2015
(ESOP -2015) - Also
refer note no. 33 of
notes to financial
statement for detailed
infomration on ESOP

               Description of maximum term of options granted for share-based payment 
               arrangement 

1-4 years 1-4 years

               Date of grant of share-based payment arrangement 25/07/2015 25/07/2015

               Number of instruments granted in share-based payment arrangement [pure] 11,300 [pure] 9,077
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Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
31/03/2019

Disclosure of share-based payment arrangements [TextBlock] Textual information (63) 
[See below]

   Whether there are any share based payment arrangement Yes Yes

   Disclosure of terms and conditions of share-based payment arrangement 
   [TextBlock] 
      Disclosure of terms and conditions of share-based payment arrangement 
      [Abstract] 
   Disclosure of number and weighted average exercise prices of share options 
   [TextBlock] 
      Number of share options outstanding in share based payment arrangement 
      [Abstract] 
         Number of share options granted in share-based payment arrangement [pure] 11,300 [pure] 9,077

         Number of share options forfeited in share-based payment arrangement [pure] -3,616 [pure] -2,119

         Number of share options exercised in share-based payment arrangement [pure] -3,410 [pure] -120

         Total changes of number of share options outstanding in share based 
         payment arrangement 

[pure] 4,274 [pure] 6,838

      Number of share options outstanding in share-based payment 
      arrangement at end of period 

[pure] 38,890 [pure] 34,616 [pure] 27,778

      Number of share options exercisable in share-based payment arrangement [pure] 18,637 [pure] 16,356
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Textual information (63)

Disclosure of share-based payment arrangements [Text Block]

 

33 Employee stock options        

 

Pursuant to shareholder resolution dated July 25, 2015, the Holding Company
introduced “Employee Stock Option Plan 2015 (ESOP -2015)”. The plan entitles
directors and employees to purchase equity shares in the Holding Company at the
stipulated exercise price, subject to compliance with vesting conditions. The vesting
period for the share options is in the range of 1-4 years from the grant date. All
exercised options shall be settled by physical delivery of equity shares.

       

           

(a) Movement in share options during the year:

As at

31 March,
2021

 

As at

 31
March,
2020

 

   
No. of stock
options

Weighted
average price
(Rs.)

No. of
stock
options

Weighted
average
price
(Rs.)

  Employees Stock Option Plan 2015        

  Balance at the beginning of the   year 34,616 1 27,778 1

  Granted during the year 11,300 1 9,077 1

  Exercised during the year 3,410 1 120 1

  Forfeited during the year 3,616 1 2,119 1

  Outstanding at the end of year* 38,890 1 34,616 1

  Exercisable at year end 18,637 1 16,356 1

           

  *The exercise price for options oustanding at year end is Rs. 1 and the weighted
average remaining contractual life (in years) is 3.63.

       

           

Number Exercised

Share
price at
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    exercised date exercised
date
(Rs.)

 

(b) Share options exercised during the year 3,410 01-Sep-20 1,10,000  

           

           

(c) Fair value of shares granted during the year        

 

The weighted average fair value at grant date of the options granted during the year
ended 31 March 2021 was Rs. 1,25,314 per option (31 March 2020 – Rs. 1,09,293).
The fair value at grant date is independently determined using the Black-Scholes
Model which takes into account the exercise price, the expected life of option, the
share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the
expected dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate for the term of the option.

       

  The model inputs for options granted during the year are as follows:        

  Particulars

As at

 31 March,
2021

As at

 31 March,
2020

   

  Dividend yield (%)  -    -      

  Expected volatility (%)*
 54.04%-
59.51%

50.73%-
53.72%

   

  Risk-free interest rate (%)  
4.73%-5.71% 

5.91%-7.41%    

  Weighted average life of option (in years) 4.16 4.99    

  Weighted average share price (in Rs.) 1,25,314 1,09,293    

  Exercise price (in Rs.) 1 1    

           

  *Expected volatility has been determined using Beta of Listed Peers.        

           

(d) Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss amounting to Rs. 7,164.42
Lakh (31 March, 2020- Rs. 2,643.40 Lakh) (Refer Note 24)
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(e) There was an amendment to the Shareholder's agreement (“the amendment”), to grant
performance linked incentives to the founder shareholders. The summary of the
amendments is disclosed below.

       

 

Dilution in conversion ratio: The conversion ratio of Compulsorily Convertible
Preference Shares (CCPS) to equity shares would reduce subject to certain
performance and service conditions being fulfilled and a qualifying event occurring
within cut off dates. This reduction in conversion ratio would increase the relative
shareholding of equity shareholders (including the founder shareholders).

 

In the assessment of the Holding Company, the qualifying event is under the control
of the Holding Company. Therefore, adjustment to the conversion ratio on account of
a qualifying event at a specified issue price does not violate the fixed-for-fixed
criteria as specified in Ind AS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation. Hence, the
instruments have been classified as equity.

       

           

 

Issuance of fresh equity shares: Future milestones of the incentive plan would involve
issuance of fresh shares by Holding Company to the founder shareholders subject to
certain market and non-market performance and service conditions being fulfilled and
a qualifying event occurring within cut off dates.

       

           

 

Owing to market and non-market performance and service conditions attached to both
the above benefits, the related costs have been accounted as equity settled share-based
payment arrangement as per Ind AS 102.

 

As at March 31 2021, the Holding Company has recognised the fair value of the share
based payment benefit in the statement of profit and loss on a straight line basis from
the date of the grant to the cut off dates based on management’s estimate, for the
milestones where achievement of performance conditions and occurrence of
qualifying events has been deemed probable. Where the management has determined
that the achievement of non-market performance condition (occurrence of qualifying
event) necessary for triggering certain future milestones as not probable, no expense
has been recognised during the year.

 

In respect of such share based payment arrangement, the Holding Company will
revisit its assessment of the probability of the occurrence of the qualifying event on
an ongoing basis.

       

           

  Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss        

           

  Dilution in conversion ratio: Rs. 315.30 Lakh included in employee stock option plan
expense in employee benefits expense note (Note 24).

       

           

  Fair value of share based payment benefit granted during the year        
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The weighted average fair value at grant date of the options granted during the year
ended 31 March 2021 was Rs. 1,70,000 per option. The fair value at grant date is
independently determined using the Monte Carlo simulation method which takes into
account the share price at grant date, expected price volatility of the underlying share
and the risk-free interest rate.

       

           

           

  The model inputs for options granted during the year are as follows:        

           

  Particulars

As at

 31 March,
2021

As at

 31 March,
2020

   

  Expected volatility (%)* 70%  -      

  Quarterly risk-free interest rate (%) 3.22%  -      

  Weighted average share price (in Rs.) 1,70,000  -      

           

  *Expected volatility has been determined using Beta of Listed Peers.            

 



 

295

URBANCLAP TECHNOLOGIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED Consolidated Financial Statements for period 01/04/2020 to 31/03/2021 

[613000] Notes - Earnings per share

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020

Disclosure of earnings per share [TextBlock] Textual information (64) 
[See below]

   Basic earnings per share [Abstract] 
      Basic earnings (loss) per share from continuing operations [INR/shares] -0.17 [INR/shares] -0.11

      Basic earnings (loss) per share from discontinued operations [INR/shares] 0 [INR/shares] 0

      Total basic earnings (loss) per share [INR/shares] -0.17 [INR/shares] -0.11

   Diluted earnings per share [Abstract] 
      Diluted earnings (loss) per share from continuing operations [INR/shares] -0.17 [INR/shares] -0.11

      Diluted earnings (loss) per share from discontinued operations [INR/shares] 0 [INR/shares] 0

      Total diluted earnings (loss) per share [INR/shares] -0.17 [INR/shares] -0.11

   Profit (loss), attributable to ordinary equity holders of parent entity 
   [Abstract] 
      Profit (loss) from continuing operations attributable to ordinary 
      equity holders of parent entity 

-24,927.52 -15,517.77

      Profit (loss) from discontinued operations attributable to ordinary 
      equity holders of parent entity 

0 0

      Profit (loss), attributable to ordinary equity holders of parent entity -24,927.52 -15,517.77

      Profit (loss) from continuing operations attributable to 
      ordinary equity holders of parent entity including dilutive 
      effects 

-24,927.52 -15,517.77

      Profit (loss) from discontinued operations attributable to 
      ordinary equity holders of parent entity including dilutive 
      effects 

0 0

      Profit (loss), attributable to ordinary equity holders of parent 
      entity including dilutive effects 

-24,927.52 -15,517.77

   Weighted average shares and adjusted weighted average shares [Abstract] 
      Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding [shares] 1,50,041 [shares] 1,45,149
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Textual information (64)

Disclosure of earnings per share [Text Block]

 

29 Earnings per share (EPS)    

  Basic earnings per share    

(a) Profit/(Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders -24,927.52 -15,517.77

(b)
Weighted average number of Equity Shares used as denominator

for calculating basic and diluted EPS
1,50,041 1,45,149

  Basic EPS ((a)/(b)) -0.17 -0.11

       

 
CCPS and ESOPs outstanding as on March 31, 2021 are anti dilutive in nature and accordingly have been not
considered for the purpose of Diluted EPS.

   

 
Subsequent to the year end on May 07, 2021 the Holding Company has issued 50,490 compulsory convertible
preference shares and 2,613 equity shares

   

 

[610900] Notes - First time adoption

Unless otherwise specified, all monetary values are in Lakhs of INR
01/04/2020 

to 
31/03/2021

01/04/2019 
to 

31/03/2020
Disclosure of first-time adoption [TextBlock] 
   Whether company has adopted Ind AS first time No Yes

   Disclosure of reconciliation of equity from previous GAAP to Ind AS 
   [TextBlock] 
         Equity as per Indian GAAP 0 0

         Equity as per Ind AS 0 0

   Disclosure of reconciliation of comprehensive income from previous GAAP 
   to Ind AS [TextBlock] 
         Comprehensive income as per Indian GAAP 0 0

         Comprehensive income as per Ind AS 0 0

   Disclosure of reconciliation of profit (loss) for the period from 
   previous GAAP to Ind AS [TextBlock] 
         Profit (loss) for the period as per Indian GAAP 0 0

         Profit (loss) for the period as per Ind AS 0 0


